Public Document Pack

Merton Council

General Purposes Committee

Membership

Councillors

Peter McCabe (Chair)
Agatha Mary Akyigyina
Laxmi Attawar

John Dehaney

Janice Howard (Vice-Chair)
Gilli Lewis-Lavender

lan Munn BSc, MRTPI(Rtd)
Rod Scott

Debbie Shears

David Williams

Substitute Members:
Stan Anderson

Henry Nelless

Ray Tindle

Martin Whelton

A meeting of the General Purposes Committee will be held on:
Date: 12 March 2014
Time: 19:15

Venue: Committee rooms D & E - Merton Civic Centre, London Road,
Morden SM4 5DX

This is a public meeting and attendance by the public is encouraged and
welcomed. For more information about the agenda and the decision making
process contact democratic.services@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545
3616.

Press enquiries: press@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3181

Email alerts: Get notified when agendas are published
www.merton.gov.uk/council/committee.htm?view=emailer

For more information about Merton Council visit www.merton.gov.uk




General Purposes Committee
12 March 2014

1. Declarations of interest

2. Apologies for absence

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 5 November 2013 1-4

4. External Auditor: Review of anonymous whistleblowing 5-18
statement

5. External Auditor: Certification of claims and returns annual 19 - 30
report 2012/13

6. External Auditor: Merton council audit plan 31-52

7. External auditor: Pension fund audit plan 53 - 68

8. External auditor: Progress report 69 - 80

9. Procurement: Report of the Chair of the procurement board 81 -106

10. Internal Audit: Plan, strategy and charter 2014/15 107 - 132

11. Internal Audit: progress and whistleblowing update 133 - 152

12. Review of Polling Places 153 - 160

13. Freedom of the Borough - proposed criteria and procedures 161 - 166

14.  Work programme 167 - 168

Note on declarations of interest

Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be
considered at the meeting. If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the
meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that mater and must not participate in
any vote on that matter. If members consider they should not participate because of a hon-
pecuniary interest which may give rise to a perception of bias, they should declare this,
withdraw and not participate in consideration of the item. For further advice please speak with
the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance.



Agenda ltem 3

All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel. To find out the date of the next
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee.

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
5 NOVEMBER 2013

(19.15 - 20.07)

PRESENT Councillors Peter McCabe (in the Chair), Agatha Mary Akyigyina,
Laxmi Attawar, John Dehaney, Lewis-Lavender, lan Munn,
Rod Scott, Debbie Shears, David Williams and Henry Nelless

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Councillor Janice Howard (Councillor Henry Nelless substituting)
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Agenda Item 2)

None were made

3 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 26 SEPTEMBER 2013 (Agenda Item
3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2013 are agreed
as a correct record.

4 S106 AGREEMENTS/UNDERTAKINGS - DELEGATION TO OFFICERS
(Agenda ltem 4)

Members agreed that the efficiency being produced should be quantified and targets
reviewed as required.

RESOLVED: 1) That the General Purposes Committee endorses the officer’s
recommendation to widen the scope of planning applications that can be
determined under delegated powers by amending Part 3F of the Council’s
Constitution as set out in Appendix 2 so that certain planning applications
where standard heads of terms of S106 agreements or undertakings are
proposed need not be referred to the Planning Applications Committee.

2) That the General Purposes committee recommends to Council that it agrees the

necessary constitutional amendments

5  REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR: MERTON COUNCIL ANNUAL
AUDIT LETTER (Agenda ltem 5)

Members discussed the letter with the External Auditors and the Director of
Corporate Services.

Pagell



The overprovision for bad debt on NNDR - this provision was in the collection fund
and would be used to close the gap for 2013/14;

The risks previously unidentified related to older assets. The council had drawn the
attention of the auditors to this;

The scope of the external auditors’ work related to the statement of accounts —
although they had identified some internal control issues it was a matter for Merton to
determine its own internal control regime;

The letter was noted.

6 REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR: MERTON COUNCIL AUDIT
RESULTS REPORT (Agenda Item 6)

Noted that this was an updated version of the report discussed at the September
meeting.

7 REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR: MERTON PENSION FUND AUDIT
RESULTS REPORT (Agenda Item 7)

Noted that this was an updated version of the report discussed at the September
meeting.

8 PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS (Agenda Item 8)

RESOLVED: 1) That the General Purposes Committee notes the Internal
Assessment and the action plan

2) That the General Purposes Committee agrees the External Assessment

9 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2012/13 — IMPROVEMENT PLAN
UPDATE (Agenda Item 9)

Members discussed the update with the Director of Corporate resources:
Management behaviours — The director agreed to circulate the themes to members
The director agreed to provide timelines and target dates for items on the plan;
Members were concerned that IT strategy issues was being scrutinised. They noted
that a report was due to go to Overview and Scrutiny Commission in March/April
2014 and asked to be notified of the outcome of this;

10 WORK PROGRAMME (Agenda Item 10)

March

Constitutional issues — Financial Regulations and procedures, GP Committee terms
of reference

Report of the external auditors: Audit plan

June

Update on reporting of IT issues (minutes of OSC meeting to be circulated to
members)

Public sector internal audit standards — external assessment and action plan

Page 2



September
Report of the external auditor: Audit results report (Merton)
Report of the external auditor: Audit results report (Pension fund)

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Ernst & Young LLP Tel: + 44 20 7951 2000 ‘l‘nf"' =
EY 1 More London Place Fax: + 44 20 7951 1345 ‘% !

London ey.com Yo 2

Building a better SEL2AF EVESTOR IN PEOPLL
working world
Private and Confidential 27 February 2014

Mr Paul Evans

Assistant Director Corporate Governance and

Head of Merton and Richmond Shared Legal Services
London BOFOUQh of Merton Email: dwilkinson@uk.ey.com
Civic Centre

London Road

Morden

Direct line: 0117 881 2318

Dear Paul

Review of anonymous whistleblowing statement

Outline of work undertaken

In accordance with our engagement letter dated 22 November 2013 (a copy of which is attached to this
letter as Appendix 1), we have carried out the work in relation to the investigation of allegations made in
an anonymous and undated whistleblowing statement (the Whistleblowing Statement) submitted to the
Council in November 2013. Being an anonymous document, we have been unable to contact the
whistleblowers, something we would have liked to have done in order to better understand the evidential
basis for their allegations. We have summarised the allegations within the Whistleblowing Statement into
five main areas as follows:

» The procurement of services from Interim 1 and Interim 2

» The procurement of services from Interim 3, Interim 4 and Interim 5

» Value for Money

» Declarations of interest

» Potential misreporting

As with all investigations, the initial scope of work was intended to be a proportionate response to the
matters at hand, in this case, the allegations made in the Whistleblowing Statement. A proportionate
response is important in order to balance the need for robust investigation with the impact that an
investigation has on the subjects of the investigation as well as the costs to the Council.

As set out in our engagement letter, we initially agreed to undertake six groups of tasks which included a
review of relevant parts of the Council's constitution and standing orders, registers of interests and
payments made to the individuais named in the Whistieblowing Statement and the manner in which the

Council accounted for these payments. Our work aiso consisted of analytical procedures applied to
information and data made available to us and explanations provided to us.

Page 5



EY 2

Building a better
working world

Having undertaken the tasks set out in our engagement letter, we concluded that it would be
proportionate to hold fact finding meetings with Council officers, the individuals named in the
Whistieblowing Statement, as well as contacting third parties from ocutside of the Council.

In summary, our work has not identified evidence of corruption, malpractice or unlawful expenditure in
relation to the specific issues raised by the whistleblowers.

Our work has not involved a forensic analysis of the email accounts and electronic data held by the
individuals on laptops and other electronic devices or details of personal financial information to the
extent that it would be available. Such work would be appropriate particularly where well founded
concerns exist with regard to the making of illicit payments.

Given that, in this case, the rates paid to the individuals are comparable with the market rates for such
services and Interim 1 and Interim 2" are providing services to a number of senior officers in addition to
Officer 1, there is insufficient evidence to suggest that there is a heightened risk that such payments
have occurred. In this context, the Council should consider whether further investigation would be a
reasonable and effective use of resources since, unless new evidence is brought to its attention, the cost
of undertaking further investigative work would be disproportionate to the risk of such payments having
been made or received. At this stage, we would not recommend that further work is undertaken,

Our procedures did not intend, or seek, to express an audit opinion on the information and, therefore, will
not censtitute an audit and should not be relied on as such. Qur work and this letter do not constitute any
iegal opinion or advice. Should further information come to light we reserve the right to amend or update
this letter where appropriate.

We set out below our findings in relation to each area.

The procurement of services from Interim 1 and Interim 2

The Whistleblowing Statement alleges that Officer 1 (O1 - Director of Resources) personally appointed
Interim 1 (1) to the role of Assistant Director of Finance and Interim 2 (12} as Business Partner in the
Corporate Services Department? without following Council procurement processes.

Although 12 provided services to the Council in financial year (FY) 04/05 and FY 05/06, the majority of
12's costs incurred by the Council began in FY 08/09 and she continues to provide services to the
Council up to and including FY 13/14. 12's role has changed during the period from FY 08/09 when she
first worked on the Council's Corporate Services’ Transformation and Restructure programme, and she
has been working as an interim 'Business Partner’ since April 2011.

I1's initial contract ran from 3 May 2011 to 30 September 2011. I1's contract has been renewed three
times and he has also continued to provide services to the Council up to and including FY 13/14.

With reference to their initial appointments (i.e. FY 08/09 for 12 and FY 11/12 for 11) O1 approached the
individuals with an offer of work on a consultancy and interim basis, respectively. 01 completed a 'single

! As explained below, the Whislleblowing Statements makes refarence to Interim 1 and Inlenim 2 and the procurement of their services by Officer 1 on behall of the Counc
As explained bslow, Officer 1 was not responsible for the procurement of servicas from Interim 3, Interim 4 or Interim §
? Interim 2 has actually been covering the role of Business Partner within the Children's, Schools and Families direciorate

Page 6



EY :

Building a better
working world

price quotation’ form and agreed contractual terms directly with 11 and 12. Neither of the original roles
was advertised externally. O1 also interviewed both 11 and 12 alone and no other candidates were
interviewed.

From the time when |1 and |12 have been engaged by the Council, O1 has been responsible for
authorising purchase orders for their services and authorising the payment of the majority of their
invoices.? Although they both provide support to other senior officers within the Council, 11 is line
managed by O1 and both 11 and 12 report to O1.*

The Whistleblowing Statement refers to 11 and |12 as being consultants. |1 has been appointed to cover a
permanent role and so is working on an interim basis rather than a consultancy basis. 12 was initially
appointed in the capacity of a consultant. Since April 2011, 12 has been working in the capacity of one of
the Council's three business partners, therefore moving from a consultancy role to filling an interim role
at the Council,

We have obtained a copy of the Council's ‘Consultants Code of Practice’ (the Code) which sets out a
process for the procurement of consultants. The document is dated 2001 and few of the people we
discussed the document with had either heard of or were familiar with it. In addition, the Code was not
referred to within the Standing Orders (SOs) in effect at the time when |1 and 12's services were initially
procured by the Council.®

The Council's SOs states, inter alia, that a ‘Responsible Officer’ must always:

» Seek value for money

» Carry out a robust options analysis before selecting the chosen procurement procedure
»  Show no undue favour to any provider

» Conduct purchasing or price-testing or other procurement in accordance with the highest standards
of propriety, probity and proper practices to prevent fraud and corruption.

In addition, the SOs require a minimum of three written quotations to be obtained for a contract value of
between £10,000 and £75,000. A quotation is defined as a “written or oral offer following price testing”.

In regard to the SOs, O1 stated in interview that due to her knowledge of the market (for example,
details of other interim appointments and information received from agencies), she was aware of
applicable rates for interims and consultants and was satisfied that the rates agreed with |1 and 12 were
in-line with the market.

In addition, O1 also provided us with a 'Consultancy Framework Agreement’ used by Croydon Council
However, this refers to the provision of services from large organisations such as Deloitte MCS Ltd and

3 The Council's finance systern also shows Lhat these have somelimes been authorised by other Council Officers. including the Chief Executive

in 12's case, she also reports to ancther senior member of the Council's management leam

% A "Code of Practice on Consultanis” is includad i the Gouncil's current SO$ dated 28 March 2012
* Paragraph 4.1 of the Council's $Os daled 1 February 2007 being the $Os in force at the pomt whea 11 and 12's services were inilially procured  Note that there are similar
requirements listed at paragraph 4.2 of the Counci' s 50s dated 28 March 2012

Page 7



EY “’

Building a better
working world

Serco Consulting rather than self-employed consultants. We have not been provided with
contemporaneous documentary evidence that formal market testing of prices was undertaken for either
11 or 12 at the time of their appointments, and as far as we can tell. a formal benchmarking process did
not take place.

Both the SOs’ and the Code® allow for exemptions from Council procurement processes. They both
refer to ‘single price quotation’ forms which require the person who completes the form to set out why
only a single quotation has been sought.

For 11, the reason for obtaining a single price, as shown on the single price quotation form, was:

‘finterim 1]~ Recently retired London Treasurer in the process of registering with Executive Search
Agencies & more than fits the relevant criteria for the post. By a single price quotation omits the 16-20%
mark [up] rates from our preferred suppliers.”

For I2, the reason for obtaining a single price, as shown on the single price quotation form, was:

“finterim 2] has experience in this area and delay to the corporate services TOM® will lead to delays in
other departments and the overall corporate TOM.”

The SOs include example reasons for using an exemption.'® Although these are examples only and are
not, therefore, comprehensive, none of the examples specifically cover the reasons used by O1.
However, both single price quotations were authorised by the Chief Executive. On that basis, the
procedures required by the Council's SOs for the exemption to be valid have been followed.

In addition, ‘Recruitment Authorisation Forms’ for the consultancy appointments of 12 were approved in
2009 and 2010 by a Cabinet member of the ‘Outstanding Council Programme Board’ at the time of 12's
appointment.’

Whilst 11 and 12's contracts and contract extensions have been formally documented'?, the Council has
not undertaken formal market testing of rates, nor did it advertise the vacant posts externally13 prior or
subsequent to filling them with interim appointments. By undertaking the application/interview process
solely herself, and by being responsible for authorising the majority of payments to 11 and i2, O1 has
made herself vulnerable to allegations of corruption and has created a situation where 11 and 2 could be
seen to be beholden to her for their roles. There is also a heightened risk that |1 and 12 could be
perceived to be acting in O1's interests to the detriment of the Council, although no evidence of this has
been brought to our attention.

The procurement of services from Interim 3, Interim 4 and Interim 5

It has been alleged that |1 procured services on behalf of the Council from Interim 3, Interim 4 and
Interim 5 and did not declare a personal interest in these appointments.

i Paragraph 6 of the Council's SOs dated 1 Fabruary 2007 and 28 March 2012

® Paragraph 6 of the Code dated 14 March 2002

? Target Operating Model

' Appendix 2 of the Council's SOs daled 1 February 2007 and 28 March 2012

' 12's consullancy work was covered by the Iransformation werk required as part of the Qutstanding Cauncil programme.

T 01 emailed a Council Mamber, in April 2012 n order to explain why she had baen looking to exiend |1's pariad of service

" With the exception of 12's role as a Business Pariner which bagan in April 2011 and which, we understand, has been adverbsed m January 2014

Page 8



EY 5

Building a better
working world

Our work has shown that the services of Interim 3 had been procured by the Council before I1 first
started work at the Council. [1 could not, therefore, have procured Interim 3's services. Our work has
aiso shown that although 11 was one of two people who interviewed Interim 4 and Interim 5, he was not
responsib:;a for engaging their services and did not know Interim 4 or Interim 5 before they were
recruited.

Value for Money

The Whistleblowing Statement alleges that the Council has not achieved value for money through the
use of long standing interims and that ‘mates rates' have been applied in agreeing the daily rates with 11
and 2.

We address the issue of market rates and value for money separately below.

Market rates

We sought independent confirmation of market rates from a recruitment agency which has placed interim
staff at the Council o compare the daily rates paid to |1 and 12 with those prevailing in the market. The
agency told us that rates have remained constant for at least the last three years and that they would
expect the following rates to apply:

» I1’s role to attract a daily rate in excess of £800, compared with the rate paid by the Council of
£750.

» 12's role to attract a daily rate in the region of £500 to £800 per day. compared with the initial rate
paid by the Council of £700, and the current rate of £650.

The rates paid by the Council for I1 and [2's services are comparable with market rates

Comparison with permanent employees

The table below shows a comparison of the estimated annualised costs of the four people named in the
Whistleblowing Statement whose procurement involved O1 or 14,

The table compares the cost of a full time equivalent compared to the cost of an interim staff member
where the agreed daily rates of the interims are multiplied by the available working days in a year." This
amount is then compared to the equivalent gross annual salary {including employers' national insurance
(NI and pension costs) for a permanent employee in the same role.

The annual salaries provided to us by the Council's HR team were exclusive of NI and Pensions
contributions. For the purposes of this comparison, we added a flat rate of 12% for NI contributions and

" Due to long term absence, we have nol been able to discuss the procurement of Interim 4 and Interim 5 with the officer responsible for thewr appointment

'S We nole M's involvement was only as a second interviewer.

'® Available working days is assumed as 226, being 260 available working days, less 8 bank holidays and less 26 days annual leave We have not accounted for sickness
absence. This number represents the nolional number of days a permanent staff member is expected o work in one year

Page 9



EY

Building a better
working world

Pensions contributions of an additional 14.1%. The daily rate for Interim 4" and Interim 5" includes the
agency mark-up being paid by the Council {17.5% and 15% respectively).19

Person Daily Rate (ex Estimated Permanent Difference £
VAT) £ annualised cost£ equivalent {inc.

NI and Pensions)

£
Interim 1 750 169,500 109,783 -114,719 54,781 -59,717
Interim 2 650%° 146.900 75,180 - 80,124 66,776 — 71,720
Interim 4 460 103,960 62,855 — 64,655 39,305 - 41,105
Interim 5 470 106,220 66,604 — 70,666 35,554 — 39,617

The above differences demonstrate that the Councii has been paying more for interim staff than it would
have done had it appointed permanent members of staff to these posts.

In interview, O1 offered the following reasons why the additional expenditure incurred in respect of the
fong-term interim basis appointments of 11 and |12 should not be considered as the Council having failed
to achieve value for money:

»

I1 and 12 provide consultancy services on top of the interim roles they are undertaking, thereby
saving the Council the cost of appointing consultants in addition to a permanent staff member.

The Council finds it difficult to recruit some permanent posts due to Merton paying less than
comparable Councils. The Council could not afford for any of these roles to have been left vacant
for an extended period of time.

The budget for permanent employees has been used to cover the expenditure on temporary
employees; therefore the Council is not overspending against budget.

Appointing both [1 and 12 directly, rather than through an agency, avoided paying a mark-up to
agencies. O1 had checked with the Head of HR before the appointment of 11 that agency mark-ups
could be between 13% and 20%.*’

With specific reference to |1, O1 alse explained that at a time of reducing resources, the role
undertaken by I1 is not one upon which you can ‘cut your teeth’, i.e. it required someone of
experience.

"7 Interim 4 started work at the Council in August 2011
"® Interim 5 started work at the Gouncil in June 2011
A mark-up is nol applicable 1o I and 12 as their services wera not procured via an agency.
We have only compared the daily rale of 12 whilst she was acling as an intenim to provide for maximum comparabr ity with a permanent staff member
"' we note that the single price quotation form refers to mark ups betwaen 16% and 20%. Furthermore, our companson of cosis does not include a mark-up for |

Page 10



EY ?

Building a better
working world

None of these comments adequately evidence value for money being achieved through the incremental
payment for the services being provided by interims for an extended period of time rather than
permanent employees.

Interim staff will typically cost more than permanent staff due to the need to compensate these staff for
the absence of employment rights, or pension contributions. However, the Council has not actively
sought to minimise this additional expenditure by recruiting permanently to the posts being covered by
interims. This has created a situation where some interim appointments have been in place at the
Council for close to three years.?

Whilst the responsibility for recruiting permanently rests with the relevant budget holder®, the Council's
HR team has not provided challenge to the length of I1 and |12's interim appointments, nor has it
encouraged a return to the market to recruit permanent replacements.

We understand from O1 that the Council is currently in the process of advertising internally and
externally to fill 12's current role. However, prior to January 2014, we understand that the Council had not
sought to replace either 11 or 12 with a full ime appointment from outside of the Council. No such
advertisement of I1’s role has taken place.

Declarations of interests

The Whistleblowing Statement made a number of allegations regarding the relationship O1 has with |1
and |12. We address each relationship in turn,

O1andl1

The Whistleblowing Statement alleges that O1 was personal friends with [1 and did not declare this
during the recruitment process. O1 explained to us that she was not a personal friend of 11 but had
known of i1 via the Society of London Treasurers and they had met through this forum.

O1andi2

The Whistleblowing Statement alleges:

» aclose personal fnendship between O1 and (2

v

12 gave gifts and hospitality to O1
» O1 attended I12's wedding as a ‘guest of honour' and
» O1and |12 attended Epsom and Kempton Park races together.

In interview, both O1 and 12 acknowledged that they knew of each other prior to 12 starting work at the
Council as they had been introduced through a colleague when they both worked at Westminster

Naote that 12 initially started working for the Council as a consultant, rather than on an inlenm basis
=" As stated by HR

Page 11



EY B

Building a better
working world

Council.®* O1 and 12 also confirmed that subsequent to 12's appointment, they have met socially on a

number of occasions

12 denied having offered or given gifts or hospitality to O1 and O1 stated she had not received any gifts
or hospitality from [2.

Both O1 and 12 confirmed that O1 had attended [2's wedding in 2012, but not as a ‘guest of honour’. We
understand that four other council officers also attended the wedding

01 and |2 have been to Epsom race course together (the first time being June 2011) with a group of
friends during the periods in which 12 has provided services to the Council but not on Council time. We
have been informed by O1 and 12 that they pay for their own costs associated with these events. Neither
O1 nor 12 has attended Kempton Park races.

The Council's Constitution in effect at the time of the appointments of |1 and 12, stated at part 4G,
paragraph 8.2 that:

“Confilict of interest means conflict of private interest and public duty and /or confiict of public duty to a
public body and duty to The Council. It is important that a person's judgement of the public (Council)
interest is nof impaired by their privale interest or duty to another public body. It is not just about actual
conflict but also an appearance of conflict.”

In addition, part 4H required familial relationships with existing council officers to be declared by people
seeking employment by the Council.

Neither parts 4G or 4H explicitly extend to declarations in relation to friendships, either at the time of
appointment or which develop after an employee and/or interim appointment has first begun. We note
that no declarations as to friendships were made by O1, |1 or 12 at the time of appointment. This is
consistent with their statements regarding their relationships at the time of the appointments.

However, paragraph 6.2 of the Council's constitution states that:

“If you engage or supervise contractors/consuftants or have any other official relationship with
contractors/consultants and have previously had or currently have a relationship in a private or domestic
capacity with contractors/consultants, you should declare that relationship to the appropriate manager.
Details should be recorded in the ‘Declaration of Interests Register’ that is kept by Directors.”

Had the friendship between O1 and 12 been interpreted by the Council to fal! within the scope of
paragraph 6.2 {i.e. a reiationship in a private capacity with contractors/consultants) then it should have
been declared on an on-going basis. We were provided with the declaration of interest forms completed
by O1in 2011, 2012 and 2013, and no declarations of friendship were made.

# 01 had been Drractor of Finance at Westminster Council and 12 had undertaken some consultancy work al Westminster duning thal lime We undersiand that 01 was not
invelved in the procurement of 12 whilst al Wesiminster and the two never worked direcily with sach other

Page 12



EY 9

Building a better
working world

Potential misreporting

We address below the allegations of potential misreporting in relation to reporting to committees,
publication of expenditure over £500 and declarations made on the consultants registers.

Reporting to committees

The Whistleblowing Statement alleged that the Council has overspent as the result of the appointment of
‘consultants’ and this has not been reported to full Council.

We note above that the Council is paying more in relation to the appointment of each of the interim staff
members when compared with the annual salaries provided by the Council's HR team for the
corresponding posts.

The Council's reporting process is such that expenditure on employees is reported at an aggregated
level (i.e. total expenditure on employees within a directorate) and does not separateiy identify
expenditure between permanent and interim staff,

Whilst departments monitor expenditure at a cost centre level, reports to Council and its sub-committees
report at a divisional level, not a cost centre level. This is standard practice within local government
reporting. The position for the corporate resources department, which includes the costs of 11 and 12,
was as follows:

» FY 11/12 overspend of £1.5m (Cabinet report 2 July 2012 attributes this overspend to redundancy
costs and repairs and maintenance)

» FY12/13 overspend of £393k (due largely to a £460k overspend in Customer Services which does
not include the costs of 11 or 12)

» FY 13/14 underspend of £1.4m (forecast)

Expenditure over £500

The Whistleblowing Statement further alleges that payments to |1 and 12 have been deliberately
excluded from publication on the Council's expenditure over £500 listing, which it publishes on a
quarterly basis on its website. We note that payments to I1 and 12 are disciosed on the payments over
£500 list but their names have been redacted. This is a Council policy to prevent publication of
information which would allow individuals to be identified.

Consultant’s registers

The Whistleblowing Statement also alleges a failure by O1 to declare the consultants on the Consultant's
Register. As noted above, only 12 has operated as a consultant when she first worked at the Council in
FY 08/09. We have reviewed the Consultants Register for FY 08/09 and confirm that 12 is disclosed on
the register as the ‘Transformation Project — CS TOM Lead'.

Page 13



EY ¢

Building a better
working world

Errors in the whistleblowing statement

In undertaking our work, we have identified a number of inaccuracies in the Whistleblowing Statement,
including incorrect references to names, job titles and involvement in recruitment processes. It should
also be noted that when comparing annual salaries with payments made to interims, the payments to
interims should not include VAT if the comparison is to be on a like for like basis. We have further
identified a number of errors in the value of payments listed within the Whistleblowing Statement.

Conclusion

In summary, our work has not identified evidence of corruption, malpractice or unlawful expenditure in
relation to the specific issues raised by the whistleblowers,

Moreover, given that the rates paid to the individuals are comparable with the market rates for such
services, and |1 and 12 are providing services to a number of senior officers in addition to O1, there is
insufficient evidence to suggest that there is a heightened risk that illicit payments have occurred. In this
context, the Council should consider whether further investigation would be a reasonable and effective
use of resources since unless new evidence is brought to its attention, the cost of undertaking further
investigative work would be disproportionate to the risk of such payments having been made or
received. At this stage, we would not recommend that further work is undertaken.

We note that both [1 and 12 provide support to senior officers within the Council in addition to O1, and
their invoices have sometimes been authorised by officers other than O1. Nonetheless, the ahility to
exempt procurement of interim staff from the Council's standing orders, coupled with responsibility for
the appointment of those interim staff/consultants, gives rise to a lack of transparency and absence of
appropriate oversight and scrutiny in the selection process. In addition, the appointment of interim or
consultancy staff, on a long term basis, should regularly be challenged to ensure it is an appropriate use
of Council resources.

Recommendations

» The Council should review the use of single price quotation forms, particularly in respect of the
justifications required to be documented and the approvat process for their use.

»  Council officers should report all prospective interim positions to the Council's HR function, and the
Council's HR function shouid be responsible for maintaining a central database of all prospective
and live roles filled by interim appeintments.

» HR should challenge departments on their use of long term interim appointments, the rates which
are being paid and ensure that external recruitment is considered.

» HR should be involved in any recruitment process, including the recruitment of interim managers.

» The Council should review its interview process and its policy on the number of interviewers
required, including in relation to the appointment of interim managers.

Page 14



EY

Building a better
working world

» The Council should review its policy on declarations of interest to include personal friendships.

» The Council should communicate to all Council officers any revisions it makes to its procurement
procedures.

Yours sincerely

g

David Wilkinson
Partner

Emst & Young LLP
United Kingdom

Page 15

11



EY 4

Building a better
working world

Private and confidential

Mr Paui Evans 22 November 2013
London Berough of Merton Your ref
Civic Centre Qur ref:

London Road Direct fing: D117 981 2319

Morden Direct fax: 0117 981 2051
SM4 5DX Email: dwilkinson@uk.ey.com
Dear Paul

Merton LBC - Review of whistleblower allegations

This letter is supplemental to our engagement agreement for the statutory audit Merton Council (“the
Council’). Ali terms and conditions in that letter remain unchanged except that the scope of the work
that we are required to perform is expanded to include the following work. Such additional work will be
covered by all the terms and conditions contained in our engagement agreement, including the limitation
of liability provisions. For the avoidance of doubt, the aggregate liability of our firm contained in the
limitation of liability provisions will not be increased as a result of this additional work

Additional scope

On Thursday 14 November 2013, a letter was sent to various council officers and members raising a
number of allegations against certain council officers. Merton Council has requested that Ernst and
Young investigate the allegations set out in that letter ("the Matter")

In accordance with our discussions with you on 18 November 2013, our scope of work for this
investigation will cover the following:

1. Identification of payments made to two named consultants, including a review of the nature and
purpose of those payments and whether the payments were made in accordance with Council
policies regarding appointment of consultants

2. Review of the appointment of the named consultants and whether their appointments were in
accordance with Council policies

J.  Review of the appointment of three other consultants and whether these appointments were in
accordance with Council policies

4. Review of any declarations made by the Council's $151 officer in relation to the appointment of the
named consultants on the Council's consultants register

5. Review of any declarations made by the Council's s151 officer, in relation to the named consultants
on the Council's hospitality register and register of interests

Page 16



EY "

Building a better
working world

6. Review of the reporting of expenditure on consultants taken to Cabinet and Council and approval of
budgets for the appointment of the above named consultants

Our scope of work does net include formal interviews of any of the Council officers named in the
whistleblower's Ietterzs, nor does it include capture of electronic data such as emails and server data.

Depending on the findings from our work, we will discuss with the Council appropriate next steps in the
investigation. Those steps will then be subject to a separate statement of work,

“The scope of our work was subsaquently amended as agreed wilh the Council 'n December 2013 10 include nlarviews

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda Iltem 5

B Ernst & Young LLP &’»"" Y,
Eam o Apex Plaza M ¥
e = iy B i’
Eew & Forbury Road Vo2

%48 o Reading RG1 1YE - I S—
Buiiding a better TNVESTOR IN PEOPLE
working irl
The Members of the General Purposes Committee 28 February 2014
Merton Council
Civic Centre
London Road Qir
Morden Emal Piing
SM4 5DX

Dear Member

Certification of claims and returns annual report 2012-13
Merton Council

We are pleased to report on our certification work. This report summarises the results of our work on
Merton Council’s 2012-13 claims and returns.

Scope of work

Local authorities claim large sums of public money in grants and subsidies from central government and
other grant-paying bodies and are required to complete returns providing financial information to
government departments. In some cases these grant-paying bodies and government departments
require certification from an appropriately qualified auditor of the claims and returns submitted to them.

Under section 28 of the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Audit Commission may, at the request of
authorities, make arrangements for certifying claims and returns because scheme terms and conditions
include a certification requirement. When such arrangements are made, certification instructions issued
by the Audit Commission to appointed auditors of the audited body set out the work they must undertake
before issuing certificates and set out the submission deadlines.

Certification work is not an audit. Certification work involves executing prescribed tests which are
designed to give reasonable assurance that claims and returns are fairly stated and in accordance with
specified terms and conditions.

In 2012-13, the Audit Commission did not ask auditors to certify individual claims and returns below
£125,000. The threshold below which auditors undertook only limited tests remained at £500,000. Above
this threshold, certification work took account of the audited body’s overall control environment for
preparing the claim or return. The exception was the housing and council tax benefits subsidy claim
where the grant paying department set the level of testing.

Where auditors agree it is necessary audited bodies can amend a claim or return. An auditor’s certificate
may also refer to a qualification letter where there is disagreement or uncertainty, or the audited body
does not comply with scheme terms and conditions.

Statement of responsibilities

In March 2013 the Audit Commission issued a revised version of the ‘Statement of responsibilities of
grant-paying bodies, authorities, the Audit Commission and appointed auditors in relation to claims and
returns’ (statement of responsibilities). It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and
via the Audit Commission website.




working world

The statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between the Audit
Commission’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities
of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain
areas.

This annual certification report is prepared in the context of the statement of responsibilities. It is
addressed to those charged with governance and is prepared for the sole use of the audited body. We,
as appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.

Summary

Section 1 of this report outlines the results of our 2012-13 certification work and highlights the significant
issues.

We checked and certified three claims and returns with a total value of £197,155,118. We met all
submission deadlines. For one of these claims, the Council did not meet the submission deadline of the
draft return (the Teachers’ superannuation final return). We issued two qualification letters - for one claim
and one return. Details of the qualification matters are included in section 2.

Our certification work found errors in the housing and council tax benefits subsidy claim which the
Council amended where the full effect of these was known. We carried out extended testing in 16 areas
as a result of errors found in our initial testing. In addition the Council also carried out further work in
one area where we had carried out extended testing. We reviewed that work and reported our findings
separately to the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP). The Teachers’ superannuation final return
did not require amendment but we reported on errors in the interim returns made by the Council during
the year. The National non-domestic rates return did not require amendment.

The Council has implemented some of the recommendations from last year. Details are included in
section 1. However, further improvements in the arrangements for submission of one return and in
supporting the underlying accuracy of information in another are required. We have made three
recommendations this year. These are set out in section 3.

Fees for certification work are summarised in section 2. The Audit Commission applied a general
reduction of 40% to certification fees in 2012-13. We have included the actual fees for 2011-12 and their
values after the 40% reduction to assist year on year comparisons.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the General Purposes
Committee meeting on 12 March 2014.

Yours faithfully
% ﬁ %
\g ’g J “%x,-\
o

Paul King

Director

Ernst & Young LLP

Enc.

Page 20



Contents

Certification of claims and returns annual report 2012-13

Contents

1. Summary of 2012-13 certification WOrK.......c.ccocciiriisiciriere s ssssese s sssreesssssanees 1
2 2012493 perdtification Foos.. ..oy 5
3. Looking fOrWard ..........cccvcvriinininniiniiiiiniiie e e s nn e s 6
4. Summary of recommendations.........cccceiiieiiiniininiii e 7

EY i

Page 21



Summary of 2012-13 certification work

1.  Summary of 2012-13 certification work

We certified three claims and returns in 2012-13. The main findings from our certification work are provided
below.

Housing and council tax benefits subsidy claim

Scope of work Results

Value of claim presented for certification £104,074,612 _ :
Limited or full review Full

Amended Amended — subsidy reduced by £435 (although there will

be a much larger reduction in subsidy to the Council due to
extrapolation of errors and uncertainties in the qualification

letter)
Qualification letter Yes
Fee - 2012-13 £42 910 (under discussion due to additional work carried

out on extended testing compared to previous years; and
specifically including £350 agreed with the Council for
completion of work on modified schemes and £750 for the
review and reporting of the additional testing on child tax
credits).

£57,679 total*

Feq-2011-12 * Note - £40,952 paid to the Audit Commission in respect of
their initial work on the 2011-12 claim, and £16,727 paid to
Ernst & Young LLP to complete work on the claim and its
certification

Recommendations from 2041-12: Findings in 201213

Maintain targeted training for officers in areas  Further targeted training is still required for officers
where persistent issues remain. preparing subsidy claims in those areas identified in the
2012-13 and prior year qualification letters.

Increase the sample review of cases for those We identified errors in 2012-13 in a more areas where

areas where there is a higher potential risk of  there is a higher risk of loss of subsidy. Formal

loss of subsidy in advance of submission of the implementation of a sample review of cases did not occur

claim. during the year. A rolling review of a sample of cases will
be implemented to ensure quality and consistency
standards are met - recommendations in section 4.

Reduce to nil the un-reconciled differences in ~ Minor differences remained in the reconciliation to systems
the reconciliation to the systems used to used to provide elements of the subsidy claim.
compile the claim.

Introduce procedures to review all manual We reviewed manual adjustments to the claim; some of
adjustments before submission of the claim for these were incorrect and required further testing.
audit. Procedures required to review all manual adjustments

before submission of the claim and ensure there is
supporting documentation to explain these amendments.

Councils run the Government's housing and council tax benefits scheme for tenants and council taxpayers.
Councils responsible for the scheme claim subsidies from the DWP towards the cost of benefits paid.

Page 22 e



Summary of 2012-13 certification work

The certification guidance requires auditors to complete more extensive ‘40+' testing (extended testing) if
initial testing identifies errors in the calculation of benefit or compilation of the claim. We found errors and
carried out extended testing in 16 areas (in 2011-12 extended testing was carried out in five areas). We
have reported underpayments, uncertainties and the extrapolated value of other errors to the DWP in a
qualification letter. We produced the qualification letter in accordance with the requirements of the DWP.
This identified errors in the areas of rent rebates, rent allowances and council tax benefit. The claim was
also adjusted for specific errors identified and agreed as part of the work. These amendments had a small
net impact on the claim. The extrapolation of other errors and uncertainties is likely to have a larger impact
on the level of subsidy due to the Council.

We identified errors and uncertainties in 2 number of areas and included these in our qualification letter:

» overstatement of housing and council tax benefit due to miscalculation of private pension allowances,
calculation of claimants’ main earnings and capital, and miscalculation of allowances for regulated
tenancies. With the exception of main earnings, these areas were not reported in last year’s
qualification letter. Officers will focus on accuracy in these areas to ensure these income calculation
errors will not occur in the future;

> errors in housing and council tax benefit awarded resulting from self-employed earnings calculated
incorrectly. This is a more complex area and further training and peer review are proposed to reduce
the level of errors;

> miscalculation of working tax credits (WTCs) and child tax credits (CTCs) in benefit calculations. The
Council did not consider the extrapolation that we calculated based on the errors identified on CTCs as
representative and carried out their own further testing in addition to the initial and extended testing that
we carried out. We then reviewed and reported separately to the DWP on the overall findings and
results, including the further testing undertaken by the Council. The Council has since written to the
DWP as it considers there are existing and known systems issues with the interface with central
government systems that provide the figures for the claim in this area, and asked that these are
reflected in any decision made on the extrapolation of errors and resulting loss of subsidy;

» errors in more technical areas of the claim relating to council tax and rent rebates that can be claimed
and treated as overpayments under current regulations. Some of these were areas covered in last
year’s qualification letter. These are more complex areas and further training and peer review are
proposed to reduce the level of errors — and the loss of subsidy and direct costs to the Council for
administering these benefits.

The Council needs to ensure the overall accuracy of claim review is improved as the overall number of
areas where errors were identified has increased — and some of these were also identified in previous
years. Improving communication, and accuracy of transfer of information, between officers working in the
benefits, council tax and housing needs departments would reduce errors. Our extended testing identified
cases where the changes in council tax and rents were notified but not updated, or updated incorrectly, in
the benefits system.

We will discuss our approach for future years with the Council. This could include moving directly to
extended testing in those areas where failures are likely to be identified in initial testing, rather than making
the decision on whether to extend testing only after completion of the initial testing. The advantage of this
approach would be that we and the Council would be able to plan more effectively for carrying out all the
work likely to be required.

EY |2

Page 23



Summary of 2012-13 certification work

Teachers' superannuation return

Scope of work

Value of return presented for certification 11,145,651
Limited or full review Full
Amended No

Qualification letter

Yes — see below

Fee - 2012-13
Fee - 2011-12

£2,371
£1,867

Recommendations from 2011-12:

Findings in 2012-13

None

Return not submitted to auditor by due date and in correct
format with incorrect contributions figure.

The Teachers' Pension Scheme is a contributory pension scheme run separately from the local government
pension scheme and administered by Teachers' Pensions on behalf of the Department for Education.
Councils must complete a return setting out what they have collected under the scheme and how much they
need to pay over to the Government. Auditors are required to carry out checks on the return made.

We issued a qualification letter on the return for the following reasons:

» The Council did not submit the original return for certification by the deadline of 30 June 2013; we
received the return on 14 October 2013. The return as presented was also on the incorrect form;

» The return included an incorrect pre-populated figure for ‘Contributions Paid’. The explanation provided
by the Council was that, with the movement to a shared service payroll provider at the beginning of the
2012-13 financial year, there were changes in the personnel responsible for the Council’s returns to
Teachers’ Pensions. These returns included a number of errors in the ‘Contributions Paid’ figure,
including a school that was not the responsibility of the Council. The officers responsible for the year
end return identified these errors and amended the claim accordingly. Our programme of work to
support certification of the claim supported the revised, annotated figure as being fairy stated.

There were no other issues identified from our programme of work.

EY |3

Page 24



Summary of 2012-13 certification work

National non-domestic rates return

Scope of work Results

Value of return presented for certification £81,934,855

Limited or full review Full

Amended No

Qualification letter No

Fee - 2012-13 £3,750 ‘
Fee —2011-12 £6,246

Recommendations from 2011-12;

Findings in 2012-13

None

None

The Government runs a system of non-domestic rates using a national uniform business rate. Councils
responsible for the scheme collect local business rates and pay the rate income over to the Government.
Councils have to complete a return setting out what they have collected under the scheme and how much

they need to pay over to the Government.

We found no errors on the national non-domestic rates return and we certified the amount payable to the

pool without qualification.

EY | 4

Page 25



2012-13 certification fees

3

2. 2012-13 certification fees

R

U

For 2012-13 the Audit Commission replaced the previous schedule of maximum hourly rates with a
composite indicative fee for certification work for each body. The indicative fee was based on actual
certification fees for 2010-11 adjusted to reflect the fact that a number of schemes would no longer require
auditor certification. There was also a 40 per cent reduction in fees reflecting the outcome of the Audit
Commission procurement for external audit services.

The indicative composite fee for Merton Council for 2012-13 was £42,450. The actual fee for 2012-13 is
under discussion and subject to determination by the Audit Commission and is £50,597. This compares to a
charge of £67,492 in 2011-12.

Ciaim or return 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13

Actual fee Indicative fee Actual fee
£ £ £

Housing and council téx benefit 57,6A79# 35,560 e 42,910*

subsidy claim

Teachers’ sﬁperannuatibn’re{urnw 1867 - 4 1,450 2371

National non-domestic rafes rét'uvfn | 6246 " 3;171 3,756

Certification of claims and retums -~ 1,700 2269 1566

annual report

Total 67,492 42,450 50,597

# - not disclosed in last year’s certification of claims report as subject to discussion with the Council and
Audit Commission. Fee is as agreed with the Council and Audit Commission in July 2013.

* - fee under discussion and subject to determination by the Audit Commission.

Fees fell overall compared to 2011-12 because of the Audit Commission’s 40% reduction. However after
allowing for the 40% reduction there was an increase in fees for the following claims and returns:

> Housing and council tax benefit subsidy
The actual fee for the 2011-12 work was agreed in July 2013 following discussion with the Council and
the Audit Commission due to part-completion of the claim by the outgoing Commission auditors, and
completion of the work and certification of the claim by Ernst & Young LLP. The Audit Commission
indicative fee for 2012-13 was based on the actual fee in 2010-11, reduced by 40%. This included
extended testing in 11 areas. The actual fee for 2012-13 increased compared to the 2012-13 indicative
fee as we undertook extended testing in 16 areas. We also carried out further work to review the
Council’s further testing and report our findings to the DWP in one area (child tax credits).

> Teachers’ superannuation
The Audit Commission indicative fee for 2012-13 was based on the fee for the full review done in 2010-
11, reduced by 40%. An increase in the 2012-13 actual fee compared to the indicative fee was due to
the delays in submission, use of the incorrect return and additional work to confirm the correct
contributions paid as an incorrect figure was used on interim returns.

Page 26 ol



Looking forward

3. Looking forward

For 2013-14, the Audit Commission has calculated indicative certification fees based on the latest available
information on actual certification fees for 2011-12, adjusted for any schemes that no longer require
certification. The Audit Commission has indicated that the national non-domestic rates return will not require
certification from 2013-14.

The Commission set the Council’s indicative certification fee for 2013-14 as £54,500. This was based on the
2011-12 estimated position at the beginning of February 2013, prior to the subsequent agreement of the
additional work carried out on the housing benefit and council tax subsidy claim (as set out on page 6).
Therefore this indicative fee may be subject to change by the Audit Commission. The actual certification fee
for 2013-14 may be higher or lower than the indicative fee, if we need to undertake more or less work than
in 2011-12 on individual claims or returns. Details of individual indicative fees are available at the following
link:

[http:/Awww. audit-commission. gov.uk/audit-regime/audit-fees/201314-fees-and-work-programme/individual-
certification-fees/]

We must seek the agreement of the Audit Commission to any proposed variations to indicative certification
fees. The Audit Commission expects variations from the indicative fee to occur only where issues arise that
are significantly different from those identified and reflected in the 2011-12 fee.

The Audit Commission has changed its instructions to allow appointed auditors to act as reporting
accountants where the Commission has not made or does not intend to make certification arrangements.
This removes the previous restriction saying that the appointed auditor cannot act if the Commission has
declined to make arrangements. This is to help with the transition to new certification arrangements, such as
those DCLG will introduce for business rates from 1 April 2013.

EY |6

Page 27



L] A3

1sbeuepy
wes| jusiD |joihed wuayu|
$9]e0) pireQ

aJnjn} Ul IND20 JOU ||Im 8S8Y |

(uoyng ‘uoijouny Japiaoid jjoiAed ayy ul sebueys pied suolnquuod, J0} UOIJRLLLIO)UI
pue UouJ\]) S92IN0SaY uinjal wloly pajjnsal ainbiy pied suonnguiuod 1081100 9y} UO paseq ale pue sa|edsalul}
uewny jo peaH julop ¥1-€102 [eiliul 8y} Ul JOLIS PUB ULIO) WD Jeul) palinbal 8y} Yyim 82UEpPIOID. Ul ‘WIO) }081100
ypuwsaoys uesq Jojaoejd up 8y} Jo 8sn J0a1100Ul ‘UINBI Bje| BY) - paalby ybiH Ay} uo pajsjdwiod aie suinjal ainjny ainsus
uinjay uoljenuueladng si1ayoea |
"JNO pPalLIed S| SIY} INSUS ||IM pue "uoissiwgns o} Joud wieo
JeaA jse| apew uonepuswwodal — pasiby 8y} 0} syjuawisnipe [enueuwl ||e Jo MdIASJ aInsu]

"sJao1o swiep Buowe asipadxs Jo

sjoAs] dn aALp pue yoeoidde 1081100 paquie

0} anoge swiwelboid maiaal Buljjos ayy ypm
BulUIEs Ul Ol M — Swiep JeaA toud pue "sJead snoinald pue siy} Ul palIndoo siole
SIU} UJ S8NSS| JUBLINOS BJOUM PUE — SEBIE a1aym pue Ajxaidwod isjeail Jo seale asoy) ul
xo|dWoo 8Jow 104 “SpIepuels jo uojesrdde Buiuien) Jaysaujal pue sum Asea, Se YIoM s Jeak
ul a|qejieA. ale sum Ases, aleym sesle Siy} ul payuapl sease asoyy ul Butuiel) pejebiey
asoy} ssaippe 0} eoejd uj Buluel} — peaiby Jo sawweiboid Buiobuo ue yum anuniuo)

* sossed, Jo ajdwies e pue sjie}, ||e bunjoayd

sloBeuew wes} yum ‘swiefo buisixa

sjjouag G pue mau G Je Bujoo| SI8d140 ||e SAJoAUl

pue ssnuaAsy Jo peaH [ siy] eouspine Buoddns Jusipyns
1a|dday pineqg 0} seaibe pue J081109 S| JUBWS[HIUL "sJ901y0 swiepo Buowe
JO uoe|nojed jey} %0aYd 0} |00} }J9ayspealds asipadxe Jo [aAs] 8y aAoidwi Jayuny pue
S90INIBS uoijepieA e Buisn ‘yjuow snoinaid swielo Jo ssausjejdwod pue Aoeinage |jelsano dn
ajelodion Jo Joyoalig #7102 yolep 8y} Wouy swiepd Buiisixe pue mau Jo MaIA3) aALP 0] swied Bunpsixs pue mau jo ajdwes e Jo
puejjoH auljore) L¢ Agooed up  Jead Ajyjuow e jo uoiejusws|dwi — paalby ybiH Mmalaal Jaad jo swwelboid Buljjos e uswejdw)
wiejo Apisgns sjiyouaq xej |1ounod pue Buisnoy
19210 sjgisuodsay auijpes( JuauIIoD pue uonoe paailby Aol UOCHEPUSWILIOISY

‘paaiBe SUOIJOB BY} PUB }IOM INO WO SUolepusWIWOoa. ay} sjybybiy uonoss siy |

SUOIEJ

e

ouswiosal jo Aewwing  °y

Suoljepuawwosal Jo Alewwng

Page 28



Ernst & Young LLP

Assurance |

ondorn, §

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Agenda Item 6

Audit Plan

Year end 31 March 2014

Merton Council

March 2014

-

Busidmg a better
working world

Page 31



Ernst & Young LLP Tet +44 20 7851 2000 L

1 More London Place  Fax: +44 20 7851 1345 i

= - London ey com L

SE1 2AF ari™
nF

Building a better
working world

General Purposes Committee

Merton Council 3 March 2014
Civic Centre

London Road

Merton

Si4 5DX

Dear Members

Audit Plan

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as
auditor. The purpose of this report is to provide the General Purposes Committee with a basis to review
our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2014 audit, in accordance with the requirements of the
Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of Audit Practice, the Standing Guidance, auditing standards and
other professional requirements, but also to ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service
expectations.

This report summarises our assessment of the key risks which drive the development of an effective
audit for Merton Council, and outlines our planned audit strategy in response to those risks.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 12 March 2014 as well as understand
whether there are other matters which you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

b e

David Wilkinson
For and behalf of Emst & Young LLP
Enc

Page 32



Contents

1. Overview T ——— 2
2. Financial Statement Risks ........... S 4
3. Economy, Efficiency & Effectiveness...........cccerrnern. kAR 6
4. Our audit process and strategy ....... SRR, 7
5. Independence....... o, 12
Appendix A Fees T e S o R - enesnassniesiiiiiti 15
Appendix B UK required communications with those charged with governance.... 16
Appendix C Detailed Scopes R R 18

Emst & Young 1

Page 33



ey
®

~

Overview

Context for the audit

This audit plan covers the work that we plan to perform in order to provide you with:

» Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Merton Council give a true
and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2014 and of the income and
expenditure for the year then ended; and

> A statutory conclusion on the Council's arrangements to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness.

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office ('NAQ’), to the extent and in the
form required by them, on your Whole of Government Accounts return.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:
» Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements.
> Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards.
» The quality of systems and processes.
» Changes in the business and regulatory environment.
» Management's views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter. And by focusing on
the areas that matter, our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in
accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

In part 2 and 3 of this report we provide more detail on the areas which we believe present
significant risk to the financial statements audit, and outline our plans to address these risks.

Woe will provide an update to the General Purposes Committee on the results of our work in
these areas in our report to those charged with governance scheduled for delivery in

September 2014.

Page 34



Our process and strategy
Financial Statement Audit

>

b

We have not yet finalised our overall materiality for the Council's consolidated
financial statements, but this will be set in the range of between £4.809 million and
£9.818 million based on 1% - 2% of gross operating expenditure.

We are assessing your control environment and we expect to be able to rely on
internal controls, both manual and IT-based where this is the most efficient
approach. For other areas we will apply a substantive approach.

To the fullest extent permissible by auditing standards, we will seek to place
reliance on the work of internal audit wherever possible to support our work,
notwithstanding that changes to auditing standards prohibit our directing the work of
internal audit.

Your audit engagement partner, director and manager remain unchanged.
Changes to the scope of our audit

>  We will report on our work in response to whistieblowing allegations about the
appointment and use of consultants.

» The Council will include the results for its subsidiary company - Constructors
Health and Safety Assessment Scheme (CHAS) - for the first time in its
financial statements. Appendix C provides an overview of the nature of the
planned involvement in the work tc be performed by the external auditors of
CHAS (the component auditors).

Arrangements for securing Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness

We adopt an integrated audit approach such that our work on the financial statement
audit feeds Into our consideration of the arrangements in place for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

We will assess the Council against the criteria and areas of focus set out by the Audit
Commission. There are no specific risks identified to date for which additional work is to
be performed, other than those associated with the whistieblowing allegations.

Page 35



Financigt Statement Risks

-

Financial Statement Risks

}Ne outline below our assessment of the financial statement risks facing the Council,
identified through our knowledge of the Council's operations and discussion with members

and officers.

At our meeting, we will seek to validate these with you.

Significant risks {inciuding fraud risks)

Qur audit approach

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

The Council has made material changes to
the valuation, classification and
completeness of disclosures of its property,
plant and equipment in recent years. We also
identified material errors and omissions in
last year's audit.

The Council is proposing further changes in
2013/14 through a reclassification of its
investment properties. This will lead fo a
material change to the financial statements.

These changes indicate wider risks around
the completeness of property, plant and
equipment disclosed in the Council’s financial
statements and the accurate classification of
these assets.

Risk of management override

As identified in ISA (UK & Ireland) 240,
management is in a unique position to
perpetrate fraud because of their abllity to
directly or indirectly manipulate accounting
records and prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.
We identify and respond to this fraud risk on
every audit engagement.

We also consider the findings from our work
responding to allegations made about the
Council's appointment and use of
consultants.

Our approach will focus on:

» Management controls over the
completeness and classification of assets
in the asset register and underlying
records

» Tests of detail over the completeness and
classification of assets and corresponding
vaiuations

» Tests of detail on the reasonableness of
the valuation including assessment
against central reports provided by the
Audit Commissions expert valuer,

» Use of our own valuation expert. This will
only be required If the results of our other
work are unsatisfactory. We will consult
with you before using our own expert to
explain the reasons why we consider this
to be necessary.

Our approach will focus on:

» Testing the appropriateness of journal
entries recorded in the general ledger and
other adjustments made in the
preparation of the financial statements;

» Reviewing accounting estimates for
evidence of management bias;

» Evaluating the business rationale for
significant unusual transactions; and

» Assessing the findings from our work
responding to the allegations made about
the Council’'s appointment and use of
consultants.

Respective responsibilities in relation to fraud and error

We would fike to take this opportunity to remind you that management has the primary
responsibility to prevent and detect fraud. It is important that management, with the oversight
of those charged with governance, has put in place a culture of ethical behaviour and a
strong control environment that both deters and prevents fraud.

Our responsibiiity is to plan and perform audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free of material misstatements whether
caused by error or fraud. As auditors, we approach each engagement with a guestioning
mind that accepts the possibility that a material misstatement due to fraud could occur, and
design the appropriate procedures to consider such risk.

Page 36

i

smst & Young 4



=i ot Odestmeyienyd 2
Fingnowal Stalement R

ISKE

i

Based on the requirements of auditing standards our approach will focus on:

» lidentifying fraud risks during the planning stages.

» inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those
risks.

» Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s
processes over fraud.

» Consideration of the effectiveness of management'’s controls designed to address the risk
of fraud.

» Determining an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks of fraud.

» Performing mandatory procedures regardiess of specifically identified fraud risks.

We will consider the results of the National Fraud Initiative and may make reference to it in
our reporting to you.

Page 37



nomy, Efficiency & Effectivensss

m
o

M
Tl

¢

Economy, Efficiency & Effectiveness

Our work will focus on:

1.  Whether there are proper arrangements in place for securing financial resilience at the
Council; and

2. Whether there are proper arrangements in place at the Council to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.

Our planning and work to date has not identified any significant risks or specific risks for
which additional work is to be performed. However, given that the Council is operating in a
wider public environment under financial pressure, and our work on investigation of the
employment of consultants included the value for money of these arrangements, we will keep
these areas under review as our audit progresses.

Ernst & Young 8

Page 38



4.1

4.2

Our audit process and strategy

[

Objective and scope of our audit

Ur)der the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code"), dated March 2010, our
principle objectives are to review and report on, to the extent required by therelevant
legislation and the requirements of the Code, the Council’s:

i) financial statements; and

i) arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We issue a two-part audit report covering both of these objectives.

i} Financial Statement Audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (‘NAQ'), to the extent and in the
form required by them, on your Whole of Government Accounts return.

The Council has established a frading company — Constructors Health and Safety
Assessment Scheme (CHAS) - for its health and safety assessments for the construction
industry The Council will consolidate the results for this subsidiary in its financial statements
for 2013/14. As a company the subsidiary will need to put in place external audit
arrangements In accordance with the Companies Act requirements. If we are appointed as
the external auditor, we will plan our audit procedures for the subsidiary to identify
misstatements that could be material to the statutory financial statements of the individual
entity (CHAS). Appendix C provides an overview of the nature of the planned involvement in
the work to be performed by the external auditors of the subsidiary (the component auditors).

ii) Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness

The Code sets out our responsibility to satisfy ourseives that the Council has put in place
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
In arriving at our conclusion, to the fullest extent possible we will place refiance on the
reported results of the work of other statutory inspectorates in relation to corporate or service
performance. In examining the Council’s corporate performance management and financial
management arrangements we have regard to the following criteria and areas of focus
specified by the Audit Commission:

» Arrangements for securing financial resilience — whether the Council has robust systems
and processes to manage financial risks and opportunities effectively, and to secure a
stable financial position that enables it to continue to operate for the foreseeable future;
and

» Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness — whether the Council
is prioritising its resources within tighter budgets, for example by achieving cost
reductions and by improving efficiency and productivity.

Audit process overview

We are assessing your entity level controls. We have identified the key controls in your major
financial systems and are in the process of testing these in cooperation with Internal Audit. As
a result of our assessments we Intend to place reliance on the key controls in your financial
systems where this is the most efficient audit approach. Where this is not the most efficient
approach, we will adopt a substantive approach to gain the assurances we require.

Page 39



Our audit process and stralegy

We reported in last year’'s audit results report on the number of individual financial systems
you operate and the importance of manual reconciliations as a key element of your control
environment. Thersfore, we will not assess your IT general controls this year as this does not
provide the most efficient audit approach.

To the fullest extent permissible by auditing standards, we are placing reliance on the work of
internal audit wherever possible notwithstanding that changes to auditing standards prohibit
our directing the work of internal audit. -

Processes

QOur initial assessment of the key processes across the entity has identified the following key
processes where we will seek to test key controls, both manual and IT:

e Cash processing

Accounts receivable

o Procure to pay

o Payroll

e Pensions - |AS19 disclosures

e Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

e Business rates

e Council tax

e Housing Benefits and Rents

e Education — SIMS system

e Social Services (Carefirst).

As elements of the payroll process is outsourced to the shared service hosted by the London
Borough of Sutton, we will utilise the findings set out in the independent assurance report to
be provided to the Council (ISAE 3402),

Analytics

We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of
your financial data, in particular in respect of payroll, cash payments and receipts and journal

entries. These tools:

e help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more
traditional substantive audit tests; and

o give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling technigues.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant

weaknesses or inefficiencles identified and recommendations for improvement, to
management and the General Purposes Committee.

Internal audit

As in prior years, we will review internal audit ptans and the results of work undertaken. We
will reflect the findings from these reports, together with reports from other work completed in

3
tY

Page 40



4.3

Our audit process and sirategy

the year, in our detailed audit plan, where issues are raised that could impact the year-end
financial statements.

Use of experts

We wil_l utilise specialist EY resource, as necsssary, to help us to form a view on judgments
made in the financial statements. Our plan currently includes the involvement of specialists
in pensions, valuations, financial reporting and tax.

Mandatory procedures required by auditing standards

In addition to the financial statement risks outlined in section 2, we have to perform other
procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other
regulations. We outline below the procedures we will undertake during the course of our
audit.

> Addressing the risk of fraud and error. Significant disclosures included in the financial
statements.

» Entity-wide controls.

> Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it
is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements.

» Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code

» Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the
financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement and the Remuneration
Report.

> Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government accounts return, in line with the
instructions issued by the NAQ.

» Reviewing, and where appropriate, examining evidence that is relevant to the Council's
corporate performance management and financial management arrangements and
reporting on these arrangements.

Materiality

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define
materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the
aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to
influence the users of the financial statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional
judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative
considerations implicit in the definition. We have not yet finalised our overall materiality for
the Council's consolidated financial statements, but this will be set in the range of between
£4.909 million and £9.818 million based on 1% - 2% of gross operating expenditure. We will
communicate our final materiality levels to members at a future committee meeting. We will
communicate the level above which we will communicate uncorrected audit misstatements to
you at a future committee meeting.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial
determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the circumstances
that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will
form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could be significant to users of the
accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we Identify, and our evaluation
of materiality at that date.

Page 41



4.4

4.5

4.6

Cur audit process and strategy

Fees

The Audit Commission has published a scale fee for all authorities. The scale fee is defined
as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Audit Commission
Act in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice 2010. The indicative fee scale for the audit
of the Council Is £188,730. In addition, the Commission has set an indicative fee of £54,500
for the certification of grant claims.

The indicative scale fee may be subject to variation to reflect the following factors:

» The work carried out in response to the allegations made by whistle-blowers in the
Council over the appointment and use of consultants. This work is in addition to our
existing responsibilities under the Code.

» The consolidation of the results of the Council’s trading subsidiary Constructors Health
and Safety Assessment Scheme (CHAS) into the Council's financial statements in
accordance with the relevant accounting requirements. This requirement to produce
consolidated financial statements affects the scope and extent of our audit work on the
Council's financial statements. Theaudit engagement will be in addition to our role as
appointed auditor to the Councll.

Any variations to the indicative scale fees for these factors will need to be discussed and
agreed with the Council. Any variations will also need to be considered by the Audit
Commission and subject to their determination. We will report any agreed variations to the 4
General Purposes Committee.

Your audit team

The engagement team is led by David Wilkinson, Partner. David is supported by Paul King,
Director, who has significant experience on council audits. David is also supported by
Michael Yeats who is responsible for the day-to-day direction of audit work, and who is the
key point of contact for the chief accountant.

Timetable of communication, deliverables and insights

We have set out below a timetable showing the key stages of the audit, including the value
for money work and the Whole of Government accounts; and the deliverabies we have
agreed to provide to you through the audit committee cycle in 2014. These dates are
determined to ensure our alignment with the Audit Commission’s rolling calendar of
deadlines.

We will provide a formal report to the General Purposes Committee in September 2014,
incorporating the outputs from our 2013/14 audit. We will also provide a progress report to
the March and June 2014 meetings of the General Purpose Committee on our progress on
the various elements of our audit. From time to time matters may arise that require immediate
communication with the General Purposes Committee and we will discuss them with the
General Purposes Committee Chair as appropriate.

Page 42



Our audit process and strategy

Following the conclusion of our audit we will prepare an annual audit letter in order to
communicate to the Council and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the
key issues arising from our work.

General
Purposes
Committee
Audit phase Timetable timetable Deliverables
High level December Audit Fee letter (presented to 27 June
planning; 2013/ 2013 General Purposes Committea)
January 2014
Risk assfessment December/ 12 March Audit Plan
scopes Committee
Testing of routine January/ 26 June 2014 Audit Progress Report
processes and February 2094 - Committee
controls |
Year-end audit  July - 25 September Report to those charged with
September 2014 governance

| Committee

Audit report (inciuding our opinion on
the financial statements and a
conclusion as to whether the Council
has put in place proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources).

Audit completion certificate

November 6 November  Annual Audit Letter
2014
Committee

In addition to the above formal reporting and deliverables we will seek to provide practical
business insights and updates on regulatory matters. We will bring updates to the General
Purposes Committee as these are available.

Page 43



5.1

inde

pendence

independence

Introduction

The APB Ethical Standards and ISA (UK and Ireland) 260 “Communication of audit matters
with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our independence and objectivity. The
Ethical Standards, as revised in December 2010, require that we communicate formally both
at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the
audit if appropriate. The aim of these communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by
us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

Required communications

Planning stage

Final stage

b

The principal threats, if any, to objectivity
and Independence identified by EY
including consideration of all
relationships between the you, your
affiliates and directors and us;

The safeguards adepted and the
reasons why they are considered to be
effective, including any Engagement
Quality review;

The overall assessment of threats and
safeguards;

Information about the general policies
and process within EY to maintain
objectivity and independence.

>

A written disclosure of relationships
(including the provision of non-audit
services) that bear on our objectivity and
independence, the threats to our
independence that these create, any
safeguards that we have put in place
and why they address such threats,
together with any other Information
necessary to enable our objectivity and
independence to be assessed,

Details of non-audit services provided
and the fees charged in relation thereto;

Written confirmation that we are
independent;

Details of any inconsistencies between
APB FEthical Standards, the Audit
Commission’s Standing Guidance and
your policy for the supply of non-audit
services by EY and any apparent breach
of that policy; and

An opportunity to discuss auditor
independence issues.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you
whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and independence
and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an
engagement to provide non-audit services.

We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements, the amounts of any future
services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to provide non-audit
services that has been submitied;

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you
and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period, analysed in
appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Page 44




5.2

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to
bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats, if any. However
we have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the
reasons why they are considered to be effective.

Seif- interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in your entity. Examples
include where we have an investment in your entity; where we receive significant fees in
respect of non-audit services; where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we
enter into a business relationship with you. At the time of writing, there are no long
outstanding fees.

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we
will comply with the policies that you have approved and that are in compliance with the Audit
Commission’s Standing Guidance

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have
objectives or are rewarded in relation fo sales of non-audit services to you. We confirm that
no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has
objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance with Ethical Standard 4.
There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others
within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in the financial
statements.

There are no self review threats at the date of this report

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management
of your entity. Management threats may also arise during the provision of a non-audit service
in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that
work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.

There are no other threats at the date of this report

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the
principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY Is independent and the objectivity

and independence of David Wilkinson, your audit engagement partner and the audit
engagement team have not been compromised.

Page 45



5.3

Indepandence

Other required communications

EY has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and
ensure that the highest standards of cbjectivity, independence and integrity are maintained.

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and
independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm is required to
publish by law, The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 28 June 2013
and can be found here:

http://www.ev.com/UK/en/About-us/EY-UK-Transparency-Report-2013

Page 46



Appendix A Fees

A breakdown of our agreed fee is shown below.

Planned Fee Actual Fee Explanation of
201314 2012/13 variance
£ £
Total Audit Fee — Code work 188,730~ 188,730#%
Certification of claims and 54,500 50,597
returns®
Non-audit work (provide details) 0 0

~ excludes any fee variations that may be agreed for the work and reporting in response to
allegations raised by whistie-biowers and the consolidation of the results of the Council’'s
trading subsidiary CHAS into the Council's financial statements, as set out above # - fee
excludes work in response to questions raised by a local elector — we are in discussions with
the Council and Audit Commission over the quantum to be charged.

*Qur fee for the certification of grant claims in 2013/14 is based on the indicative scale fee set
by the Audit Commission.

Indicative fee

The agreed fee presented above is based on the following assumptions:

>

>

>

>

Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;
We are able to place reliance, as planned, on the work of internal audit;

The level of risk in relation to the audit of accounts in consistent with that in the prior
year (where we have prior year experience),

No significant changes being made by the Audit Commission to the use of resources
criteria on which our conclusion will be based;

Our accounts opinion and use of resources conclusion being unqualified
Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the audited body

Effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation to the agreed
fee. This will be discussed with you in advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and formal objections
will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

Page 47



[$129

There are certain communications that we must provide to the audit committee of audited

recuved communications with those charget with governance

UK required communications with

those charged with governance.

clients. These are detailed here:

1

1 4
>
>
>

Fraud

>

T ¥y YeYw

»
>

>

Reguired communication Reference
Planning and audit approach Audit Plan
Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit

including any limitations.

Significant findings from the audit Report to those
Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting  charged with
practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and governance
financial statement disclosures

» Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were
discussed with management
Written representations that we are seeking
Expected modifications to the audit report
Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial
reporting process

Misstatements Report to those
Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion ~ charged with
The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods ~ governance
A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
In writing, corrected misstatements that are significant

Report to those
Enquiries of the audit committee to determine whether they have ~charged with
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the governance
entity
Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained
that indicates that a fraud may exist
A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Related parties Report to those

Significant matters arising during the audit In connection with the ~ charged with

entity’s related parties including, when applicable: govémnance
Non-disclosure by management
Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
Disagreement cver disclosures
Non-compliance with laws and regulations
Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

External confirmations Report to t_hose
Management's refusal for us to request confirmations charged with
Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other ~governance
procedures

Conslideration of iaws and regulations Report to t_hose
Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non- charged with

governance

compliance is material and believed to be intentional. This

communication is subject to compliance with legislation on tipping

off

Page 48



UK required communications with those charged with governance

Required communication

» Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material
effect on the financial statements and that the audit committee
may be aware of

Independence

Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY's
objectivity and independence

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner's
consideration of independence and objectivity such as:

» The principal threats

Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

Information about the general policies and process within the firm
to maintain objectivity and independence

For listed companies, communication of minimum requirements as
detailed in the ethical standards:

» Relationships between EY, the audited body and senior
management ,

» Services provided by EY that may reasonably bear on the
auditors’ objectivity and independence

» Related safeguards

» Fees charged by EY analysed into appropriate categories such
as statutory audit fees, tax advisory fees, other non-audit service
fees

» A statement of compliance with the ethical standards

» The audit committee should also be provided an opportunity to
discuss matters affecting auditor independence

Going concern

Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, including:

vy v VY

» Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

» Whether the use of the going concermn assumption is appropriate
in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
» The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit Plan

Report to those
charged with
governance

Report to those
charged with
governance

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the Report to those

audit

Group audits

» An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial
information of the components

» An overview of the nature of the group audit team's planned
involvement in the work to be performed by the component
auditors on the financial information of significant components

» Instances where the group audit team's evaluation of the work of
a component auditor gave rise to a concern about the guality of
that auditor's work

» Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group
engagement team's access to information may have been
restricted

» Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management,
component management, employees who have significant roles
in group-wide controls or others where the fraud resulted in a
material misstatement of the group financial statements

charged with
governance

Audit Plan

Page 49



UK requued communicabions wilh those charged with oovernance

Required communication

Reference

Certification work
> Summary of certification work undertaken

Fee Information
> Breakdown of fee information at the agreement of the initial
audit plan

» Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

Annual Report to those
charged with
governance
summarising grant
certification, and
Annual Audit Letter if
considered necessary

Audit Plan

Report to those
charged with
governance and
Annual Audit Letter if
considered necessary

Page 50



Detailed Scopes

Appendix C  Detailed Scopes

Our objective is to form an opinion on the group’s consolidated financial statements under
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We set audit scopes for each reporting unit which, when taken together, enable us to form an
opinion on the group accounts (those for the Council and its subsidiary CHAS). We take into
account the size, risk profile, changes in the business environment and other factors when
assessing the level of work to be performed at each reporting unit.

» Full scope: locations deemed significant based on size and those with significant risk
factors are subject to a full scope audit, covering all significant accounts and processes
using materiality levels assigned by the EY audit team for purposes of the consolidated
audit. Procedures are full-scope in nature, but may not be sufficient to issue a stand-
alone audit opinion on the local statutory financial statements (as materiality thresholds
support to the consolidated audit).

ISA 600 (UK and Ireland) requires that we provide you with an overview of the nature of our
planned involvement in the work to be performed by the component auditors of significant
locations/reporting units. On the basis we are appointed auditors, and to ensure an efficient
audit, our involvement can be summarised as follows:

> Al full scope locations will attend the Group audit team’s planning events to be held in
London in January and February

»  Audit will review working papers relating to the key disclosures in the Council’s financiai
statements

> Attendance at EY internal closing meetings.

Page 51



o LLE

(reseatalsel

WIE Y 5 i bl o Brevd iy NAARGI S ER

IR sy

CATY PRt B AN ST e st Lapstan

W rorouny Lonasn SBEL Stk
ey.aom

sl & Young

Page 52



Agenda Item 7

Audit Plan

Year end 31 March 2014

London Borough of Merton Pension Fund

March 2014

Ernst & Young LLP

i HH“HHH%:“,,

NSRRIV ST

Buliding a better
working worid

Page 53



Ernst & Young LLP Tel +44 118 928 1500
Apex Plaza
Forbury Road ev.com

Building a better
working world

General Purposes Committee

Merton Council 28 February 2014
Merton Civic Centre

London Road

Morden

SM4 5DX

Dear Members

Audit Plan

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan, which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as
auditor. The purpose of this report is to provide the General Purposes Committee with a basis for
reviewing our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2013-14 audit in accordance with the
requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of Audit Practice, the Standing Guidance,
auditing standards and other professional requirements. It also ensures that our audit is aligned with the
Committee’s service expectations.

This report summarises our assessment of the key risks which drive the development of an effective
audit for the London Borough of Merton Pension Fund, and outlines our planned audit strategy in
response to those risks.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 12 March 2014 — and also at the Pension
Fund Advisory Committee on 19 March 2014 - as well as understand whether there are other matters
which you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Q/\/ & MAA

Peter O'Neill
For and behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Enc

Page 54



F
Contents

Ve OVEIVIBW .oiaiiisisanosinivinis s §ssssis oo sesisssssss Soms e AR A S AN ES5 35 S RN A TS TSRS N AET NSO A 3
2. Financial Statement RiSKS......ccccccevinnininmnssssnssssse s 4
3. Our audit process and Strategy ........cccveriirinisniini s 5
4.  INACPENUBINGCE i.cuimsuinmmnssssesssssnssssnssiseessssssssessisyausssssssssaus s avassyesssmussesssssasssstrassyssaerses 9
ADPENAIX A FBBS suiivsivamvsisssmsasmssuissasnamssermisis sasssssinss 6y sarsssnnssssiossinvensissass sssssanosssssnesssssss 12

Appendix B UK required communications with those charged with governance. ...13

Emst & Young {2

Page 55



QOverview

)

verview

C

Context for the audit
This audit plan covers the work that we plan to perform in order to provide you with our audit
opinion on whether the financial statements of the London Borough of Merton Pension Fund
give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund during the year
ended 31 March 2014 and of the income and expenditure for the year then ended..
When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

» Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements.

» Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards.

> The quality of systems and processes.

» Changes in the business and regulatory environment.

» Management's views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter. This means that
our feedback is more likely to be relevant to you.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in
accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

In part 2 of this report we provide more detail on the areas which we believe present
significant risk to the financial statements audit. We also outline our plans to address these
risks.

Details of our audit process and strategy are set out in Section 3.

EY |3

Page 56



[\

Financial Statement Risks

7).
Pl

Cin . | - p : o
Financial Statement Risks

We outline below our assessment of the financial statement risks facing you, identified
through our knowledge of the entity’s operations and discussion with members and officers.

We aim to validate these with you at our meeting.

There is one significant risk identified for this audit. This risk applies to all clients.

Significant risks {including fraud risks} Our audit approach

Risk of management override

As identified in ISA (UK & Ireland) 240, Our approach will focus on:

management is in a unique positionto ,  testing the appropriateness of journal
perpetrate fraud. This is because of its ability entries in the general ledger and other
to manipulate accounting records (directly or adjustments made in the preparation of
indirectly) and to prepare fraudulent financial the financial statements:

statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.
We identify and respond to this fraud risk on
every audit engagement.

» reviewing accounting estimates for
evidence of management bias; and

» evaluating the business rationale for
significant unusual transactions.

There are no other financial statement risks arising from our planning and work to date.
Respective responsibilities in relation to fraud and error

We would like to take this opportunity to remind you that management has the primary
responsibility to prevent and detect fraud. It is important that management, with the oversight
of those charged with governance, has a culture of ethical behaviour and a strong control
environment that both deters and prevents fraud.

Our responsibility is to plan and perform audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free of material misstatements caused by
either error or fraud. As auditors, we approach each engagement with a questioning mind
that accepts the possibility of a material misstatement due to fraud, and design the
appropriate procedures to consider such a risk.

Based on the requirements of auditing standards our approach will focus on:

identifying fraud risks during the planning stages.
asking management about the risks of fraud and controls to address those risks.
understanding how those charged with governance oversee management’s processes
over fraud.

» considering the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of
fraud.
determining an appropriate strategy to address those risks.
performing mandatory procedures, regardless of specifically identified fraud risks.

Page 57



3.1

3.2

o #

i he e o E &
Our audit process and strategy

Objective and scope of our audit

Under the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’), dated March 2010, our
principal objectives are to review and report on, to the extent required by the relevant
legislation and the requirements of the Code, your financial statements.

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

Audit process overview

Our audit involves:

> assessing the key internal controls in place and testing the operation of these controls;
> where relevant, review and re-performance of the work of your internal auditors;

» reliance on the work of other auditors where appropriate;

> reliance on the work of experts in relation to areas such as valuation of the Pension
Fund; and

» substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

Processes

Our initial assessment of the key processes across the entity has identified the following key
processes, both manual and IT:

> Contributions receivable

» Fund administration - Lump sum and retirement benefits
> Transfers in and out of the Pension Fund

» Cash and bank processes

» Pension payroll

» Investments; and

» Financial statements close procedures.

We will also undertake work in accordance with our IAS 19 protocol to provide information on
which relevant admitted bodies of the London Borough of Merton Pension Fund can place
reliance when preparing their financial statements.

Analytics
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of
your financial data, in particular in respect of payroll, cash payments and receipts and journal

entries. We will carry out this work in conjunction with that for the Merton Council audit. These
tools:

Ernst & Young | 5

Page 58



Our audit process and strategy

o help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more
traditional substantive audit tests; and

o give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.

We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant
weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for improvement, to
management and the General Purposes Committee.

Use of Administering Authority Payroll Data

As the majority of contributions paid to the Pension Fund are from the Council as
administering authority, we would request access to salary data for the Council's employees
to assist us with the audit.

Internal audit

As in prior years, we will review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will
reflect the findings from these reports, together with reports from other work completed in the
year, in our detailed audit plan, where issues are raised that could have an impact on the
year-end financial statements.

Use of experts

In producing the financial statements, management will place reliance on the work
undertaken by experts, We anticipate being able to undertake sufficient procedures such that
we will be able to place reliance on the work undertaken by management’s experts.

We also anticipate relying on the work of the experts commissioned by the Audit Commission
in respect of the work undertaken by the pension scheme actuary appointed by Merton.

We will utilise specialist EY resource, as necessary, to help us to form a view on judgments
made in the financial statements. Our plan currently includes the involvement of specialists
in pensions.

Mandatory procedures required by auditing standards

In addition to the financial statement risks outlined in section 2, we must perform other
procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other
regulations. We outline below the procedures we will undertake during the course of our
audit.

» Addressing the risk of fraud and error.

> Significant disclosures included in the financial statements.

> Entity-wide controls.

> Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it
is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements.

» Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
» Reviewing, and reporting as appropriate, other information published with the financial
statements, including the Annual Report.

> Reviewing, and where appropriate examining, evidence relevant to your corporate
performance management and financial management arrangements and reporting on
these arrangements.

EY |6

Page 59



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Cur aud

orocess and strategy

Materiality

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define
materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in aggregate,
in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the
users of the financial statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and
necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We have determined that overall materiality for the financial statements of the
Pension Fund is £9.124million based on 2% of net assets.

We will communicate uncorrected audit misstatements greater than £456,000 to you.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial
determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all the circumstances that
may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form
our final opinion by reference to all matters that could be significant to users of the accounts,
including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of
materiality at that date.

Fees

The Audit Commission has published a scale fee for all authorities. This is defined as the fee
required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Audit Commission Act in
accordance with the Code of Audit Practice 2010. The indicative fee scale for the audit of the
London Borough of Merton Pension Fund is £21,000.

Your audit team

The engagement team is led by Peter O’Neill who leads EY’s pension’s assurance team.
Peter is supported by Michael Yeats who is responsible for the day-to-day direction of audit
work, and who is the key point of contact for your finance and pension teams. Peter is
planning to retire later this year at which point we will update the General Purposes
Committee on the new Pensions engagement partner.

David Wilkinson leads our overall engagement with Merton Council and our relationship with
the General Purposes Committee.

Timetable of communication, deliverables and insights

We have set out below a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables
we have agreed to provide to you through the committee cycle in 2013-14. These dates are
determined to ensure our alignment with the Audit Commission’s rolling calendar of
deadlines.

We will provide a formal report to the General Purposes Committee in September 2014,
incorporating the outputs from our 2013-14 audit. We will also provide a progress report to
the March and June 2014 meetings of the General Purpose Committee, and to the pension
Fund Advisory Committee, on our progress on the various elements of our audit. From time to
time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the General Purposes
Committee and we will discuss them with the General Purposes Committee Chair, and Chair
of the Pension Fund Advisory Committee, as appropriate.

Following the conclusion of our audit we will prepare an annual audit letter to communicate to

you and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the key issues arising from
our work.

Page 60



Our audit process and strategy

General
Purposes
Committee
Audit phase Timetable timetable Deliverables
High level December Audit Fee letter {presented to 27
planning: 20137 June 2013 General Purposes
January 2014 ‘ Committee)
Risk assessment December/ 12 March Audit Plan
and setting of January 2014 Audit Progress Report
scopes , ... Committee -
Testing of January/ 26 June 2014 Audit Progress Report
routine February 2014 Committee
processes and
controls PO
Year-end audit July - 25 September Report to those charged with
September 2014 governance
Committee
Audit report {including our opinion
on the financial statements)
‘ Audit completion certificate
November 8 November  Annual Audit Letter
2014
Committee

In addition to the above formal reporting and deliverables we will seek to provide practical
business insights and updates on regulatory matters.

EY |8

Page 61



4.1

Independence

Introduction

The APB Ethical Standards and ISA (UK and Ireland) 260 “Communication of audit matters
with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our independence and objectivity. The
Ethical Standards, as revised in December 2010, require that we communicate formally both
at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the
audit if appropriate. The aim of these communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by
us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

» The principal threats, if any, to objectivity | » A written disclosure of relationships

and independence identified by EY (including the provision of non-audit
including consideration of all services) that bear on our objectivity and
relationships between you, your affiliates independence, the threats to our
and directors and us; independence that these create, any
safeguards that we have put in place
» The safeguards adopted and the and why they address such threats,
reasons why they are considered to be together with any other information
effective, including any Engagement necessary to enable our objectivity and
Quality review; independence to be assessed,;

» The overall assessment of threats and | » Details of non-audit services provided
safeguards; and the fees charged in relation thereto;

» Information about the general policies | » Written confirmation that we are
and process within EY to maintain independent;
objectivity and independence.

» Details of any inconsistencies between
APB Ethical Standards, the Audit
Commission’s Standing Guidance and
your policy for the supply of non-audit
services by EY and any apparent breach
of that policy; and

> An opportunity to discuss auditor
independence issues.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you
whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and independence
and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an
engagement to provide non-audit services.

We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements, the amounts of any future
services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to provide non-audit
services that has been submitted;

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you

and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period, analysed in
appropriate categories, are disclosed.

EY i9

Page 62




4.2

independence

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to
bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats, if any. However
we have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the
reasons why they are considered to be effective.

Self- interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in your entity. Examples
include where we have an investment in your entity; where we receive significant fees in
respect of non-audit services; where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we
enter into a business relationship with you. At the time of writing, there are no long
outstanding fees.

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we
will comply with the policies that you have approved and that are in compliance with the Audit
Commission’s Standing Guidance

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have
objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you. We confirm that
no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has
objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance with Ethical Standard 4.

We have considered the relevant guidance and confirm there are no other self interest
threats at the date of this report.

Self review threats
Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others
within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in the financial

statements.

We have considered the relevant guidance and confirm there are no self review threats at the
date of this report

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management
of your entity. Management threats may also arise during the provision of a non-audit service
in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that
work.

We have considered the relevant guidance and confirm there are no management threats at
the date of this report

Other threats
Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.

We have considered the relevant guidance and confirm there are no other threats at the date
of this report

Overall Assessment
Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the
principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent and the objectivity

and independence of Peter O'Neill, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement
team have not been compromised.

Page 63



4.3

Independence

Other required communications

EY has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and
ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence and integrity are maintained.

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and
independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm is required to
publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 28 June 2013
and can be found here:

http vww.ey.com/UK/en/About-us/EY-UK-Transparency-Report-2013

Page 64



Fees

Appendix A Fees

A breakdown of our agreed fee is shown below.

Planned Fee Actual Fee Explanation of

2013-14 2012-13 variance
£ £
Total Audit Fee — Code work 21,000 21,000
Non-audit work (provide details) - 0 0

Indicative fee

The agreed fee presented above is based on the following assumptions:

> Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

» We are able to place reliance, as planned, on the work of internal audit;

» The level of risk in relation to the audit of accounts in consistent with that in the prior
year (where we have prior year experience);

» Our accounts opinion being unqualified
» Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the audited body
» Effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation to the agreed
fee. This will be discussed with you in advance.

Page 65



UK required communications with those charged with governance.

Appendix B UK required communications with
(8 |

There are certain communications that we must provide to the audit committee of audited
clients. These are detailed here:

Required communication Reference

Planning and audit approach Audit Plan

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit
including any limitations.

Significant findings from the audit Report to those

» Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting charged with
practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and governance
financial statement disclosures
Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were
discussed with management
Written representations that we are seeking
Expected modifications to the audit report
Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial
reporting process

Misstatements Report to those
Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion charged with

>

» The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods ~ 9°Vermance

» A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected

» In writing, corrected misstatements that are significant

Fraud Report to those

» Enquiries of the audit committee to determine whether they have ~charged with
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the governance
entity

» Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained
that indicates that a fraud may exist

» A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Related parties Report to those
Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the charged with
entity's related parties including, when applicable: governance

» Non-disclosure by management
» Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions

» Disagreement over disclosures

» Non-compliance with laws and regulations

» Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

External confirmations Report to those

» Management's refusal for us to request confirmations charged with

» Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other ~90Vernance
procedures

Consideration of laws and regulations Report to those

» Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non- charged with
compliance is material and believed to be intentional. This governance

communication is subject to compliance with legislation on tipping
off

Page 66

w



UK required communications with those charged with governance.

i

D
19
-

Required communication Refe

ence

b

» Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material
effect on the financial statements and that the audit committee
may be aware of

Independence Audit Plan

Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s
objectivity and independence
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s
consideration of independence and objectivity such as:
The principal threats
Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
Information about the general policies and process within the firm
to maintain objectivity and independence
For listed companies, communication of minimum requirements as
detailed in the ethical standards:
» Relationships between EY, the audited body and senior
management
» Services provided by EY that may reasonably bear on the
auditors’ objectivity and independence
Related safeguards
Fees charged by EY analysed into appropriate categories such
as statutory audit fees, tax advisory fees, other non-audit service
fees
A statement of compliance with the ethical standards
The audit committee should also be provided an opportunity to
discuss matters affecting auditor independence

Going concern Report to those
Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the charged with
entity's ability to continue as a going concern, including: governance
Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
» Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate
in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
» The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

vV VvV VvV V¥

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the Report to those

audit charged with
governance
Fee Information Annual Report to those
» Breakdown of fee information at the agreement of the initial charged with
audit plan governance
> Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit Annual Audit Letter

EY |14

Page 67



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP

ay.com

Ernst & Young |1

Page 68



Agenda Item 8

Merton Council

Audit Progress Report to General Purposes Committee

March 2014

Ernst & Young LLP

M

EY

Buiiding a better
working world Page 69



% Ernst & Young LLP Tel +44 0118 928 1243 ™y

N Apex Plaza %

% Forbury Road ey.com ¥ &
e READING aaume

Building a better RG1 1YE INVESTOR IN PEOPLE

working worid

General Purposes Committee 4 March 2014
Merton Council

Merton Council

Civic Centre

London Road

Merton

SM4 5DX

Dear committee members

Audit Progress Report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Progress Report.

The purpose of this report is to provide the General Purposes Committee with an overview of the stage
reached in your 2013-14 audit and ensure our audit is aligned with the Committee's service
expectations.

Our audit will be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998, the
Code of Audit Practice, the Audit Commission Standing Guidance, auditing standards and other
professional requirements.

This report updates the Committee on our work at the Council. Our programme of work on assessment
of your underlying financial information systems and arrangements for securing value for money is in
progress.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you as well as understand whether there are
other matters which you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Paul King

Director

For and behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Enc

EY ii

Page 70



Work programme

Contents

1. WOTIK Programme.......ccoiiiiininisniisiiimssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnessassssssssssssssssasanessnsssssnssanss 2
2. TIMEtable..... .o aisisiiiimsmaiiinmsms s rssmsssss s assiusmrms e sssiesvisansisns i st s s yrasy sy esnn 3
Appendix 1: Audit Progress........ociminiiinssssssssnsssssssssie. 4
Appendix 2: Letter to management.........ccccninininnnnni s 5
Appendix 3: Letter to those charged with governance...........ccocvniininnnnn., 7

In March 2010 the Audit Commission issued a revised version of the ‘Statement of
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’ (‘Statement of responsibilities’). It is
available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the Audit Commission’'s
website.

The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between the
Audit Commission’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the
different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be
expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The Standing Guidance serves as our terms of appointment as auditors appointed by the
Audit Commission. The Standing Guidance sets out additional requirements that auditors
must comply with, over and above those set out in the Code of Audit Practice 2010 (the
Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring
nature.

This Annual Audit Letter is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is
addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as
appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure - If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be
improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual
partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1
More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do
all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of
course take matters up with our profep‘taﬁ@ﬁtﬁWe can provide further information on how you may contact
our professional institute.




111

1.1.2

113

Work programme

2012-13 audit

We include our certification and claims report, setting out our work on the certification of the
three claims and returns, as a separate agenda item.

2013-14 audit

We presented the fee letter for the 2013-14 audit to the 27 June 2013 General Purposes
Committee.

We have held monthly introductory meetings with your finance team over the scope and
content of the 2013-14 audit.

We include our audit planning report, setting out our approach to carrying out our 2013-14
audit, as a separate agenda item.

We include our report on our investigation into the allegations made around the appointment
and use of consultants by the Council as a separate agenda item.

Letters to management and those charged with governance

We have contacted management and those charged with governance requesting assurances
in a number of areas. These requests are set out in Appendix 2 for management and
Appendix 3 for those charged with governance. These apply to both the audit for the Council
and for the Pension Fund.

Value for money assessment

We have completed our initial risk assessment for our value for money work;, and have not
identified any specific risks that we need to undertake additional local risk based work to
address.

Our work to support the overall value for money conclusion is in progress and we will
consider this in the light of our work on the financial statements.

Pension Fund 2013-14 audit

We include our audit planning report, setting out our approach to carrying out our 2013-14
audit, as a separate agenda item.

We have carried out our initial planning and have not identified any significant risks. We are
carrying out our walkthroughs of the main systems and, at this stage, there are no issues we
wish to bring to the attention of the Committee. We will take a substantive approach of tests
of transactions as part of our year end programme of testing.

Page 72



A

Timetable

¥

?Lgsg‘%

limetable

General Purposes Committee timeline

We have set out below a timetable showing the key stages of the audit, including the value
for money work and the whole of government accounts, and the deliverables we have agreed
to provide to you through the 2013-14 General Purposes Committee cycle.

urposes
Committee
Audit phase Timetable timetable Deliverahles
High level December Audit Fee letter (presented to 27 June
planning: 20131/ 2013 General Purposes Committee)
January 2014
Risk assessment December/ 12 March Audit Plan
and setting of January 2014 Audit Progress Report
scopes Committee
Testing of routine  January/ 26 June 2014 Audit Progress Report
processes and February 2014 Committee
controls
Year-end audit July — 25 September Report to those charged with
September 2014 governance
Committee

Audit report (including our opinion on
the financial statements and a
conclusion as to whether the Council
has put in place proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources).

Audit completion certificate

’ ‘NO\‘/ember 6 ch;\’)‘embekrk ‘ Annual Audit Letter
2014
Committee

We will provide formal reports to the General Purposes Committee throughout our audit
process as outlined below. Where required, we will issue an Interim Report, summarising the
findings from our audit at that stage. From time to time matters may arise that require
immediate communication with the General Purposes Committee and we will discuss them
with the General Purposes Committee Chair as appropriate.

Following the conclusion of our audit we will prepare an Annual Audit Letter in order to
communicate to the Council and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the
key issues arising from our work.

In addition to the above formal reporting and deliverables we will seek to provide practical
business insights and updates on regulatory matters through our Sector Briefings.

EY |3

Page 73



Appendix 1: Audit Progress

Appendix 1: Audit Progress

Progress against key

deliverables

Key deliverable

Fee Letter

Audit Plan

Report to Those
Charged with
Governance

Audit Report
{including
opinion and vfm
conclusion)

WGA
Submission to
NAD

Audit Certificate

Annual Audit
Letter {covering
the Council and
pension Fund
audits)

Timetable in
plan

by June 2013

March 2014

by 30 September
2014 -
submission
deadline

by 30 September
2014 -
submission
deadline

before early
QOctober 2014 -
submission
deadline

by 30 September
2014

QOctober 2014

Completed

Comments
Presented to 27 June 2013
General Purposes Commitiee

Agenda item for this
Committee

Report to 25 September 2014
General Purposes Committee

Audit certificate will be issued
on completion of our audit

Report to November 2014
General Purposes Committee

Page 74



i Rl e BB R FER BN
Appendix 2: Letter to management

Private and confidential
Caroline Holland

Corporate Services Department
London Borough of Merton
Civic Centre

London Road

Morden

SM4 5DX

Dear Caroline

28 February 2014

Ref
Your ref
e

Direct line

Email: DWilkinson@uk.ey.com

Understanding your management processes and arrangements

Auditing standards (ISA 240) require us to formally

update our understanding of your

management processes and arrangements annually. Therefore, we are writing to ask that you
please provide a response to the following questions. Please ensure the response covers
the processes and arrangements applying to both the Council and the Pension Fund.

1.  What are the management processes in relation to:

» undertaking an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated due to fraud or error (including the nature, extent and
frequency of these assessments);

» identifying and responding to risks of fraud in the Authority, including any specific |
risks of fraud which management have identified or that have been brought to its
attention, or classes of transactions, account balances, or disclosure for which a
risk of fraud is likely to exist;

» communicating to employees its views on business practice and ethical behaviour
(for example by updating, communicating and monitoring against the Authority's
code of conduct);

» encouraging employees to report their concerns about fraud; and

» communicating to the General Purposes Committee (i.e. those charged with
governance) the processes for identifying and responding to fraud or error?

2. What are Management's views about whether there are areas within the organisation
that are at risk of fraud?

3. Does Management have knowledge of any actual or suspected or alleged instances of
fraud?

4. Is Management satisfied that internal controls to prevent and detect fraud, including
segregation of duties, exist and work effectively?

5. Are there any deficiencies in internal control?

6. Are you aware of any instances where controls have been overridden?

7. ls there is any organisational or management pressure to meet financial or operating

targets?

Page 75



Appendix 2. Letter to management

8. Are there any particular areas of the accounts that are more susceptible to false entries
or omissions or other forms of manipulation? Are management aware of any such
manipulation having occurred?

9. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been
complied with? Have there been any instances of non-compliance during 2013-14?

10. Are there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would affect the financial
statements?

11. How does Management satisfy itself that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements?

Please would you provide a response by email or letter either on behalf of management or
from yourself in your capacity as Director of Finance and Procurement.

Please contact me if you wish to discuss anything in relation to this request. If possible,
please could we have your response by 1st April 2014.

Yours sincerely

David Wilkinson

Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
United Kingdom

EY i6

Page 76



Appendix 3: Letter to those charged with governance

Appendix 3: Letter to those charged with governance

Private and confidential

Counsellor Peter McCabe 28 February 2014
London Borough of Merton o
Civic Centre Your ref
London Road »
Direct ling.
Morden
SM4 5DX Email DWilkinson@uk.ey.com
Dear Peter

Understanding how the General Purposes Committee gains
assurance from management

Auditing standards require us to formally update our understanding of your management
processes and arrangements annually. Therefore, | am writing to ask that you please provide
a response to the following questions. Please ensure the response covers the processes
and arrangements applying to both the Council and the Pension Fund.

1. How does the General Purposes Committee, as ‘those charged with governance'’ at the
Council, exercise oversight of management's processes in relation to:

» undertaking an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated due to fraud or error (including the nature, extent and
frequency of these assessments);

» identifying and responding to risks of fraud in the Council, including any specific
risks of fraud which management have identified or that have been brought to its
attention, or classes of transactions, account balances, or disclosure for which a
risk of fraud is likely to exist;

» communicating to employees its view on business practice and ethical behaviour
(for example by updating, communicating and monitoring against the Council code
of conduct);

» encouraging employees to report their concerns about fraud; and

» communicating to you the processes for identifying and responding to fraud or
error?

2. How does the General Purposes Committee oversee management processes for
identifying and responding to the risk of fraud and possible breaches of internal control?

3. Is the Committee aware of any:
» breaches of, or deficiencies in, internal control; and
> actual, suspected or alleged frauds during 2013-147?
4. s the Committee aware any organisational or management pressure to meet financial or

operating targets?

EY |7

Page 77



Appendix 3: Letter to those charged with governance

5. How does the General Purposes Committee gain assurance that all relevant laws and
regulations have been complied with? Are you aware of any instances of non-
compliance during 2013-147

6. s the General Purposes Committee aware of any actual or potential litigation or claims
that would affect the financial statements?

7. How does the General Purposes Committee satisfy itself that it is appropriate to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements?

Please contact me if you wish to discuss anything in relation to this request. If possible,
please could we have your response by 1st April 2014.

Yours sincerely

David Wilkinson

Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
United Kingdom

Page 78



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP

2. Publishy

ang Wales

ey.com

Ernst & Young |1

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



Agenda Item 9

Committee: General Purposes

Date: 12 March 2014
Wards:

Subject: Procurement: Report of the Chair of the Procurement Board
Lead officer: Simon Williams

Lead member: Chair of General Purposes Committee

Contact officer: Peter Stone: Head of Commercial Services

Recommendations:

A. The Committee is asked to consider and note the contents of this report

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. This report provides General Purposes Committee with details of progress in
addressing and completing the key recommendations from the audit on
corporate procurement, which were reported to General Purposes in March
2013.

1.2. The two major recommendations were the development and implementation
of a Council Procurement Strategy to form the basis for future activities and
secondly, redefinition of the roles of the Procurement Board, to ensure that it
plays a more strategic role, central and devolved teams.

1.3. This report also highlights the major strategic priorities for the service
moving forward.

DETAILS

2.1 Procurement is defined in the National Procurement Strategy as “The
process of acquiring goods, works and services, covering both acquisition
from third parties and from in house providers. The process spans the whole
cycle from identification of need, through to the end of a service contract or
the useful life of an asset. It involves options appraisal and the critical “make
or buy” decision which may result in the provision of services in house in
appropriate circumstances.” In short, procurement is not simply about
obtaining the lowest price, it is a strategic tool to ensure that we receive best
value. Procurement in Merton is governed by EU law, UK law and the
Council’'s own Standing Orders.

2.2 Procurement at Merton takes place across all departments and is
undertaken through what is known as a “devolved” model. This means that
responsible officers in the departments undertake operational procurement
for their service areas, while the central team provides strategic support,
including specific advice on commercial and EU issues, benchmarking,
participation in high profile commercial/procurement exercises as agreed,
spend analysis and training. Significant work has taken place over the last

Page 81



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

twelve months to ensure that these relationships are clear and work
together. This includes robust departmental plans, enhanced contracts
register and specific training.

The first area identified by the audit was the need for a Council
Procurement Strategy.

The Procurement Strategy document, which was in draft form at the time of
the audit, has been considered and approved by the Procurement Board,
which comprises senior representatives from each Department, all of whom
were consulted and provided input into the document. It recognises the role
which strategic procurement can play in helping to reshape how services
are delivered, focusing on outcomes and best value. A copy of the
document is appended to this report.

The Strategy identifies eight major themes, each of which has underpinning
objectives, which will provide the framework for future procurement activity.

The themes focus on three basic areas, namely value for money, processes
and people and examples from each of these areas are discussed briefly in

sections 2.6 to 2.9 below.

Value for money is all the more important in the unprecedented economic
climate we now face. Every pound spent must deliver true value, which can
be achieved in many ways, such as proactive spend analysis, contract and
market management, all of which are covered in more detail in the Strategy
document. Through innovative contracting and collaboration, we will
continue to seek sustainable cashable savings.

Another example of how we will drive value for money and efficiencies is via
category management. Grouping together products and services according
to their function (eg care, construction, transport and professional services)
will help us understand the market in depth, maximise our buying power,
and achieve greater economies of scale. We will continue the initiative in the
areas described above, with the aim of rolling out the approach across the
Council.

Processes. Continued use of the etendering system and contracts register
has also improved visibility of spend and has streamlined processes. The
register has now been uploaded onto the London Tenders Portal and,
together with our spend data, provides valuable and critical information to
inform our procurement decisions. This too is reflected in the Strategy and
will be developed by the increased use of etendering and rolling three year
procurement plans.

People. Implementation and enhancement of the Strategy is dependent to a
large extent upon the skills of the officers who undertake procurement and
contract management. The Strategy recognises this dependency and a
number of initiatives have already been put in place. These include a
regular Procurement Forum for all Merton responsible officers, both
departmental and corporate, training sessions and toolkits. The forum is
accountable to the Procurement Board, with recommendations and updates
fed bilaterally.

Page 82



2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

217
2.18

The second area identified by the audit was redefining the roles of the
Procurement Board, with the aim of the Board operating more
strategically, plus the roles of central and devolved teams.

To recap, the Procurement Board is the primary strategic vehicle through
which procurement activity is governed and is chaired by the Director of
Communities and Housing. Its main functions are to ensure that
procurement is managed competently and legally, to ensure that best value
is obtained and maintained and further, to ensure that staff engaged in
procurement have the required skills and support.

Over the last twelve months, a number of steps have been taken to ensure
that the Procurement Board does operate more strategically and, to focus
our thoughts and plans, we ran a workshop last year. This was attended by
a cross section of directors and procurement officers and was a valuable
exercise, which resulted in a number of positive outcomes.

The first of these is that the level at which procurement activities now come
to the Board has been increased to £3m, annual value is greater than
£750k, or three or more risk triggers are assessed as amber. These triggers
include political or reputational risk and volatility of the market. We now use
the Gateway system differently, with the Board spending more time on
Gateway 1, to enable us to shape the procurement route being taken and
thus operate more strategically.

Planning. We have developed and now have in place detailed strategic
procurement plans for each department, encompassing all major
procurement exercises. These extend at least three years into the future
and allow for enhanced planning, improved risk management and aid
category management and identification of efficiency savings. The plans are
overseen by the Procurement Board and the oversight includes “deep dives”
into individual plans to an agreed agenda, twice yearly. These sessions
have already begun.

We now obtain spend analysis routinely and the contracts register is in the
public domain. We have worked with Legal and have a set of legally
approved terms and conditions as a basis from which to work. We also
recognise the need for pro active contract management post contract award
and are looking to put in place a set of guidelines for officers involved in this
important field.

Operational Procurement Groups have been reinvigorated. These groups
are the operational arm of the Procurement Board and one such group
exists for each department. Each group is championed by a senior manager
who sits on the Procurement Board and who will for example be responsible
for presenting the departmental procurement plan at the appropriate “deep
dive” session.

Focus for the next twelve months.

Continue to build on the work which has already been carried out with
departments and centrally to establish a proactive and effective vehicle to
identify and capture savings and mitigate commercial risk to the Council.
This will include embedding the departmental procurement plans and
working with colleagues to develop their Target Operating Models.

Page 83



2.19

2.20

2.21
2.22

3.0
3.1

4.0
4.1

5.0

6.0
6.1

7.0
7.1

8.0

Continue to roll out category and contract management across the Council,
as mentioned earlier in this Report. Two examples have been given
(Transportation and the recently retendered Agency contract). On the latter,
the contract has only recently been awarded and we are hoping for savings
of around £500,000.

Produce a set of guidelines and advice for colleagues engaged in contract
management.

Support and training for procurement staff.

Support colleagues in relation to key cross cutting procurement exercises,
such as Social Care Information System, Customer Contact and Domiciliary
Care. In parallel, work with neighbouring boroughs to seek out further
opportunities for joint and collaborative procurement, together with
dissemination of best practice.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

Nothing specific for this report, although as departmental TOMs continue to
be produced, the Procurement Board recognises the need for the structure
of Commercial Services to flex to reflect the future shape of the Council.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED

Procurement across the Council is overseen by the Procurement Board.
Senior officers were consulted regarding the Procurement Strategy and
through working with colleagues across South London and beyond, the
Head of Commercial Services is appraised of and can share latest
developments and best practice.

TIMETABLE

Not Applicable.

FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS

Nothing specific to this report, although if there are any issues, eg proposed
recruitment, then a business case will be produced and considered by the
Procurement Board and Director of Corporate Services.

LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

These are detailed in section 2.1 of the report.

HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION
IMPLICATIONS

Page 84



8.1

9.0

10.0
101

11.0

111

12.0
12.1
12.2
12.3

Nothing specific to this report.

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

Not Applicable.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
Nothing specific to this report.

APPENDICES. THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE
PUBLISHED WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT

Procurement Strategy

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Internal Audit Papers
Procurement Plans

Departmental Target Operating Models.

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



MERTON COUNCIL

Procurement Strategy
2013-2016

www.merton.gov.uk lg



Foreword

Welcome to Merton’s procurement strategy, which outlines our aims for the period
2013 — 2016 and shows how procurement will contribute towards achieving our
priorities.

The aim of the strategy is to ensure procurement activities are undertaken efficiently
and economically whilst contributing to the realisation of the economic, social and
environmental benefits for the borough. The key visions are:
o Efficiency: Ensuring maximum value is obtained through best practice,
innovative procurement and a consistent approach
¢ Governance: Ensuring the Council has appropriate controls, systems and
standards to manage procurement risks and comply with legal requirements
¢ Continuous improvement: Seeking new ways to develop and improve the
Council’'s procurement activities.
The strategy is aligned with the strategic aims and objectives of the Council’s
business plan and with other corporate and service strategies, plans and
procedures. It is based on development of the principles and good practice
established through the National Procurement Strategy for Local Government.
Strategic procurement is an essential part of the approach by the Council to improve
the way it acquires goods, supplies, works, and services, whist at the same time
identifying and capturing savings
The strategy should be read in conjunction with the Council’s Contract Standing
Orders which set out the regulations to be followed by council employees when
engaged in procurement activities on behalf of the council and contains various
sections. These will lead to action plans which will be developed and reviewed at
least quarterly.
Procurement has a key role to play in ensuring that the Council continues to deliver
high quality services to our residents and | look forward to the principles of the
strategy becoming embedded into and part of the culture of our organisation.

Ged Curran
Chief Executive

DATE

Page 88



Contents

FOMBWOIA ... e e e e 3
Section 1 - INtrOdUCHION .........oiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 4
Section 2 — Objectives and Benefits..............cciii 6
Section 3 - Overview of Procurement..............ccccoovvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee 7
Section 4 — KeY TheMES .....cooiiiiiie e 9
a. Value FOr Money (VFM) ........ooiiiiiiiee e 9
b. Category Management ............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 9
c. Contract Management ... 10
d. Partnering and Collaboration ...............ccccooiiiiiii 11
e. Market Management............. 12
f.  Supplier Relationship Management..................ccccccoo 13
g. Developing People and Improving SKills................oiiiiii 14
h.  Systems and ProCESSES ..........oiiiiiiiiiiiiie e, 15
Section 5 - Governance Framework................uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee 16
a. The Corporate Management Team ...............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 16
b. Contract Standing Orders............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 16
C. The Procurement Board ..............coooiiiiiiiiii e 16
d. Operational Procurement Group ... 17
e. Procurement Gateway proCess ...........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 17
f.  Financial Regulations and Procedures............c..ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e, 17
g. Procurement Plans............ 17
h. Procurement Templates and TOOIKItS ...............ccoooviiiiiiiii i, 18
i. The Contracts RegiSter.............uiiiiiiiiiiie e 18
Jo E-Procurement ..... ... 18
K. Lookingtothe FUuture...............oeiii i 18
Section 6 — Key ACHIONS ......oooiiiiii e 19
CoNtaCING US ... e 20

Page 89



Section 1 - Introduction

Procurement is defined in the National Procurement Strategy as:

“The process of acquiring goods, works and services, covering both acquisition from
third parties and from in-house providers. The process spans the whole cycle from
identification of need, through to the end of a service contract or the end of the useful
life cycle of an asset. It involves options appraisal and the critical ‘make or buy’
decision which may result in the provision of services in house in appropriate
circumstances.”

Although the definition is primarily about procurement, it also about the need to
secure sustainable services, products and outcomes which meet the needs of the
community we serve. Strategic procurement also encompasses collaboration,
including the need to develop partnerships, consider delivery options and ensure
value for money for every pound spent.

This document sets out the Council’s strategic approach to procurement for the next
3 years. It is not intended to be a procurement manual; however, the principles
should be applied to all procurement and commissioning, recognising that
procurement must work closely with our health and social care colleagues to deliver
value for money from all commissioning and procurement.

Consideration of this strategy is not optional and it should be read in conjunction with
the Council’'s Contract Standing Orders (CSO'’s).

The Procurement Strategy emphasises the continuing importance of sustainable
procurement being used to support wider social, economic and environmental
objectives in ways that offer real long term benefits to the residents of this borough.

Cost reduction and efficiency targets will not be achieved if the Council fails to
approach competition positively, taking full account of the opportunities for innovation
and genuine partnerships which are available from working with others in the public,
private and Voluntary, Community and Faith Sectors (“VCFS”).

This strategy provides a corporate focus for procurement. It embraces the Council’s
commitment to strategic procurement and sets out the Council’s aspirations. It is not
a ‘user manual’; more detail on procurement processes and issues will be found in
the Contract Standing Orders and on the procurement intranet.

The strategy will contribute to delivering the long term goals of:

» The Business Plan 2013-17
» Community Plan
» Merton 2015 and beyond (Good to Great)

Page 90



The principal means of disseminating detailed procurement guidance are the
Commercial Services Team (CST), and the intranet.

A full suite of procurement documents can be found in the procurement web pages
at:

Page 91



Section 2 — Objectives and Benefits

The overarching objectives of this strategy are:

To evaluate and improve current procurement practices to achieve better
value for money and to ensure customer/client needs are met

To ensure best practice examples are identified and applied consistently
across the organisation.

To align procurement activities with other strategies adopted and to ensure
that corporate objectives are addressed

To ensure that current and future procurement activities are planned,
monitored, and reviewed effectively including identifying opportunities for
collaboration with both private and public sector bodies and the VCFS

In taking this strategy forward, the Council expects to realise the following benefits:

>

>

Y

YV VYV VYVVYVY

Demonstrate continuous improvement and achieve value for money through
the efficient procurement of goods and services

Encourage communication and interaction with local and national suppliers to
understand their views

Develop relationships between the Council, the business community and the
broader voluntary sector which create mutually advantageous, flexible and
long term relations

More efficient procurement processes

Better risk management

Strategic procurement planning

Effective spend analysis and measurable cash savings

Proactive contract management

Greater use of standard processes and templates

Compliance with appropriate legislation

Compliance with Contract Standing Orders

Collaboration, including with other authorities, local businesses and the VCFS
Greater use of the E-Tendering system

Our vision for procurement is to provide a first class service for our residents whilst
we build on best practice to ensure value for money in all our procurement exercises.

Page 92



Section 3 - Overview of Procurement

The London Borough of Merton spends approximately £170M each year on goods
and services on behalf of Merton’s residents. The range of goods and services is
varied, but includes services for schools, waste collection, care services for children
and adults, maintaining the highways, parks and services, encouraging business
growth and major construction works.

Expenditure by Department 2012-13 (£M)

B Community and Housing
Hl Corporate Services
m Children, Schools and Families

H Environment and Regeneration

Procurement in the Council takes place across all departments and is undertaken in
what is called a ‘devolved’ model. This means that responsible officers in the
departments undertake day to day operational procurement.

CST has been set up specifically to provide procurement support, advice and
guidance to the departments and responsible officers. The devolved system means
that the responsibility and accountability for operational procurement decisions and
actions remain firmly with each responsible officer in the departments. CST is part of
the Resources division of Corporate Services department.

CST provides the following services:

» Provision of strategic commercial advice as requested

» Specific advice on EU Regulations and associated areas, including latest
case law (in conjunction with Legal)

» Benchmarking, identification and promulgation of best practice

» Involvement in high profile tender exercises as agreed

» Spend analysis and the Identification of potential savings opportunities and
areas of collaboration

» Participation in key commercial exercises, such as make/buy reviews

Page 93



» Maintenance of the contracts register. However, responsibility for entering
information onto the contracts register and ensuring that the information is
up to date and accurate, rests with the departments

» Undertaking a skills matrix and training of officers and elected members

» Engagement with partners and potential partners with the objective of
streamlining the procurement process, i.e. making the Council an easier
organisation with which to deal

» Providing up to date support via the intranet, toolkits, procurement guidance
and advice.

Procurement is not simply about lowest price; instead it is a strategic tool to ensure
that we receive best value whilst putting the needs of Merton’s residents first.
Effective procurement is about managing the whole life cycle of the goods and
services we procure, and also ensuring that specifications are right and fit for
purpose with clear outcomes and purposes.

A number of improvements have been made, including a strengthened Procurement
Board, an enhanced Contracts Register and the implementation of a new E-
Tendering system. May 2013 saw the launch of the Procurement Forum, which is
designed to bring together all officers who are involved in procurement and
commissioning, to disseminate information from the Procurement Board, to embed
best practice and to ensure that officers are kept abreast of all relevant procurement
matters including changes in law. This will also be used to discuss opportunities for
cross cutting and joint procurement will be investigated.

Furthermore, in January 2012 the Council adopted a new Procurement Governance
and Gateway process which comprises four key elements: the Procurement Board,
the Procurement Gateways, the Operational Procurement Groups and the Risk
Assessment Tool. These four elements work together to enable the Procurement
Board to exercise effective oversight, control and to provide direction to procurement
activity Council wide.

Page 94



Section 4 — Key Themes

a. Value For Money (VFM)
In the unprecedented economic climate we face, the Council will need to
make substantial year on year savings for the foreseeable future. Every
pound spent must deliver true value to the community, whether that is by
better management of our existing contracts, proactive spend analysis, being
more commercially aware, or through reviewing current services and potential
delivery models.

Knowing how, where and on what our money is spent will be used to drive a
supplier review to maximise savings. Furthermore, we intend to review the
supply base and drive additional efficiencies by reducing the overall number
of suppliers and to utilise the additional leverage obtained. This exercise will
also help us to develop and shape supply markets, define the skills to develop
the market and to negotiate better outcomes for the Council and service
users.

Strategic Objectives

» Undertake regular spend analysis of the Council’s full non-pay
spend with recommendations in how to identify and capture
efficiencies

Supply base review and rationalisation

Make/buy reviews of services, options analysis

Challenge specifications and assumptions around strategic
contracts

Y VV

b. Category Management
By grouping together products and services according to their function (e.qg.
care, construction, transport, professional services etc.) the Council can better
manage the overall spend, whilst maximising our buying power and achieving
economies of scale.

A ‘category’ is an area of spend determined by known market boundaries
separating different products or services. Category Management recognises
that suppliers within a certain market are likely to have similarities which
enable a tailored approach to procurement.

We will develop our capacity and capability in Category Management to
support the major commercial decisions the Council is facing. We will add

Page 95



value to projects we support, bringing commercial insight and support
throughout the commissioning lifecycle. Recognising this challenge we will
also develop our staff through a revised professional training programme. It
will also enhance their relationship and partnership building skills. This means
they will spend less time involved in the administrative task of running tenders
and spend more time with customers, commissioners and our major suppliers.

Strategic Objectives

> Develop a suite of category strategies to drive further savings and
efficiencies

» Embed a category management approach across the Council

» Category Management specific training programme

. Contract Management

We will manage our major contracts more actively to drive continuous
improvement in performance and efficiency and further develop contract
management across the Council. We will provide greater visibility of the
performance of our top contracts to help to improve the management of major
suppliers and ensure they are delivering against the agreed performance
standards.

By reviewing strategic contracts and adopting a more commercial approach to
the management of our key contracts we will ensure that improvements and
efficiencies are delivered.

We will also work with operational contract managers in departments to build
on best practice and provide training in contract management techniques.
The outcome of this change will be measured by the monitoring of contract
performance and by the identification of improvements in performance levels
and additional efficiencies during the life of a contract. Furthermore, as we
develop stronger relationships with our key suppliers, we will be recognised
as their ‘customer of choice’ which may lead to increased market intelligence
and therefore improve our opportunities for innovation in the marketplace.

Through a clear commercially led approach to contract management, we will
ensure a greater focus is directed towards obtaining the required outcomes.
This will include increased monitoring and management of supplier
performance through robust SLAs and KPlIs (including the delivery of
community benefits) and where performance is not being achieved, an action
and improvement plan will be implemented.

10

Page 96



Strategic Objectives

» Reduce non-contracted spend

Embed contract management principles across the Council
Hold regular performance meetings with suppliers

Set clear and proportionate KPI and SLA targets for suppliers
Link payment to performance (where appropriate)

YV VYV

d. Partnering and Collaboration

Partnering means the creation of sustainable, collaborative relationships with
suppliers in the public, private, social enterprise and voluntary sectors to
deliver services; carry out major projects; or acquire supplies and equipment.

Partnerships can be beneficial and integrated in service delivery, but it needs
to be recognised that this is not an easier contract style; indeed partnering
agreements are likely to be more challenging than traditional contracts. A
partnership agreement will therefore require careful preparation and
procurement. Partnering should be considered when engaging in best value
reviews of services as a potential alternative to established methods of
service delivery.

When formulating our procurement strategies, we will ensure that we take
account of potential opportunities afforded by partnering and collaborating.
We will also look at existing framework agreements when considering any
future options for procurement and where appropriate the use of any national,
regional or pan London procurement arrangements that fit with the Council’s
strategy.

Collaboration describes the various ways in which councils and other public
bodies come together to combine their buying power, to procure or
commission goods, works or services jointly or to create shared services.
Collaboration is a form of public partnership; its major benefits are economies
of scale and accelerated learning.

We will ensure that contractors and partners have priorities which align with
those of the Council and that they understand how they contribute to the
Council’'s performance.

11

Page 97



The Council will actively participate with other authorities and organisations
where appropriate and feasible, to seek economies through joint procurement,
joint commissioning, framework agreements and shared services.

Strategic Objectives

» Work with other public bodies to seek joint partnering and collaboration
opportunities

» Investigate the greater use of collaborative contracts

> Look to use existing framework agreements where appropriate

e. Market Management
The Council will continue to work with more diverse providers of services. In
some areas there are strong markets but in others they are either small or not
yet developed. The Council will make full use of all the different methods of
delivery available, including joint ventures, public, private and VCFS options.

Through procurement, we will support the growth of local businesses and
other organisations by encouraging the use of local suppliers. While staying
within the legal constraints of public sector procurement, the Council will
encourage local suppliers to work with us, recognising and exploiting the
ability to create a positive climate for firms based in Merton. The Council will
endeavour to support a thriving local business sector, providing opportunities
for suppliers to develop the capacity to win future contracts from the Council
and other public sector partners.

This approach recognises that by encouraging sustainable high quality local
employment, the Council is reducing the demand and thus cost of other public
services. The Council will seek to encourage innovation, improve skill levels in
Merton, create jobs and retain money in the local economy.

12

Page 98



Strategic Objectives

» Identify where market capacity may be weak and where new
markets may need to be developed
Encourage suppliers to develop innovative approaches

Foster a collaborative approach to procurement

Work to increase the proportion of spend with SMEs and VCFS
Take steps to promote and encourage local economic growth e.g.
reducing the barriers to SME and VCFS participation

Hold regular supplier engagement events

YV Y VVYVY

f. Supplier Relationship Management
The Council will build strong, long term, positive relationships with suppliers
across all sectors, not just when actively procuring goods and services but
also when considering alternative delivery models e.g. social enterprises.
The Council will establish strategic relationships with suppliers to ensure that
both parties are delivering against the commitments within the contract and
also build upon mutual experience and knowledge to embed continuous
improvement practices throughout the contracted period. Effective
engagement with suppliers will also inform future specifications. This will
ensure that the Council is approaching the market place with requirements
which meet clearly defined needs and are commercially attractive to potential
bidders.

The Council commits to making all procurement activity fair and transparent
and to encourage a diverse range of potential bidders to participate.

A suite of standardised documents and contracts will be developed for use
across the Council to ensure consistency and to make the procurement
process more accessible to suppliers.

Strategic Objectives

» Engage with key suppliers in all sectors

» Robust contract management

> Explore new models of service delivery and welcome dialogue with
communities and suppliers to establish new and innovative procurement
practices

» Encourage a diverse range of suppliers to work with the Council

13

Page 99



g. Developing People and Improving Skills
Procurement is a key activity in sourcing the skills, services and supplies
required by the Council to deliver community outcomes. The officers who
undertake procurement and contract management activity are vital to the
successful delivery of the Council’s strategic procurement objectives.

The required capacity and skills will continue to be developed in departments
with support and guidance from CST.

CST will develop other ideas to encourage officer participation. These will
include the offering of regular ‘drop-in’ sessions which will allow any topic of
interest to be discussed informally. Also, specific targeted training will be
developed and made available to officers/teams and divisions as required.

Regular procurement forums for all Merton responsible officers will continue to
be offered. Active participation will be encouraged by the use of focus and
working groups on specific topics of interest, such as toolkits, market
engagement and benchmarking.

The forums will:
» Bring together all professionals across the Council working on procurement
activity into a single forum
» Provide a platform for evidence sharing and best practice (both internal and
external)
» Introduce and embed a co-ordinated and consistent Merton approach to
procurement
» ldentify savings and efficiencies opportunities
The forum is a reference group, accountable to the Procurement Board, with
recommendations and updates to be fed bilaterally.

Strategic Objectives

» Provide a career path for practitioners of procurement with
clear roles and responsibilities — including CIPS, where
appropriate

» Provide skills and training and learning & development
opportunities for officers

» Ensure that procurement best practice advice is available via
the Procurement Toolkit

14

Page 100



h. Systems and Processes

Continued use of the E-Tendering system has improved compliance and at
the same time it has streamlined the tendering processes.

The contracts register has received a refresh and is now part of the E-
Tendering suite which is in the public domain so that any interested parties
may view it. This has led to greater visibility of Council spend which will be fed
into procurement and resource planning and should lead to greater
opportunities for efficiency savings.

It will also make it easier for members of the public to have their requests
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOls) answered quickly and
efficiently.

Ensure council and departmental rolling 1-3 year procurement plans are
produced each financial year and kept up to date.

Strategic Objectives

Maintain an up to date contracts register

Increased use of the E-Tendering system

Investigating the strategic use of E-Auctions

Training in the use of the procurement toolkit

Develop a comprehensive rolling 1-3 year procurement plan

VVVYY

15

Page 101



Section 5 - Governance Framework

Merton’s procurement is governed by EU law, UK Law and lastly by Merton’s own
rules for procurement which are the Contract Standing Orders. These laws and
processes are mandatory for officers of Merton to follow.

a. The Corporate Management Team
The Corporate Management Team (CMT) will continue to initiate and lead all
procurement activity and endorse and support adherence to the procurement
Strategy across the Council. CMT will set the strategic direction of the
Council, empower officers and hold officers to account in the delivery of the
strategy.

b. Contract Standing Orders
The Council will comply with the wide range of legislation, regulation and
guidance which governs procurement. The Council’s Contract Standing
Orders for procurement have been revised in line with the latest legal and
operational requirements and came into effective on 1 April 2012.
Adjustments to the existing thresholds and delegations were made and
provide the ability to improve the speed and simplicity of procurement
activities and authorisations. Adherence to the Contract Standing Orders will
be enforced to ensure the highest standards of probity and compliance, one of
Merton’s principles underpinning procurement activity.

c. The Procurement Board
The Procurement Board is the primary strategic agent through which
procurement activity is governed. The Procurement Board is made up of
senior management officers and procurement professionals and is chaired by
a Director.

The main functions of the Procurement Board are:

» Oversee the production and management of the procurement strategy

» Assure that procurement is managed competently and legally

» Ensure changes in legislation e.g. The Social Value Act (2013) and best
practice are embedded in the Councils procurement practices

» Assessing whether procurement is achieving best value for the Council

» Ensuring that staff engaged in procurement have the required skills

» To be responsible for the Operational Procurement Groups (OPG)

16
Page 102



d.

\ 2%

Operational Procurement Group

The OPGs are the operational arm of the Procurement Board, and are the
means through which departmental procurement activity is planned and co-
ordinated. One OPG exists for each department and the Groups co-ordinate,
risk assess and manage the flow of all procurement activity. Each group is
championed by a departmental procurement lead who also attends the
Procurement Board.

Procurement Gateway process

It is a risk based approach which uses a series of minimum criteria and risk
triggers to determine which procurement activities will come to the
Procurement Board.

Projects will automatically come to the Procurement Board for review where:

the total value is over £3m (or annual value over £750k), or

the decision to award the contract is to be made by Cabinet, or

three or more risk triggers are assessed at amber level or greater. These
include political or reputational risk, impact of failure on service user and
maturity or volatility of the market.

Financial Regulations and Procedures

The Financial Regulations and Procedures are the internal rules applicable to
Merton’s financial processes and these have also been reviewed to take
account of current and recent changes in procurement practice e.g. use of
Framework Agreements. Within the options appraisal carried out for each
procurement project there will be included due consideration to the methods
of financing the project available i.e. capital borrowing, leasing, and other
alternatives.

. Procurement Plans

These plans identify the required strategic procurement activities for a period
extending 1-3 years into the future. The departmental procurement plans
inform the Corporate Procurement Plan, which will encompass all major
procurements due in the following 1-3 years. This will allow for enhanced
planning and scheduling, improved visibility and improved risk management
for the Council’s major procurement activities. The Corporate Procurement
Plan is overseen by the Procurement Board.

17

Page 103



h. Procurement Templates and Toolkits
The ‘Procurement Toolkit’ is available to officers via the Procurement Intranet
pages and it provides specific procedural guidance and templates for
procurement activity.
The Council will review and keep these up to date. It is against this procedural
guidance that individual compliance will be measured to ensure best practice,
legal compliance and whether there is any off contract spend.

The CST will be working with departments to improve the current toolkit and
templates.

i. The Contracts Register
The Contracts Register is a Council-wide record of all contracts that the
Council has entered into above the value of £10,000.

The Contracts Register is now hosted via the London Tenders Portal as part
of the Council’'s E-Tendering system. Responsible Officers must ensure that
all contracts are entered onto it and that they are kept up to date.

The Contracts Register will continue to be a key component to co-ordinate
and risk manage procurement activity at the corporate level and will assist
with FOls.

j- E-Procurement
In January 2011 the Council invested in an E-Tendering system called Pro-
Contract. The system provides officers and suppliers with an effective and
efficient way to electronically manage tender and quote processes. The
system is designed to allow staff to conduct requests for quotations and
tenders online, much more quickly and also to allow potential suppliers to
respond without the need to complete numerous paper forms.

We will ensure that the benefits of E-Tendering continue by the promotion and
monitoring of the system. The use of the E-Tendering system was made
mandatory in the new CSOs which came into effective on 1 April 2012.

Improved use of the E-Tendering system will provide corporate visibility on
spend and prevent duplication of processes. Improved corporate visibility will
in turn allow greater scrutiny of the management of spend across the Council.

k. Looking to the Future

We are investigating the use of E-Auctions as a way of saving additional
monies.

18

Page 104



Section 6 — Key Actions

A procurement action plan will cover the principal objectives detailed in this strategy
document.

To help us achieve our vision, there are five key actions we are taking:

1.

Implement our people development plan, putting in place a new programme of
training, coaching and mentoring

Roll out stronger contract and supplier management across the Council for key
contracts, identifying clear roles and responsibilities and providing professional
support for service teams

Develop a rolling three year corporate procurement plan, incorporating robust
departmental plans

Provide an updated procurement toolkit and templates for responsible officers
Increased use of partnerships and collaboration with other organisations to
drive greater efficiencies

By 2016, we will have:

Delivered substantial cost savings through strategic contracting, to help meet the
Council’s budget targets

Developed a best-in-class service which is highly responsive to the needs of
customers, and is valued by them as a strategic partner in developing their own
plans

Encouraged greater levels of spend with local suppliers and have thriving
relationships with local businesses and VCFS communities, within the
parameters of European Procurement Regulations and CSOs

Established strong partnerships with other public sector bodies to leverage best
value for money

19

Page 105



Contacting Us

Please contact us if you have any questions, comments or feedback about the

Procurement Strategy:

E-mail: procurement@merton.gov.uk
Phone: 020 8545 3736

Other useful websites

Audit Commission http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk
Comprehensive Performance Assessment
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/cpa

Department for Communities and Local Government
http://www.communities.gov.uk

Improvement and Development Agency, (I&DeA)

Local Government Association
http://www.Ilga.gov.uk
Regional Centre of Excellence
http://www.rcoe.gov.uk

Page 106

20



Agenda Item 10

Committee: General Purposes Committee
Date: 12 March 2014

Agenda item:

Wards:

Subject: Internal Audit Plan, Strategy and Charter 2014/15

Lead officer: Caroline Holland — Director of Corporate Services
Lead member: Chair of the General Purposes Committee
Forward Plan reference number: N/A

Contact officer: Margaret Culleton — Head of Audit & Investigations
Tel. 0208 545 3149

Email: margaret.culleton@merton.gov.uk

Recommendation:

A. That members review and comment upon the Draft Internal Audit Plan 14/15
and the Draft Internal Audit Strategy and Charter.

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1.  The Draft Internal Audit Strategy, Audit Plan and Audit Charter 2014/15 are
included in Appendix 1.

2 DETAILS

2.1. The Internal Audit Plan has been compiled using the following planning
mechanism:

The Corporate Risk Register

Financial systems work required by external audit

Strategic audit plan and audit previously identified as limited

Areas of concern arising from fraud investigations and Whistleblowing
concerns.

Departmental requests

Best Practice and knowledge of significant new initiatives

The Contracts Register

The Capital Programme

Service Plans

Page 107



2.2

2.3

24

25

2.6

2.6

2.7

The Head of Audit & Investigations provides copies of the draft plan to
department directors and attends the departmental management teams where
they may request audits to be added to provide assurance on their areas of risk.
Comments are also obtained from their Heads of Services and key managers,
business partners, departmental finance advisors.

Final Audit reports are sent to Directors and Heads of service as well as the
business partners, in order to improve efficiencies.

Anti fraud work

Audit days are included in the audit plan for joint working with the investigation
team, and also Council-wide anti-fraud initiatives such as on-line fraud training
and updating of anti fraud policies.

Other anti-fraud work is, as far as possible, integrated into individual audits, e.g.
an audit of payments would evaluate the controls in place that mitigate the risk of
fraud and error. Fraud alerts and information provided by London Audit Group
provide areas of potential fraud risk to the authority. Audits are included in the
plan where risk is considered high.

The investigation team will be carrying out a range of anti fraud work, these
include: - Housing Benéefit fraud, NFI data matching, Recruitment fraud and
emerging fraud risk

Information Technology audits

The Internal Audit section will cover non specialist IT work, such as reviewing
the controls in place on the main financial systems. Internal Audit also inputs
into advice on new systems.

Where IT audits are of a specialist nature, they require the detailed technical
knowledge and expertise of a skilled IT practitioner. A budget has been
provided to Internal Audit to buy in external support for this function.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

None for the purpose of this report.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED

The draft Audit Plan has been sent to all Chief Officers who have consulted with
their management teams. The Head of Audit & Investigations met with the
departmental business partners and financial advisors and has taken into account
their comments.

Page 108



5 TIMETABLE

5.1. The Internal Audit Plan will be the basis of Internal Audit’s programme of work
throughout the 2014/15 financial year. The timing of individual audits is
considered in consultation with the Departments where possible.

6 FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS

6.1. The audit plan is completed within the provision of existing resources.

7 LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

7.1. The requirement to maintain an Internal Audit function is defined within legislation,
some of which is outlined below:-

a) Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires each
Local Authority to make arrangements for the proper
administration of their financial affairs and to ensure that one of
their officers is made responsible for the administration of those
affairs.

b) The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require the
responsible financial officer of a body, whose accounts are to be
audited in accordance with Part Il of the Local Government Act
1982, 'A relevant body must undertake an adequate and effective
internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal
control in accordance with the proper practices in relation to
internal control’

7.2. The Director of Corporate Services is the designated officer responsible for
ensuring compliance with these pieces of legislation. In a similar manner to a
private company:-

a) Elected Members will look to the Director of Corporate Services to
provide them with an assurance as to the adequacy of the
Authority's financial systems and system of internal audit.

b) Chief Officers will also seek an assurance that the financial
dealings within their departments meet the standard required.

8 HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION
IMPLICATIONS

8.1. Effective and timely auditing and advice enables Departments, voluntary
organisations and Schools to provide quality services to their clients. These client
groups are often vulnerable members of the community, e.g. elderly people,
disabled people, asylum seekers and members of staff and voluntary

Page 109



10
10.1.

10.2.

11.

12
12.1.

organisations. The audit service helps to identify weak financial management and
sometimes reflects weaknesses in other operational systems such as quality and
ethnic monitoring. Audit, therefore, has a crucial role in ensuring that Council
resources are used to enable a fair access to quality services.

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

The Audit Plan has a risk assessment formula built into the processing. This takes
such aspects as expenditure, income, and previous audit findings into account
and calculates priorities and the frequency of the audit.

In addition to the audit risk assessment formula the Corporate Risk Register is
consulted during the production of the Draft Plan.

APPENDICES - THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED
WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT

° Appendix 1 - Merton’s Draft Internal Audit Strategy, Audit Charter
and Internal Audit Plan 2014/15

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Papers held within the Internal Audit Section

Page 110



INTERNAL AUDIT

STRATEGY, AUDIT PLAN AND CHARTER
2014/15

Page 111



Contents

C Service Performance Targets

Page
Introduction 3
Responsibilities and Objectives of Internal Audit 3
Internal Audit’s Role in the Risk, Internal Control and 4
Assurance Framework
Key Issues and Priority Areas for 2014/15 5
o Governance Arrangements
o Key Financial Systems
° Transformation
° Risk Management
o ICT and Information Governance
o Partnerships 6
o Contracts, Procurement and Major Projects
o Counter Fraud
o Implementation of Agreed Audit Recommendations
Internal Audit’s Role in Fraud and Corruption 7
Related Documents
Internal Audits role in advice 8
Audit Resources and Skills Audit 8
Training
Protocol for Audit Reviews 9
External Audit 9
Implementation of Agreed Audit Recommendations 9
Annual Audit Plan 2014/15 10
The three lines of defence 10
Our Performance Management 12
A Detailed Annual Audit Plan 2014/15 13-19
B Audit Charter 20-26
27

Page 112




Introduction

This document sets out the council’s Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Audit Plan for
the year 2014/15.

The purpose of the Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Audit Plan is to:

o Ensure effective audit coverage and a mechanism to provide independent
and objective overall assurance to Members, Director of Corporate Services
and the Corporate Management Team (CMT);

) Optimise the use of audit resources available, given that they are limited;

. Add value and support senior management in providing effective control
and identifying opportunities for improving value for money;

o Deliver an internal audit service that meets the requirements of the Accounts
& Audit Regulations 2011

Responsibilities and Objectives of Internal Audit

As an independent appraisal function within the authority, the primary objective of Internal
Audit is to review, appraise and report upon the adequacy of the control environment
comprising the systems of governance, risk management and internal control as a
contribution to achieving the council’s objectives and the proper, economic, efficient and
effective use of resources.

In addition, the other objectives of the function are to:

e Support the Director of Corporate Services to discharge “Proper Officer duties”
(S151 responsibilities)

e Provide an Anti Fraud function

e Contribute to the overall effectiveness of corporate governance in the council’s
activities

e Promote the council’s anti fraud policies

e To provide assurance to management on the integrity, effectiveness and
operation of the council’s internal control system;

e Delivery of the Annual Audit Plan

e To be responsive to transformational change and service demands;

e To continue to meet the requirements of the council’s external auditors;

e To follow up on agreed actions to ensure agreed they have been fully
implemented;

e To continue to develop and have a lead in the council’s corporate governance
arrangements including production of the ‘Annual Governance Statement’ to
provide assurance on the council’'s governance arrangements and any areas
for improvement.

Page 113



Internal Audits Role in the Risk, Internal Control and Assurance Framework

The Accounts and Audit Regulation 2011 require an annual review of the
effectiveness of its system of internal audit to be reported to the General Purposes
committee for consideration. The system of internal control is broader than just the
work of the internal audit section and includes the framework of assurance covering
how the risks to the authority are identified with effective managed controls.
Assurances are provided by a range of internal and external providers. The Head of
Audit & Investigations will assess whether the overall framework of assurances is
adequately designed and effectively operated through a plan of internal audit work.

In addition to the above, the Director of Corporate Services has a statutory duty
under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, to establish a clear framework
for the proper administration of the local authority’s affairs. To perform that duty the
Section 151 Officer relies on, amongst other things the internal audit work for
reviewing systems of internal control, financial management and other assurance
processes.

The standards for ‘proper practice’ in relation to internal audit are laid down in
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (effective from 1% April 2013). We
continually ensure compliance with these professional standards and reflected in
our terms of reference contained in our Terms of Reference, shown at Appendix B.

The standard and quality of internal audit is principally scrutinised in three ways:

¢ An annual review of the effectiveness of internal audit required by the
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2011 reported to the General Purposes
Committee

e The external auditor seeks to place reliance upon the quality and
standard of work our work through principally the ‘managed audit’
process and reports this to the Council in the annual audit and
inspection letter

e Customer feedback and perceptions

This gives an overall assurance on the adequacy of internal controls within the
Council in the Annual Report and the Assurance Statement.

In order to give such an assurance, a balanced programme of Internal Audit review is
constructed each year. This Audit Plan contains elements of all audit work assessed
by a “Risk Based” approach. There are many elements to this including undertaking
systems reviews, regularity audits (e.g. schools), contract and computer audit, and
an Annual Review of major financial systems such as Council Tax, the Financial
Ledger and debtors/creditors systems.

In order to contribute to the Annual Governance Statement all Internal Audit reports
give an audit assurance as follows:

o Substantial Assurance
o Satisfactory Assurance
o Limited Assurance

o No assurance

Page 114



In addition each recommendation is given a high, medium or low risk priority. All
recommendations are followed up by Internal Audit to ensure that they have been
implemented.

Key Issues and Priority Areas for 2014/15

Having regard to the current risk profile of the council, the following areas have been
identified as key issues and priority areas of our work for 2014/15

Governance Arrangements

The council’s governance framework covers all aspects of its business, including risk
management, internal control and ethical standards. We have a key role to play in
assessing the effectiveness of governance arrangements by comparison with
principles contained in the CIPFA/SOLACE Governance Framework (Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government, 2007). A number of audits will support this
assessment and will take account of the emerging governance arrangements as the
council implements its new operating model. The statutory Annual Governance
Statement will be produced in June, for approval by the General Purposes
Committee and then signed by the Leader and Chief Executive.

Key Financial Systems

The effectiveness of controls and management of risks within key financial
systems remains a core part of our audit work. This work is important in providing
annual assurance to the council and to meet the requirements of the External
Auditor. We continue to develop our audit approach to give greater assurance and
ensuring it meets the External Auditor’s requirements, including carrying out testing
to assist with the annual audit of accounts.

Transformation

Considering the significant financial challenges facing the public sector and the
council’s continuous transformation program, our Annual Audit Plan will need to be
flexible enough to respond to emerging issues and risks from change.

Value for money (VFM) will continue to be an integral part of our risk based audit
approach, in particular being alert to opportunities and ensure reporting of issues
raised and agreed management actions from audit recommendations. In addition we
will support transformation projects, consider changes to the control environment and
risk exposure and provide assurance on program management and realisation of
benefits.

Risk Management

We will assess the council’s risk management arrangements, including risk
management strategy, adequacy of strategic and operational risk registers, risk
reporting and the extent to which it is embedded. The Head of Audit & Investigations
is a member of the Corporate Risk Management Group.

Page 115



ICT and Information Governance

Information technology is fundamental to the delivery of the council’s services and is
an area of rapid change. Due to this high risk to the council, providing assurance on
the adequacy of electronic systems and controls is a key part of our Annual Audit
Plan. Our work recognises the pace of change and adoption of new information
technology and as such will be well informed to focus our resources on areas of
highest risk and benefit.

Partnerships

The council is increasingly operating and delivering services jointly through
partnerships. This also brings risks and opportunities to the council and the delivery
of services. We will continue to review key partnerships and also work with auditors
from partner organisations for effective coverage and assurance.

Contracts, Procurement and Major Projects

Changing approaches to procurement and contract management are a key part of
delivering improved services. This also brings additional inherent risks that need to
be managed. Major projects also represent a high risk to the council in terms of
corporate importance and resources. Our audit work will continue to focus on
embedding risk management and controls.

Anti Fraud and Corruption

The Head of Audit & Investigations will also seek to develop pro-active anti-fraud
work through a series of specifically focused reviews into areas of high risk of fraud
or irregularity.

The investigation team will undertake specific anti fraud exercises, as follows:-

e Housing Benefit fraud — Investigations on this area will continue until further
clarification is obtained on the Single Fraud investigation service. Date is
currently to be confirmed and could be between October 2013 and March 2015.

e NFI data matching- review of the results of these matches in a range of areas.

e Recruitment fraud- review of the vetting process in place and proactive fraud
checks undertaken

e Partnership working with our main housing association on tenancy fraud.

e Work will be undertaken on those areas of emerging fraud risk identified by the
Audit Commission in their fighting fraud locally publication. These are on
Business Rates, Social Fund and Local Welfare Assistance, council tax
reduction, personal budgets.

There will be joint working between auditors and investigators, depending on the type
of fraud investigation. Internal Audit will also identify areas of control risks and make
appropriate recommendations to reduce the risk of further fraud occurring.

Anti fraud training will be provided to services in the council as required.

Page 116



Related Documents

This document is one of a series that, together, constitute the policies of the
authority in relation to anti-fraud and corruption. The other documents are:

o Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy
o Anti-Money Laundering Policy
o Whistle-blowing policy

Internal Audit’s Role Providing Advice

Internal Audit can provide support and advice to managers, particularly regarding the
interpretation and application of Council Policies and Procedures.

Internal Audit advice and recommendations are given without prejudice to the right of
Internal Audit to review the relevant policies, procedures and operations at a later
date.

We provide advice, support and training to schools. We provide templates for schools
to improve controls and share best practice. We also issue a guidance manual to
schools called ‘On the Right Track 5’ which covers guidance on all areas of good
financial practice.

In order to establish an audit presence and to create sound informal lines of
communication as much audit work as possible will be done on location.

Audit Resources and Skills

The staffing structure of the section comprises a mix of qualified, experienced,
technician and trainee auditors, with a mix of professional expertise to reflect the
varied functions of the section. There is a sum available in the Internal Audit budget
to buy in some expertise from external suppliers of internal audit services; this will be
used to purchase IT specialist skills.

As far as is practicable, Internal Audit will not participate in the day-to-day

operation of any systems of internal financial control. However, in strict emergency
situations only, audit personnel may be called upon to carry out non-audit work on a
short-life basis.

Members of the internal audit section will be expected to contribute to the general
management and conduct of business through membership of working groups and
participation in ad hoc exercises. Upon request from the Director of Corporate
Services, appropriate specialists from departments other than Corporate Services
should be made available to take part in any audit or review requiring specialist
knowledge.

The Head of Audit & Investigations will carry out a continuous review of the
development and training needs of all audit and investigation personnel and will
arrange in-service training covering both internal and external courses.

Page 117



Protocol for Audit Reviews

For each audit review carried out, the responsible Head of Service/Assistant Director,
and Service Manager will be consulted in the scoping to ensure that the audit is
appropriately focused on current key perceived risks and issues. A terms of
reference (Audit Brief) will be produced for each audit review and agreed to ensure
the scope, objectives, approach, timetable are understood and agreed.

Draft internal audit reports will be issued for discussion with the appropriate levels of
management and normally set-out in the terms of reference.

Final internal audit reports will be issued after the agreement of draft reports and
contain completed management actions plans that will identify those responsible for
implementation and timescales. The final reports will always be issued to the ‘Lead
Client’ responsible for the area reviewed.

External Audit

We work closely with the council’s external auditors to minimise duplication and
maximise the benefits the council receives from total audit resources. We will
continue to ensure full reliance is placed on our work and continue to seek
opportunities for minimising the external audit fee.

Implementation of Agreed Audit Recommendations

At the end of each audit review, an audit report will be produced containing agreed
management actions to audit recommendations made. We will ensure these agreed
actions to audit recommendations are fully implemented to ensure improvements to
the council’s control environment and value for money. We will follow-up on all audit
recommendations. We will get confirmation from officers responsible for
implementation that required actions have taken place.

Developing the Annual Audit Plan 2014/15

The methodology used for developing the Annual Audit Plan focuses upon the
quantification of the risks associated with achieving corporate and departmental
objectives. Auditable areas have been selected and prioritised on a rational and
objective basis following a systematic assessment using the following predictive
factors:

e Control and previous assurance;

e Corporate importance including criticality to the achievement of priorities,
legislative and regulatory impact;

e  Materiality;

Value for money and service delivery; and

Corporate sensitivity and management concern.

The predictive factors are used to determine a risk rating of high, medium or low to
reflect the inherent risk or vulnerability. We ensure our coverage is proportionate and
appropriately aligned.

Based on past experience and good practice, the Annual Audit Plan includes a
contingency for unplanned work requirements to ensure we are able to respond to

Page 118



changing needs and demands.

The Annual Audit Plan will be indicative and it is inevitable that changes will be made
during the year as the risk profile of the council changes. This will be achieved
through ongoing review and amendment, in consultation with the relevant lead clients
and service managers to reflect the changing needs of the council and to add
maximum value.

The General Purposes Committee will be kept informed of progress against the
Annual Audit Plan and agree any significant changes during the year.

The three lines of defence

There are three lines of defence in place on controls in the council. The first line of
defence is the day to day operational controls, the second line is the management
controls which include trend analysis, budget monitoring etc. The third line of defence
is independent inspection such as Internal Audit or other assurance providers.

In formulating the Annual Audit Plan, consideration has been given to the work of
other assurance providers, both internal and external. Examples include:

e Operational managers identifying, managing risks and improvement
actions; (1% line of defence)

e Oversight functions such as finance, commercial services, Legal and
Health & Safety (2™ line of defence)

¢ Independent assurance providers such as internal audit, external audit,
inspectors (3" line of defence)

Internal audit provides assurance on the effectiveness of governance, risk
management, and internal controls, including the manner in which the first and
second lines of defence achieve risk management and control objectives

Annual Audit Plan 2014/15

Appendix A shows the detailed Annual Audit Plan and provides a brief summary of
each review under thematic areas.

Contingency has been provided for unplanned reactive work. This will be used to
respond to emerging issues, risks and to have the capacity to respond to requests
from senior managers.

Timing of the audit reviewwill be agreed with management during the planning
process. There is however flexibility to respond for example to pressures on services
audited and audit resource availability.

In addition to the General Purposes Committee receiving regular progress reports
against the plan, Corporate Management Team Members will be provided with
progress reports as necessary through the year summarising the outcome of reviews
and other audit work for the quarter and planned for the quarter ahead. The Head of
Audit & Investigations will also attend Management Team meetings as required, to
discuss audit coverage and outcomes.

Page 119



Our Performance Management

To achieve planned coverage, deliver a high standard of customer care and
demonstrate effectiveness of the service, we have well established performance
targets based on best professional practice and easily comparable with other
organisations.

Performance indicators and targets are shown at Appendix C for six aspects of our
service:

Effectiveness of time

Productivity and process efficiency;
Quality of output;

Compliance with professional standards;
Outcomes and degree of influence; and
Our Staff.

We will ensure continuous improvement of the Internal Audit Service and adopt new
approaches. It is regularly benchmarked with other public sector providers to ensure
efficient, effective and competitive.

Page 120



Internal Audit Plan 2014/15

Days
Cross cutting (more than 1 department) 244
Corporate Services 127
Children’s Schools and Families 98
Community and Housing 110
Environment and Regeneration 124
IT audits 50
Financial systems 75
Support 165
Total 993
Corporate Cross Cutting 14/15
Area of Review Description of work Days
Annual To produce Annual report for use in the AGS and attendance 20
Governance at AGS meetings
Statement
Procurement Card | To select a sample of high value procurement card users and 15
expenditure check compliance with procedures
Contract To review a sample of procurement expenditure within all 12
Compliance areaa of the council and test compliance to CSO.
Fees and Charges | To provide assurance that the council has a clear policy on 8
levying fees and charges for services it provides to external
customers across the council and that fees and charges are
annually reviewed and correctly charged to customers in
accordance with financial regulations
Oyster cards Review of the use of Oyster Cards, to ensure that there is 10
sufficient monitoring and control over the use of these cards. A
sample will be selected from all departments
Data Protection A review of a sample of areas to ensure compliance with 15
processing of data, through inappropriate use, retention,
access or inaccuracy of personal data, through change in
processes or staff
Trusts Arrangements in place for managing trusts 10
Frauds To undertake whistleblowing investigations on areas of 60
procedural weakness. To also assist the investigation staff on
fraud investigations
Pro active fraud To provide training for areas in the council that deal with cash 15
training income or other areas of fraud risk
sickness/absence | Review of the arrangements in place for the Management of 10

management

sickness absence and the extent of compliance across
departments with Council policy and review and monitoring
arrangements in department

Page 121




Business To ensure that appropriate and coordinated business 12
Continuity/disaster | continuity plans are in place within the Council and with local
recovery businesses which meet the emergency requirements of
London Borough of Merton and to ensure that disaster
recovery processes are in place
Agency and To review the use of agency and temporary staff, the process 15
temporary Staff in place for authorising the use and the review and monitoring.
APS cards Review of new APS cards used in place of the previous 12
imprest account to provide funds to vunerable families. To
review the use of these cards in C&H and CSF
Risk Management | Assessment of the effectiveness of risk management 15
arrangements throughout the council.
Corporate To review the effectiveness of corporate procurement. 15
procurement
244
Corporate Services 14/15 Days
Customer CHAS Scheme review of the new company 12
services arrangements for CHAS to ensure robust
procedures are in place
Customer Blue Badges and Review of procedures for administrating 15
Services concessionary fares blue badge and concessionary fares, to
include taxi card scheme and freedom
passes. Audit to include proactive fraud
work in relation to duplicate cards.
Customer Local Welfare Support Review of the Council’s arrangements for | 12
services Scheme administration of the new local scheme
for Council Tax
Customer Registry office Review of income and expenditure and 12
services control of certificates.
Customer Bailiff service. Review of bailiff service including a 10
services review of the controls on cash handling
Corporate Health & Safety Review of the arrangements in place for 8
Governance managing the risk of asbestos
Resources | Petty Cash Imprest To review the councils arrangements in 10
place for petty cash imprests
Resources | Monitoring of Schools Systems review of the information from 10
returns the schools and monitoring of this area.
Resources | Merton and Sutton Joint | review of grant claim 8
Cemetery Board-
HR Recruitment To review the robustness of the council’s 15
employee vetting procedures and
recruitment process making comparison
with best practice and third party data
sources. The review will include
compliance with the Information
Safeguarding Authority’s requirements
and employees rights to work in the uk

Page 122




HR Corporate Review of Review compliance with statutory

DBS Checks requirements and Council policy and the

'process for safeguarding personal
information received across all
departments (CRB now DBS)

15

Children’s Schools and Families 2014/15

127

Days

Children Social and
Youth

Children Social Care Review of commissioning
Contracts process, to ensure that it is
transparent, robust, and
rigorously followed. review of
contract in place to include
16+accomodation

15

Education

Schools - Probity reviews | Financial and Governance
reviews of a sample of nine
schools selected based on
risk methodology,

48

Children Social and
Youth

Troubled families grant Review of troubled families
grant claims

Children Social and
Youth

Respite Care Unit- Review of the financial
Brightwell. controls in relation to income
and expenditure

Education

Schools utility Review of a sample of
schools commissioning
arrangements for utilities

10

Education

Follow-up review on previous
Youth Service audit report, in particular a
review of procurement cards
and expenditure

10

Page 123

98




Community and Housing

14/15

Details

Days |

Libraries

Review of libaries- arrangements
for managing income, review of
petty cash, procurement cards
etc.

To review controls in place
around income and
expenditure. To include the
use of procurement
cards/imprest accounts

15

Housing

DFG Housing funding- review of
Disabled facilities grants

A regularity audit which
reviews the procedures
relating to the entitlement of
grant, calculation of the grant
and appropriate division of
duties and authorisation.

10

Direct Provision

Review of residential homes -
Meadowsweet and Riverside

To review controls in place
around income and
expenditure. In relation to
client monies and to the use
of procurement cards/imprest
accounts

15

Direct Provision

Mascot Service

Review of the income and
expenditure arrangements in
place for the Mascot service.
Scope of audit coverage to be
agreed

10

Commissioning

Home Care contracts

This audit will examine
systems and procedures for
the management and
monitoring of Domiciliary care
contracts to ensure that these
contracts provide value for
money

15

Commissioning

Supporting People

A systems based review
covering all the financial
aspects of the scheme and
the administration of
payments made under the
scheme.

15

Public Health

Public Health

To review new Public Health
arrangements following
transfer April 13. In relation to
the commissioning
arrangements

15

Commissioning

Block and Spot Contracts

Review of commissioning and
monitoring arrangements in
place

15

Environment and Regeneration

2014/15

110

DIVISION

TITLE

Days

Public Protection
and Development

Section 106 monies

To review the arrangements in
place for setting up Section 106
agreements. To review the
bidding process.

15

Page 124



Public Protection | Car Parks - Penalty A system review of the issuing 15
and Development | Charges and collection of income
Street Scene and | Vehicle maintenance Review of the financial controls, 15
Waste use of external contractors and
stock control mechanisms
Sustainable Pitch Lettings/public To review the arrangements in 12
communities halls/allotments place for bookings and income
collection
Sustainable Commercial Property Rents | A review of the arrangements 12
communities for letting commercial properties
from agreements to income
collection arrangement
Sustainable Grounds Maint. Contract A review of the arrangements in 12
communities place for monitoring the grounds
maintenance contract
Public Protection | Service Tenancies Review of arrangements in 10
and Development place for service tenancies
Safer Merton Safer Merton - CCTV A follow up audit on the CCTV 10
contract contract. Issues identified in the
last review.
Street Scene and | Commercial waste This audit will examine 15
Waste management and control of
commercial waste to ensure that
sound systems and procedures
are in place
Grant claim sign off To audit grant claims such as 8
city cycle and smiles project.
121
IT Audit Plan 14/15
DIVISION TITLE Days
Public Protection | M3 Planning Computer IT audit on access controls, user | 10
and Development | System access, input and output
controls and security.
Public Protection | Parking Computer System IT audit on access controls, user | 10
and Development access, input and output
controls and security.
Infrastructure and | Software Licence Audit IT audit on access controls, user | 10
Transactions access, input and output
controls and security.
Housing Capita housing - academy IT audit on access controls, user | 10
access, input and output
controls and security.
Resources Financial System Progress review of the new | 10
financial system. Phased review
50

Page 125




Key Financial Systems

Area of Review Description of work Days
Review of key controls Review of key controls within the councils key financial systems.
across fundamental and | Ensure compliance with external audit requirements. Systems
financial systems
75
Borrowing and Investments/treasury management 15
Capital budget management 15
Business Rates 15
Council Tax Systems Based 15
Creditors / Payments System 15
Support 2014/15
Area of Review Description of work Days
Consultancy and Audit has an important role to play in advising 20
advice management on an ad-hoc basis on a range of issues
affecting services. This provision is used to offer advice
and assistance throughout the year.
Providing support including advice and reporting to
Committee and Committee 25
member support
Follow up of reviews carried out in 13/14 to ensure 25
Follow up audits implementation of recommendations
Management time Provision for management time to direct, control and 35
monitor the work of the internal audit team and outsourced
provision
Carry over of 13/14 To finalise all draft reports from 2013/14 60
audit plan
165
Investigation Team Anti Fraud Work Days
Housing Benefit Investigation of Housing Benefit fraud, including issuing 940
Investigations sanctions and preparing for prosecutions
Fraud Investigations Investigation of internal fraud, including preparing for 120
(other) disciplinary and if appropriate prosecution
Proactive Fraud work  To undertake proactive fraud work on a number of areas 160
of high fraud risk. Workshops to be set up with
departments
NFI To take part on the National Fraud Initiative exercise, 40
submitting data and analysing results.
Training To provide ad-hoc anti fraud training with internal audit to 10
areas of risk in the council.
Updating fraud To review and update fraud policies; Whistleblowing 20
policies policy, Anti Fraud & Corruption strategy, Anti Money
Laundering and Prosecution policy.
1290

Page 126




Appendix B
Internal Audit Charter 14/15

This charter sets out the purpose, authority and responsibility of the Council’s Internal
Audit function, in accordance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

The charter will be reviewed annually and presented to the GP Committee (which
covers the role of the ‘board’ as defined in the standard) for approval.

Purpose

Internal Audit is defined by the Institute of Internal Auditors’ International Professional
Practices Framework as “an independent: objective assurance and consulting activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance
processes”.

The Accounts and Audit Regulation 2011 require an annual review of the effectiveness
of its system of internal audit to be reported to the General Purposes committee for
consideration. The system of internal control is broader than just the work of the internal
audit section and includes the framework of assurance covering how the risks to the
authority are identified with effective managed controls. Assurances are provided by a
range of internal and external providers. The Head of Audit & Investigations will assess
whether the overall framework of assurances is adequately designed and effectively
operated through a plan of internal audit work.

In addition to the above, the Director of Corporate Services has a statutory duty under
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, to establish a clear framework for the
proper administration of the local authority’s affairs. To perform that duty the Section
151 Officer relies on, amongst other things the internal audit work for reviewing systems
of internal control, financial management and other assurance processes.

The standards for ‘proper practice’ in relation to internal audit are laid down in Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards (effective from 1% April 2013). We will ensure continued
compliance with these professional standards.

Authority

In carrying out their duties and responsibilities, Internal Audit shall be entitled to have
full and unrestricted access to all of the Council’s activities, records, property, personnel
and information, which they consider to be necessary to properly fulfill their function.
Access also applies to other third parties / organisation’s as permitted through contract,
shared services and partnering

Internal audit will consider all requests from the external auditor for access to any
information: files or working papers obtained or prepared during audit work and which
external audit need to discharge their responsibilities.

Responsibilities

As an independent appraisal function within the authority, the primary objective of
Internal Audit is to review, appraise and report upon the adequacy of the control
environment comprising the systems o1|‘:’governance, risk management and internal

age 127



control as a contribution to achieving the council’s objectives and the proper, economic,
efficient and effective use of resources.

In addition, the other objectives of the function are to:

e To provide a quality’ independent and objective audit service that effectively
meets the Council’s needs’ adds value’ improves processes and helps protect
public resources

e To provide assurance that the Council’s operations are being conducted in
accordance with legislation’ and relevant external and internal regulations’
policies and procedures

e To provide assurance that significant risks to the Council’s objectives are being
managed

e To continue to develop and have a lead in the council’s corporate governance
arrangements including production of the ‘Annual Governance Statement’ to
provide assurance on the council’s governance arrangements and any areas for
improvement.

e Promote the council’s an anti fraud, anti bribery and anti corruption culture within
the Council to aid the prevention and detection of fraud

e To provide assurance to management on the integrity, effectiveness and
operation of the council’s internal control system;

e To support management through the provision of advice and guidance on the
overall control environment’ and where new systems and / or procedures are
implemented

e To be responsive to transformational change and service demands;
e To continue to meet the requirements of the council’s external auditors;

e To follow up on agreed actions to ensure that those agreed have been fully
implemented,;

e To assist investigations where there is suspected fraud bribery and corruption
and to provide recommendations for improved controls.

In meeting its responsibilities, the activities of Audit will be conducted in accordance
with the council’s objectives, established policies and procedures. In addition, internal
auditors comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Audit will co-ordinate effectively with the External Auditors for optimal audit coverage
and to ensure that appropriate reliance can be placed on internal audit work.

The Head of the Internal Audit is required to provide the Council via the Director of
Corporate services and the General Purposes Committee with an annual opinion on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system for the whole council.

There are inherent limitations in any system of internal control and thus errors or
irregularities may occur and not be detected by internal audit’s work. When carrying out
its work: internal audit will provide management with comments and report on
breakdowns failures or weaknesses of internal control systems together with
recommendations for remedial action. However: internal audit cannot absolve line
management of responsibility for internal controls.

Page 128



Where appropriate: internal audit will undertake audit or consulting work for the benefit
of the Council in organisation’s that are wholly owned by the Council (such as CHAS).
Internal audit may also provide assurance to the Council on third party operations
where this is provided for as part of the agreement or contract.

Anti Fraud and Corruption

Managing the risk of fraud and corruption is the responsibility of management. Internal
Audit reviews alone, even when performed with due professional care, cannot
guarantee that fraud or corruption will be detected. Audit will however be alert in all their
work to risks and exposures that could allow fraud or corruption.

The Head of Audit & Investigations will also seek to develop pro-active anti-fraud work
through a series of specifically focused reviews into areas of high risk of fraud or
irregularity.

Joint work will be undertaken on some fraud investigations. Internal Audit will also
identify all areas of control risks and make appropriate recommendations to reduce the
risk of further fraud occurring.

The investigation team will undertake proactive fraud work on areas of high risk as well
as undertaking investigations on reported allegations of fraud either from audit,
managers or whistleblowers.

Related Documents

This document is one of a series that, together, constitute the policies of the authority in
relation to anti-fraud and corruption. The other documents are:

¢ Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy
¢ Anti-Money Laundering Policy
¢ Whistle-blowing Policy

Reporting

The UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Head of Audit &
Investigations to report directly to the top of the organisation and those charged with
governance. This will be done as follows:

e The Audit Charter will be agreed with the GP Committee

e The annual audit plan will be compiled by the Head of Audit & Investigations
following discussions with senior managers at their Departmental
Management Team (DMT) meetings:

e Progress reports will be made to DMT’s on a quarterly basis

e The Head of Audit & Investigations will report at least twice a year to the
General Purposes Committee on progress made against the Annual Audit
Plan together with any significant risk exposures and control issues arising
and the summarised outcomes of individual audits.

e The Head of Audit & Investigations will provide an Annual Audit Report to
the General Purposes Committee that includes an opinion on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the control environment.

e Any instances of non conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit

Page 129



Standards will be reported to the General Purposes Committee and will be
included in the Head of Audit & Investigations annual report. Any significant
failings will be included in the Annual Governance Statement

e Any external review of the internal audit function will be agreed by and
reported to the General Purposes Committee

Independence

The main determinant of the effectiveness of Internal Audit is that it is seen to be
independent. The Head of Audit & Investigations has full and unrestricted access to the
following:

The Director of Corporate Services (S151 officer)
Chief Executive

Chair of the General Purposes Committee

e The Council’s Monitoring Officer

All senior management

The Internal Audit Section is part of the Corporate Governance Division within
Corporate Services. The Head of Audit & Investigations, who is required to hold a
professional qualification (CCAB) and be suitably experienced, is responsible for the
strategic management and appropriate resourcing of the service. The Head of Audit &
Investigations has a management reporting line to the Assistant Director of Corporate
Governance (monitoring officer) and also reports to the Director of Corporate Services,
(Section 151 officer).

The Council General Purposes Committee meets at least 4 times a year. The Head of
Audit & Investigations reports directly to the Council via the General Purposes
Committee, and has a right of access to the Chair of the General Purposes Committee.

Notwithstanding the above, the Head of Audit & Investigations has the right of direct
access to any officer and member of the Council

Every effort will be made to preserve objectivity by ensuring that all audit members of
staff are free from any conflicts of interest and do not undertake any non-audit duties.
All audit staff complete an annual declaration of interests form and would not be
assigned audit work if there was any potential conflict.

External auditors

The external auditors fulfill a statutory duty. Effective collaboration between internal and
external audit helps to ensure effective and efficient audit coverage and resolution of
issues of mutual concern. Internal and eternal audit will meet periodically to discuss
respective work plans and coverage: and potential issues arising from work completed.

Due Professional Care
The Internal Audit Section is bound by the following standards:

e Institute of Internal Auditor’s International Code of Ethics
¢ Seven Principles of Public Life (Nolan Principles)

e UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

¢ All Council Policies and Procedures

Page 130



o All relevant legislation

Internal Audit is subject to a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme that
covers all aspects of internal audit activity. This consists of an annual self-assessment
of the service and its compliance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards,
ongoing performance monitoring and an external assessment at least once every five
years by a suitably qualified, independent assessor.

A programme of Continuous Professional Development (CPD) is maintained for all staff
working on audit engagements to ensure that auditors maintain and enhance their
knowledge, skills and audit competencies.

Page 131



Appendix C
Service Performance Targets

Effectiveness of
time Productive/direct time as % of total time| ¢ 70%
Productivity e Achievement of annual plan by 30™ April| © 90%
and Process 2013 (%)
e Issue of draft report after completion | e Within 10 Days
of fieldwork
o  Client responses received to draft audit | ® Within 15 Days
reports from issue
e Issue of final report after agreement with | * Within 10 Days
client of draft
e Time between start of audit (entry e Days not excegding 3x
meeting) and exit meeting total planned timefor
_ _ . - audit review
J Audlt reviews delivered within budgeted | , 4009,
time
Quality of e Client satisfaction levels (including e 90% of scores within
Output added value from audit good to excellent
recommendations), source customer
satisfaction questionnaires
e External audit reliance on work ¢ Reliance placed
Compliance
with . , o ,
Professional e Public Sector Internal Audit Standards e 100% compliant
Standards
dO:gt;?'gLnﬁi and e Implementation of agreed e 90% of _
influence recommendations Recommendation
Our Staff e Professionally Qualified/ Part qualified |e¢ 80%
CPD
e 5 Day(Minimum).
e Annual Training & Development
Received

Page 132



Agenda Item 11

Committee: General Purposes Committee
Date: 12" March 2014

Agenda item:
Wards:

Subject: Internal Audit Progress and Whistleblowing Update
Lead officer: Caroline Holland — Director of Corporate Services
Lead member: Chair of the GP Committee
Forward Plan reference number:
Contact officer: Margaret Culleton Head of Audit & Investigations

Tel. 020 8545 3149 margaret.culleton@merton.gov.uk

Recommendation:

A. That Members note the Internal Audit Progress Report and comment
upon matters arising from it.

B. That members note the Whistleblowing update.

C. That members note the independent review being carried out on a

proposed shared internal audit & investigation service.

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report summarises the work carried out to date by Internal Audit within the
2013/14 financial year. It also details the progress on implementing
recommendations from audits completed.

1.2  Internal Audit seeks to ensure that Merton’s financial and other systems adhere
to recognised standards and that public accountability can be demonstrated and
is transparent.

1.3 Internal Audit is responsible for conducting an independent appraisal of all the
Council's activities, financial and otherwise. It provides a service to the whole
Council, including Members and all levels of management. It is not an extension
of, nor a substitute for, good management. The Internal Audit Service is
responsible for giving assurance on all control arrangements to the General
Purposes Committee and the Director of Corporate Services (also known as the
Section 151 Officer); it also assists management by evaluating and reporting to
them the effectiveness of the controls for which they are responsible.

Page 133



2.2

2.3

24
2.4.1

242

243

244

2.4.5

Details

In order to contribute to the Annual Governance Statement all Internal Audit
reports give an audit assurance. The definitions of these opinions are given
below:

Opinion Definition

Substantial Assurance There is an adequate system of controls designed
to achieve the system objectives

Satisfactory Assurance | All key controls in place, but there is some
evidence of minor controls not operating or
documentation missing

Limited Assurance Significant weaknesses have been identified in the
system of control, which put the system objectives
at risk.

No assurance Control is weak, causing the system to be

vulnerable to error and abuse

In addition each recommendation is given a high, medium or low risk priority. All
recommendations are followed up by Internal Audit to ensure that they have
been implemented.

A key part of internal audit work is to provide advice to managers; this can either
be attendance at meetings, working groups or telephone advice. During
2013/14, advice to departments represented 6% of auditor time.

Planned Audit Reviews

This financial year we have finalised 54 audits, 22 of which relate to completion
of the 2012/13 audit plan. Nine of these reports have been given a limited
assurance (16%), the progress report at this time last year 32% limited
assurance reports had been issued.

For the 2013/14 audit plan there are 32 at final stage, 19 at draft stage and 10 in
progress. All audit reports issued since April 2013 and outstanding audit actions
are included in Appendix A.

Since the last progress report in September 2013, there have been 3 final
reports (20%) with substantial assurance, 9 issued with a satisfactory assurance
(60%) and 3 final reports (20%) issued with a limited assurance.

As at the end of February 84% of the 2013/14 audit plan had been completed
(final and draft reports). It is expected the plan will be completed to final report
stage by the end of April 2013.

Table 1 details those audits with a limited assurance (below the required

standard) issued since the last committee report in September 2013. Table 2
lists those audits with satisfactory assurance issued since September 2013.

Page 134



Table 1 — Audit Assurances —limited

Audit Title Department
Street & Market Traders ER
Procurement Cards CS
Recruitment & vetting CS
procedures

2.4.6 The main concerns relating to street & market traders was the cash handling
arrangements and delays in issuing permits.

2.4.7 The procurement card review found that clearer procedures and guidance is
needed for users, that the cards were not being used for the correct type of
expenditure

2.4.8 The recruitment and vetting audit raised concerns in relation to whether the
correct shortlisting and probation procedures had been followed, procedures for
appointing apprentices or consultants was also unclear.

2.4.9 The Management Summaries of all these limited reports including a summary of
the agreed actions can be found in Appendix B.

2.4.10 Table 2 details the reports given a satisfactory or substantial assurance.

Table 2 — Audit Assurance — Satisfactory/substantial

Audit Title Department
Pre paid cards CH
Rent deposits CH
Haslemere Primary School CSF
Garfeild primary school CSF
Cramner primary school CSF
Hillcross primary school CSF
School Bacs procedures CSF
IT Civica - Revenue CS
Pension shared service CS
Debtors CS
IT audit on Ash debtors CS
Merton Priory Homes CH
IT security in schools-Garfeild CSF

2.4.11 This year so far there have been nine additional requests for work; there have
been three additional audits and six reviews where assurances on controls were
required following Whistleblowing concerns. Where additional work is
requested, a decision is made on whether this work replaces other planned
work on the audit plan.

Page 135



2.4.12 Internal Audit has also provided cash handling training to the bailiff team and

3.1.1

3.1.2

4.2

4.3.

assisted on the setup of an on-line declaration of interest form to replace the
manual forms and extended to include staff relationships.

Following up on the Implementation of Agreed Actions

In 2013/14 there have been 373 agreed actions by managers. The agreed
actions for all audits are always followed up. Future implementation dates are
agreed with management and a monthly trigger report is run when this date is
met. A follow-up report is then sent to officers responsible for implementing the
agreed actions to ascertain whether the action has been implemented or
reasons for non implementation. There are 117 actions due to be implemented.

If responses are not received from managers by the following month reminders
are escalated to Heads of Service/ Assistant Director Level. If no response is
received for those overdue by 3 months or more, then these are reported to GP
Committee. There are currently no actions more than 3 months overdue.

Whistleblowing

A summary of all Whistleblowing allegations is reported to the General
Purposes committee on an annual basis. The whistleblower’s identity will
however, always remain confidential, unless the whistleblower makes it public.

Appendix C outlines the allegations received and the action taken since the last
time the Whistleblowing activity was reported to committee in March 2013.
There have been 24 Whistleblowing incidents reported in the last year. This
compares to 13 incidents last year and 16 the year before.

e Twelve cases are on-going

e Four cases have resulted in recommendations on improved
controls.

e Eight cases were inconclusive

Table 4 Whistleblowing by departments

Dept Fraud/ | Data HR
Corrup | Protection | issues
tion

Corporate Services 3 0 1

Environment & Regeneration 6 1 5

Community & Housing 2 1 2

Children Schools & Families 3 0 0

Total 14 2 8

The council encourages staff, contractors and others to raise concerns. In order
to raise awareness of the councils Whistleblowing procedures, the council have
undertaken the following:-

o Filler slide in the Foyer

Page 136



4.4

4.5.

4.5.1

452

453

454

4.5.5

4.5.6

o Leaflets sent out to all Departments, partners and schools.

o Intranet Links on the Procurement site and the CHAS website
on the Internet

o The policy is available on the Intranet and the Internet.

o As well as being on standard terms and conditions of
contracts.

A review of all the fraud policies is scheduled to be carried out early in 2014/15.
These include the following policies:- Whistleblowing, Anti-fraud & Corruption,
Anti-Money Laundering and the prosecution policy.

Fraud Investigations

On 1% February 2014 the Investigation Team merged with the Internal Audit
Section to form the Audit & Investigation Service. The merge will build on the
proactive work currently undertaken and will assist with the co-ordination
between the two teams on areas of fraud risk

Fraud investigations are currently undertaken on Whistleblowing allegations
unless otherwise agreed, as well as on issues identified during audit reviews or
management concerns. Depending on the nature of the concern raised, these
will either be reviewed by the investigation, audit team or externally.

In addition to this, pro-active fraud testing is included in all work carried out by
Internal Audit, this testing ensures that controls are strengthened to reduce the
risk of fraud. Proactive fraud testing was included in the pre-paid cards audit,
and procurement card audit.

Additional proactive fraud training was provided this year by the Internal Audit
Section on cash handling procedures for the bailiff team. This training was
interactive and encouraged the staff to consider the fraud risks in their area and
possible solutions to managing these risks.

The investigation team have undertaken proactive joint blue badge fraud
investigation work with the police and the parking section, which has resulted In
2 cautions and 1 successful prosecution. The police are now keen to undertake
regular monthly exercises.

The investigation team has also undertaken Housing Benefit investigations and
set a target of 70 sanctions for 13/14, as at the end of January 2014; they were
on target with 56 sanctions issued. Sanctions can be: - Prosecution,
Administrative Penalties or a caution.

Table 5 Breakdown of Sanctions 12/13 and 13/14 (to January 14)

Year | Admin. Penalty | Caution | Prosecutions Total

12/13 10 45 15 70

13/14 9 29 19 56 (to end
of Jan)

Page 137



457

4.6
4.6.1

46.2

46.3

5.2

7.2

The investigation team also work with trading standards to put in place
confiscations proceedings to recover loss funds where possible.

National Fraud Initiative

The National Fraud Initiative 2012/13 matched a variety of data, such as
Housing Benefit, Council Tax, Electoral Roll, Payroll, Pensions etc. The data
received from the Audit Commission in February 2013 resulted in 8,600
matches for Merton.

Out of 8,600 matches, there were 2,676 recommended high priority matches.
The council has processed 3,518 matches and identified 10 cases of fraud and
8 cases of claimant error. Initial feedback from the Audit Commission has
indicated that Merton is ahead of other authorities.

The exercise has identified overpaid Housing and council tax benefit of
£51,747.12 and pension overpayments of £1,747.30. The exercise is still on-
going and a further 165 matches are in progress. The council will be seeking to
recover this money.

Independent Review

An independent review is currently being undertaken to consider options for a
four borough shared Internal Audit & Investigation service with Richmond,
Kingston and Sutton. This review will consider current methods of working in
each authority and consider whether it would be beneficial for each council to be
part of a shared service.

The outcome of the independent review will be completed in March 2014. The
Directors and senior officers from each authority will then consider report and
any potential options. The outcome of this will then be reported to the General
Purpose’s committee in June 2014.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

None for the purposes of this report.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED

The strategic plan, Internal Audit Plan and charter have been agreed with Chief
Officers who have consulted with their Management teams. Business Partners
and Financial Advisors for each department have also been consulted.
Customer Agreements are in place. The Head of Audit & Investigations has
monthly meetings with the Director of Corporate Services to report upon
progress against the Plan.

Audit briefs outlining the scope and objectives of each audit are agreed with the
relevant manager prior to the audit commencing.

Page 138



7.3

10.
101

11.

111

12
121
12.2

13
13.1.

13.2.

All audit reports are discussed with managers prior to issuing as a draft, further
meetings are held if required and comments from the Manager and Head of
Service/Assistant Directors are included in the final report.

TIMETABLE
None for the purposes of this report.

FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS

The planned work and unplanned work is undertaken within the budget
allocated.

LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

This report sets out a framework for Internal Audit to provide a summary of
internal audit work for 2013/14. The Local Government Act 1972 and
subsequent legislation sets out a duty for Merton and other councils to make
arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs. The
provision of an internal audit service is integral to the financial management at
Merton and assists in the discharge of these statutory duties.

HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION
IMPLICATIONS

Effective and timely auditing and advice enables Departments, Voluntary
Organisations and Schools to provide quality services to their clients. These
client groups are often vulnerable members of the community, e.g. elderly
people, disabled people, asylum seekers, members of staff and voluntary
organisations. The audit service helps to identify weak financial management
and sometimes reflects weaknesses in other operational systems such as
quality and ethnic monitoring. Audit, therefore, has a crucial role in ensuring that
Council resources are used to enable a fair access to quality services.

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

The report does however include brief details of potential fraud investigations in
progress.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

The Audit Plan has a risk assessment formula built into the process. This takes
such aspects as expenditure, income, and previous audit findings into account
and calculates priorities and the frequency of the audit.

In addition to the audit risk assessment formula the Corporate Risk Register is
consulted during the production of the Internal Audit Plan.

Page 139



13.3. The Audit Brief at the beginning of the audit, and the internal audit reports at the
end of the audit also identify risks. Audit Recommendations are categorised
high, medium or low priority in relation to the level of risk involved.

APPENDICES - THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED
WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT

e Appendix A- Internal Audit Progress since April 2013

e Appendix B — Limited assurance Management summaries and agreed
actions.

e Appendix C- Whistleblowing

BACKGROUND PAPERS

i. Documents held in Internal Audit Files

Page 140



4 3 0l Aioyeysiies | €1/60/€) I SE] sele}ewWa)
4 4 9l paywi | ¢1/60/€) ) lloJAed
0 4 8 Aioyoeysipes | €1/80/0€ R SE| S9|2IYdA pauopueqy
0 6 Ll paywil | €1/80/¥L HO INTEY=R)
| 4 ol Aioyoeysiies | €1/80/€2 4SO Bulieyso4
0 3 vl Aioyoeysiies | €1/20/S1 ) HANN
0 | 3 Aoyoeysiies | €1/20/S1 SO XE} [Iouno)
0 | G Aoyoeysijes | €1/20/€2 ) Njouag buisnoH
0 S Gl paywi [ €1/90//2 4SO uopdopy
sainpaooud
0 0l 14 paywil | €1/90/L1 SO Bumen 1 Juswyinioay
diysesjuioddy/uonosioud
0 3 8 Aioyoeysiies | €1/50/1€ HO JO HNno)
|[ooyos Alewd weyjad
0 6 Ll Aioyoeysiyes | €1/90/1€ 4SO | — BuipueH ejeq pue Ajnoag ||
0 | 9 Aoyoeysijes | €1/50/¥2 ) sJoige@
0 0 4 Aioyoeysiies | €1/50/S1 HO sjuswIssasse |ejoueul
| 9 ol Aojoeysiies | €1/50/€0 SE] Juswabeue| Jossy
0 0 J] Aioyoeysiies | €1/#0/0€ SO 90IAIBS paleys [ebaT
|[ooyos Alewlld alawa|seH
0 L / Aiojoeysiies | €1/#0/92 4SO | BuipueH ejeq pue Ajnoag 1|
|[ooyos Alewd |nedws J8yed SS
0 0 4 Aoyoeysiies | €1/#0/92 480 | BuipueH eyeq pue Ajunosg ||
[ooyos Alewlid uapJlop
0 0 ol Aoyoeysiyes | €1/¢0/52 4SO | BulpueH ejeq pue Ajnoag 1|
0 0 Z Aioyoeysiyes | €1/¥0/L1 SO | dnyoeq pue Aianooal sejsesiq ||
0 4 8 Aioyoeysiyes | €1L/v0/L) HO SjoeJju0) ale) |ejuaplisay
0 0 4 paylwil | €L/40/2) SE Jodsuel] Jobusssed
ueld €1/21

suoljoe suoljoe suoljoe ajeq
9NpJaAO JO ON Buipuejsino jo oN JO ON aoueinssy Joday jeulq juawiedaqg 9L ypny

Vv Xipuaddy

€102 |udy aouis ssaiboud jipny jeulajul

Page 141



0 4 Z lejueisansg | #1/20/€lL HO SawoH Alold uous|y
0 g 3 Aiojoeysies SO soeoud uo Jipne ||
0 e 3 Aloyoeysiies | #1/20/S0 SO USy Uo jJipne ||
wieo
0 0 a|qeolidde UON |  €L/0L/LE 4SO €1 100 saljiwey buiwiosuel |
0 0 S a|qedlidde uoN |  €1/21/20 SO Bujuresy buipuey yseo — yijreg
0 4 3 Aioyoeysiies | #1/L0/S1 SO soeg |00Yos
0 4 ¥ Aioyoeysies | €1/11/62 SO 9OIAIBS paJeys uoisuad
wJoj aul-uo dn
0 0 a|qedlidde UoN |  €1/21/Z) SO Buipes -}saleyul jo uonelepag
0 4 0l Aoyoeysiies | €1/11/62 4SO |ooyos Alewlld ss0.o||IH
0 0 9 lejueysgns | ¢L/L1L/62 4SO |ooyos Alewld Joauweld
0 8 el Aioyoeysies | €1/z1/91 SO BNUBADY - BOIAID JIpNe ||
0 9 Jl Aoyoeysies | ¢L/LL/EL HO awayog Jisodap Juay
0 | 9 lenueysqns | €1/01/22 4SO |ooyos Alewid plaipes
0 0 el Aioyoeysiies | €1/11/62 4S9 looyog Alewid alews|seH
0 0 a|qeolidde UON |  €1/60/20 E wie|o yuelb (1) 8joAD AN
9 4 9 Aioyoeysiies | €1/01/20 HO spJeo pled aid
0 0 a|qeolidde uoN |  €1/60/0€ [SE| 9OIApE }SN.| Uoljealoay
0 / . payiwil | ¢1/60/0¢ NE siepeJ} 199,13 B 19xJe N
pajiwi] |ooyos
0 0 0¢ €1/60/.1 480 Atewid Uopa|quIIAA ISOAN
0 0 8 paylwiy | €1/60/91 SE] awooul syled
wiejo
0 6 a|qeoldde UON |  €1//0/1€ 480 ¢l Anr seljjwey Bulwiojsuel |
0 z J Aopeysies | €1/20/6) 480 l0oyos AlBuwlid uobely
0 0 B/ | €1/90//2 IV | 1uswsje}s 8ouBUIBAOS [enuuy
110 ubis juelb — pieog
0 0 a|qeoljdde uoN €1/50/12 ¥3 | A1elewa) Julor UoOHNS B UOUSIN
0 3 8 Aioyoeysies | €1/90/v2 SO Juswabeuew sapioe
0 0 4 Aojoejsnes | €1/#0/92 SO Ayjeydsoy pue syi9
ue|d IpPNY pL/gL

suoljoe suoljoe suoljoe ajeq
O9NPISBAO JO ON m:_v:mumuso JO ON JO ON adueinssy tonmw_ |euld u:wEthmn_ 9}l ypny

Page 142



Aiojoejsijes ¥1/€0/€0 HO | suolleulluoON pue SSaussa|oWoH

pajwil | ¥1/€0/€0 HO/4SO spund 2ljgnd 0} 8sin0dal ON

Aioyoeysiies | #1/€0/€0 SO ¢ aseyd Ajinoag ||lemall

Alojoejsies ¥1/£0/€0 y3 uodsuel; Jebuassed

Aioyejsies | #1/€0/€0 480 looyos ybiH aulinsin

Aioyoeysiies | #1/€0/€0 SO )ipne JebpaT |esousD

pajwll | ¥1/€0/€0 3 UJaOUOD U0108}0.d Ejed

Aoyeysiies | #1/€0/€0 480 |]ooyds |eoads pleslad

Aloyoeysiies | #1/€0/€0 SO sasuadxa jJualyl

Aioyoeysiies | #1/20/02 SO sjyeuag bBuisnoH

Aioyoeysiies | #1/20/€0 SE Bupyied sjuspisey

Aioyeysipes | #1/20/20 ) Yueg pue yse)

Aoyoeysiies | #1/10/82 SO z @seyd Ajlunoag |lemall

Aoyoeysiies | #1/20/L1L 4SO Buiuueld aoeyd jidnd

pajwil | ¥1/L0/9) SO sanpadoid pJed Jeysho

Aioyoejsiies | #1/10/7) SO | @seyd ||lemauyy

Aioyeysiies | #1/10/91 4SO [ Jauweid-sjooyds ul Ajunodass ||

Aoyoeysiies | #1/L0/91 4SO |  SS0J||IH-S|00Yds ul Ajunoes ||

Aoyoeysiies | ¢€L/gLive SO wJuo ||

suodal jeaq

9 cl Alojoejsies €1/20/5¢2 480 pllope-s|00yas ul Ajunodes ||
0 0 a|qeoidde uoN ¥1/20/61 SE wiejo juelb (g) ajoho Ajo
0 8 Aioyeysiies | #1/20/61 SO suJnjas 8 yueq pa|Iouodalun
wieo

0 0 a|qedlidde UON | ¥1/20/¥) 480 | go4 sal|lwey BujwJlojsues |
¥4 %4 pajwi] ¥1/20/12 SO SpJed juswaindold
€ 9 aoueInssy | ¥1/20/.0 ) siojgeQ

Page 143



Buissiw yseo Jo Juans ay} ul Bulopbuoim Jo suolesnode 0}
9|geJauInA 8q OS|e p|nod a|qisuodsal yels ‘uolie|ndiuew pue asnge 0} 8|geJaulNA S WB)SAS ay) Jey} sueaw SIy| “suoljoun} SAoge 8y} |[e Jno
S811IBD 19210 |B2IUYDS ] 8y} Se ‘awoaul Jo Buueq pue Buipiodas ‘Bujos)|0o usemiaq sainp Jo uonesedss ou Si 818y} Jey) punoy os|e apA

‘payueq sem }l 8100 J8buU0| JO S}89M OM] 10} uosiad Ul 18I0
[eoluyoa | ay} Aq Jo Jamelp }sap e ul Jayjie pjay sem 000‘z3 01 dn jo yse) -Apdwoid payueq pue Aj2indas pjay jJou Sem Yseod Jeyl punoj apn

"2Jnjeu snouss
2JOW B JO S9SSauUyeaM paljjuspl Siopel) }ayiewl WoJd) awooul Jo Buiyueq pue uoijoa||02 8y} Jo) sainpadold pue walsAs ay) JO MaIAal INQ

Pa2IOAUI S| JUBIO B UBYM ||N}
ul pasiubooal sI awooul 1ey) UsaAIb ‘asyuad 1s00 ay) Joj uonisod |eloueul) 8y} Jo ainjoid Buipes|siw e aAIb pinod siy) ‘Ajjeuonippy “Sigep peq
Jo [9A8] Ybly 0} pes| pinod siy} ‘Allenualod *(¢10z IsnbBny G) ypne siyj Jo awi} ay) je pledun paulewal anp awodul 8U} JO %0f Jeu} punoy oA
"'€102/210Z 10} POAISOS] SWODUI PUB NP SWOdUI UddM]aq UOoSIedwod B JN0 PallIed M ‘UOIJO9[|00 SWOdU| JO SSBUDBAIJDBYS BY) SSOsse 0]

"SIy} ssalppe 0y paydope aq yoeoidde snoliobl
2I0W B ]Bey] papuswiwosal aABY S\ "92Ud2l| plleA e Jnoyum Bunelado aq pjnoo sispel) SWos Jeyl suesw OS|e 1| "Panssl Usaq aABY S82Ud2l|
MaU [JUn pasiel 8g JOUUBD SaDI0AUI SE ‘Bwooul Bunoa|joo ul Aejep o|qelapisuod asned ued siy| "(uoleuswnoop 094100 ay) Buiwgns
10U) |eMaual 0o} SuolIpuod ay} yum BuiAi[dwood jou Buipnjoul ‘suoseal snolieA oy (€10 1snBny G) Jpne Siy) Jo awi} 8y} 18 adualdl| B Yjm
panss| Uaaq Jou pey %Gz JOA0 ‘ley} pamoys ‘€10z [Udy | AQ [emaual Joj anp a1om S90UdJI| 8SOYM Siapel) Bulsixa Jo malnal [eonhjeue uy

"|awooul Jo AIBA0D8l By}
0] UOIje|aJ Ul SBSSaUNEaM Paljijuspl MaIABI JNQ "BAI}080 alow Way) ayew 0} pausyjbusalls g 0} papasu pue Yeam a1om S|0Jjuod 8y} alaym
SEeale SWOS aJom a1y} 1By} PAMOYS SJBpEJ) 1984)S WOJ) Swodul Jo Buueq pue uoi}os(|0d 8y} Jo) sainpadold pue walsAs ay) JO MaIABI JINO

sbuipul4 }ipny jo Alewwng

awooul Jo Bupueq pue jdiadal ay} 10} ss8204d }SNQO. B S| 848y} Jey) 8INsud 0|
aA23[qQ Npny

€10z Jequisydas ,0¢ | yoday Jipny |euld jo 8leq

siopel] 1994} R }OMJe|\ :99IAI8S

>._NEESW toamm_ JIpny jeuJaljuj
g xipuaddy

Page 144



paAowal aq |[IM ‘Buissiw Yseo Jo JusAs 8y} Ul Jo [euosiad Jayioym
‘UOI}08]|0D BY} YJIM PaJBIDOSSE Ja2I10 8y} 0} SYSH |[B INg Ulewal [|IM Saiinp uoijoadsu| “jJo)Jew ayj Wodj SUOI08||00 YSBO SA0Wa) pue sAem
Jo Jaquinu e ul ajqehed aq [|Im SIY] "90UdJI| }93JEW PadIoAUl Ue JO uoljejuawaldwl 8y} Uo siaped) 1axiew yim Buninsuod Ajjualind ale apn

"JeaA puooas S}l SIoud Wa)SAs ay) se Jeah [eosl sIy) Ajims alow pied aq ||Im awooul

oy} 1ey} payoadxa si | ‘sjuswied xe | [1DUNOD Sk Jauuew awes ayj ul Jeak ay) Jnoybnoly) peauds aie sjuswAhed Buiuesw jigeq 10841q Aq
pied ale Sa210AUI JO %06 ‘|eMaual ay) Jo Buiwi ay) 03 uonejal ul Jeak 1xeu pajuswa|dwi aq 0} sebueyd alow yym Jeak siyy Jayunj paisnipe
u99Q dABY S9SS9001d "sanss| Buiy}aa) |BJaAaS a1am 818y} pUe |- 0Z Jedk aoual| ay) Joj pajuswa|dwi sem wa)sAs |emaual paroidwi uy

¥10Z Atenigad Gz Jobeuew woiy ayepdn

salIoe) /q/plen pue obuely Buipnoul suondo Jo uolelapISuo)

JUBWIUOJIAUS SSO|YSED B SPJemO) SAOI\

‘Apdwold payueq s ysed jeyy ainsus o

‘paJdidxa aaey yoiym saloljod aouelnsul BuiAyuapl odas e uni o

‘pojusawa|dwi SI Wa)SAS SSB|YSED [IJUn pPajjoJu0d 8q 03 (s8ouadl| se 10e yoiym sydiadal) Aleuolels Jo anssi ay |
"awlooul Jo Bunjueq pue Buiplooal ‘UoI09||0D USaMISq SalNp JO uoneledas si 81ay] 8iNsud 0] sainpadsold map
‘padojenap aq 01 sainpadold usiAA

€10z Jequeydes ,0¢ PaAIgdal sjUsWWOD

siabeuepy woJj ajepdn pue asuodsay Alewwing

Page 145



Jolipne a8y} 0] 8|qe|leAR apelW JoU 81eM pue pajuswnoop Ajjn} usaq jou pey sseoo.d Juswiinioal syl 0) bunejal paAiedal sjuie|duwod Jo Spioday

‘lemaual e Bunsanbal 0} Joud Jebeuew jueas|al ay) yium pamainal Buleq aie asay) 1ey)
90UBPIAS OU SeM aJay} ‘sauljlepinb ay} ul sabueyo aydsap pue padsueyus aJe uayeuspun sy0ayd Sgq Jo Alolew ayy uonippe u| panssi bulaq
1S @4 s)}senbal |enuew jey} pauielqo SeM S2USPIAS JOASMOH “YINgs BIA $)28Yd (g4D) S9Qd Isenbai 0} uoisinoid sy} sey mou Ajoyine ay |

“Jipne Jo awi} 8y} }e asn ul aq 0} paleadde saioljod
yjog -uoneuwuojul Bunoijjuod apiroid 0y paseadde yoiym ‘paijuspl aiam sjuensuod jo juswjuiodde ayy o) Buneal saulepinb Jo s}19S om |
‘spJodaus ay) Bulureyuiew juswyuedsap sy} uo Buipuadap Jusjuod Jivy} ul Aiea 0y paseadde Jpne ay) Buunp pauleiqo sissiboy sjueynsuo) ay|

"elI9)II0 palinbal 8y} Jow sjaued Jusw}inIoal ||e Jey) UoeWIIJUOD Ule)qo O} 8|geun a1om Jipne [eulalul JaASMOH 9sIno9 Bululel) uonos|es
pue juswiinioal JueAs|al e pale|dwod aAey 0} siequiaw |[sued Joj paau a8y} uo souepinb Jeso apiaocid sainpaosold jJuswiinioal JusLINd 8y |

*Aloljuayine 1o} pa)oayo AJWopUERS JOU SJ9M SJUSWINI0P 9S8y} Jey]
punoj sem I ‘pajos|es ajdwes sy} 10} JNO PaLIBd Usaq pey SY08yd 8SNOoY-Ul JUsWInIoal JUBAS|a. 8Y) Jey) paule}qo sem aouspiAe ybnoyly

"9|eosaWl) oljsijeal e sapinold

} Jey) ainsus 0} JapJo Ul ‘siied jusuodwod S} Ojul UMOP USX0Ig pue pamairal aq pjnoys jobie) siy| "Je paAlle sem ainbiy siy) Moy Jo s|iejap
uIelqo 0] 8|geun 8JayMm Jipne |eulalul ‘sallinbus aAlsneyxs ajidsap JaAeMoH ‘sAep 0 Jo 196Je) Jin1oal 0) awin e sey Apuaiino Ajloyine ey
"S90UR)SUI ||B Ul PaMO]|0} U8a( JoU pey SS820.d Jusw)inioal 1081100 8y 1eY] JUSPIAS Sem 1l ‘pajos|es a|dwes ay) Wwo.

"auop Udaq pey SIy) 1By} paule}qo sAemje Jou Sem aoUapIAS ‘JaAaMOoH “1sod 8y} Jo sjuswalinbal ay) 0} Jueas|al ||is si }l 1y}
aInsua 0) JapJo Ul ‘pasiuaApe Buieg Aoueoea e 0} Jold pemairal aie suoneolioads uosiad pue suonduossap qol [je jey) alinbal seinpaooid

"Wi8)sAs Jual] | 8y} ojuo papeojdn usaqg sAemie Jou pey uoljeluswnoop Buiuoddns ayj jey; punoj sem i

‘JonemoH -yels pajuiodde Amau 0} Bunejal uoneuswnoop Buioddns |je jo Buipiodal pue Buluueds ay) s|geus 0} glual] | ul AjijIoe) e s a1ay ]
‘uoneuswaldwi sy

apisbuoje palapIsuod aq piNoys pue wasAs ey} Jo apisino sassasosd apnjoul Lodal siyy ul sbuipuly ay) JoAemoH waisAs Buoes ] jueolddy
mau ay) jo uoneswsajdwi ay} apisbuoje ‘pajepdn Bulaq Jo ssao0id By} Ul 8le SaINpPad0ld Juswiinioay ay) 1ey) sebpajmouoe lodal siyl

sbBuipui4 }ipny jo Atewwng

*sa.nNpaoo.d 9say] 0} 8ouUaldYpe pue YJels Jo Juswiinioal ay) Joj ade(d ul seinpadold ay) malnal 0] adoog Jipny

| €1°9'L) :9eq Woday [euld

sainpadsoid Buijap R JuswinIdy

Page 146



"Syjuow
M3} Xau a8y} uiyum paja|dwod aq pinoys pue ssalbold sy} ul aie Jo pale|dwod usaq Jayie aAeY SUOllepusWWOdal JaYl0 JIpne |eulaixe
AQ malAal Juadal By} Wwolj suoljepuaswwodal Aue Buimo|io) pamainal Ajjny aq [|IMm sjueynsuod Jo juawjuiodde ayy 0} Bunejas sainpasoid ay |

V112/9¢ 1obeuepy woij ayepdn

‘Pamalnal 8 [|IM 600Z SUNf pPalep Juawnoop sasuadxg JO Uoljed0|ay By "pPamalral 8] |IM sasuadxa malalslul Jo JuswAed ay) Joj ainpaosoud
3U| ‘pPaMalAal pue paule}qo aq OS|e [|IM SJUsWpuUoIas uado |e Jo Jodal y "pamalnal 8] [|IM 900Z Palep 84npadold Juswpuooas ay| ‘Adljod
Aieuoneqoid ay} yjm adueploode Ul Jels mau ||e 1oy paje|dwod ase swuoy Aleuoneqold jueasial ayj jey) ainsus 0} Jeplo ul aoe(d ul ind aq
os|e |IIm $sa20.d y "sjuswalinbal JusiINd 8y} S}@8W } ey} 8INSUS O} JBPJO Ul pamalral 8] |IIM 900Z YoJel\ ul panssi Aoljod Aleuoneqold ayl

"BaJe 92IAISS JUBAS|) BU) O} %08Yd Sg( & Jo 1s02 ay) Buibieyd 0} usAlb aq ||Im uoneIapISUOD

‘uoneoijdde |eniul 1o [eMaual Uo Jaylie palinbal }09ayo Jo adA}
ay} Ajluan 0} JapJo ul 9oed ul Ind Wa)sAS e aq ||IM BJay) pue €10z dunr woJ) walsAs Yng-a ay} ybnoayy ob o0y palinbal aq |m s309yd S9Q IV

‘apew sjuswiulodde jo poddns ul papiAcid uoieuawWNI0p 8y} JO UOIBOLIIBA [eulalxe Buluieqo 0} UsAlb aq ||Im uoielapisuo)

‘Buluiel; UoO8|9S puE JUBWIINIDSY
ay} uayeuapun aAeYy oym yejs Jo jood e Bululejuiew 0} USAIB 8q OS|e [|IM UoljelapISuo)) "ssa00lid juswiinioal ay) Jo S}oadse ||B ul Ppamo||o)
S2InNpa20.d UOIID9|9S pPUB JUBWIINIOSY By} pue paulejuiew aq |[IM Buluiel) uoio9|eS pue JusWNIOayY ay} papusie aAeY Oym els e Jo ISl V¥

‘panaiyoe Burag Ajualing ale sjablie) aieym ssaoold jusuwinioal
3y} UIYIIM SeaJe JO UOIBOIIIuUSpI 8y} YIM JSISSE 0] J9pJO Ul pauleqo sainbiy ay) Jo UMOp-)ealq e pue pamalAal aq |IM 186ie) Jinioal 0} awi ay |

‘Aloyine ay) SSo.Ioe paulejuliew ale sia)sibal S JUBNSU0D 8y] YoIym
ul Aem 8y} JO malAal B pue sauliapinb JO 18S 8U0 aq [|IM 818y ‘PamalAal 8( [|IM Slue)nsuo) Jo juswjuiodde sy) 0) Bunejas seinpaooid ay |
uonoe paoaibe Jo AJlewwng

"$00Z 9oUlS uado Usaq pey SJUSLIPUOISS SWOS Jey) paledipul sjuswade|d 8apuooss Jo Jodal
"saullepInb JUa.IND 8Y) Ul UMOP pIe| SB Pamo||o) usaq pey sainpadold uoljeqold ay) 1BY) 80USPIAS OU SeM aJay |

JIpne Jo awi) ay) je

Page 147



pJeo ay} buionpais 0} malA B yum ‘giqissod se uoos se Jabeuew sul sy} 0} pauodas aq |m SBO| pasoylne Jo SuoISSILgns uou ||y
"g|qissod se uoos se aoe(d ul Ind aq |Im sassaoo.d

MU Jey} paw.Iojul Usaq SABY JIpNe [BuJdjul ‘Jels JO Jaquiaw auo uey) aiow Ag pasn Bulaq aiem spJed Juswaindold 1ey) punoy Sem }i dIaypa
‘siseq Aliaenb e uo Ajjlesjuad payoayo pue psjos|es Ajuwopuels aq ||im sidigdas Buipuodsaulod ayy snid sbo| pJed jo sjdwes vy

‘paiIndul ainjipuadxa

[|e Joj s)diaoal ule}al pue uie}qo O} pasu 8y} JO papulwal pue pajoeuod aq |IIM pJed Juswainoold ajesodiod e Buipjoy Apjuanind yels ||y
‘Aloys s|ge|iene aq pjnoys pue pajepdn pue pamalral Buiaq Ajjusiind ale sainpadold

"J9pUd) By} Y}IM 8oue)SISSE apIAod 0} 9|qe aJe Wesd | Juswalnd0ld 8y} Se UOOS Se pPalopud)-al 8q [|IM JOBJJUOD JUSLIND 8y

‘palsanbal 10e5u09 8y} Jo Adod 818|dwod B pue pajoejuod Usaq sey piedhejoieq ‘Japinoid pied Jusuind ay|

slabeue|\ wou} asuodsay Aiewwing

“Hwi| ain)ipuadxa
pasiioyine sy} 0} uoljejal Ul 8oe(d Ul S|0JjU0D JUBAWNDIID 0) JapJo Ul Jaiiddns swes ay) 0} uonoesuel) }iids B UIBJUOD 0} PUNO} Sem PJed auQ

‘uoissiwiad slepjoyp.ies 8y} YIIM 8g 0} punoy SEM SIY} 8SeO Yoes U] "jels Jaylo
Aq se |jom se Jepjoyp.leo paweu ay) Ag pasn Buieq aisym ajdwes pajos|as 8y} Ul SpJed JUsWaINd0id 8y} JO OM] Jeyl paule}jqo SeM 80UspIA]

*pasn aq p|NoyYs SpJed [an} S|IoUN0D 8} USYM ‘SB|IYSA |IoUno9 1o} |any Jo aseyaind ‘eoeld ul joesuoo ajelodiod
e Buleq alay) audsep ‘Aisuoness Jo aseyoind ‘aidwexs Joj 8|gissod Se UOOS Se uayeuspun aq 0} spasau ainjipuadxa Jo sadA} ay) JO MalAal Y

Juawalinbal DYNH 8Yys Jo ued se sydiedal | YA Buiuoddns Jo ‘ies; ipne Jeajo ou Buipinold aiojalay) ‘paldinbal se a|gejieae sAem|e jou alam
ainjipuadxa Jo} sydigooal Jey) punoy Jipne ay} Inq ‘A|jeao] pjay ale pJed juswalndold ajelodio) ay) BIA uayeuapun ainjipuadxa 1o} sjdiaoay

‘panoidde Ajjew.oy
JOAS SBM ]I Jey) 90UBPIAS OU S| alay} pue a)ajdwodul 8q 0y sieadde z 0z paiepdn ‘UOISIaA SIY] “JOeJiSIUIWpPY pJe) juswalndold ay) Aq
pPasn UOISJaA 8y} pue Jaueljul A9 @Y} Uo a|ge[ieA. UOISISA 8y} ‘Jipne SIy} JO awi} 8y} Je asn ul sainpadold Jo s}as om) aq 0} paleadde alay |

‘swiIe) paalbe ay) yum aul| ul paajsiuiwpe Buiaq sem i Jey} JO JUaLIND ||I}S SEeM JOBJJUOD By} 1By} WUIJUOD JoU pjnod
J0o)ipny 8y} Ajjuanbasuo?) ‘g|gejieAe 10e1U0D 8y} Jo sabed aaly) Ajuo Yyim ‘MalAal O} 9|gejleABUN Usa( Sey {JoeJjuod [n} ay) Jo Adoo paubis v

sbBuipui4 }ipny jo Auiewwng

spJed JuswainooJd Jo asn ay) Buliojuow pue Buinssi Joj aoejd ul sseo0.4d 1SNgoJ B SI 81ay) 8insus 0|

saAnoalqQ ypny

| 4dX44 i Hoday 1pny [euld Jo sjeq

SpJed jJuawiaindoldd  :9JIAI8S

Page 148



paJinoul ainyipuadxa Jo sadA} pue anjeA ay} Yyiog JO MaIASJ B 8pN[ouUl |[IM M3IABI 8] “ue|d JIpne [eudajul G|/¢7L0Z 9y} JO Jed se ayeuapun
a(q ||Im sasuadxa |aAel} Jo Buiwie|o-al ay) Joy 8oe|d ul sainpadold pue sassao0.1d Jualind ay} Jo Malaal e Buljelodiooul Jipne [eulaiul uy

"JpNne |[eulajul 0) pauodal Ajg)eIpawiLUl SUISoU0D AUuB pue pamalAal pue palojiuow Aleinbal aq |Im ainjipuadxe pie)
‘uoisinoid 821AI8s 8y) 108)e Aj9SIaApe Jou |IM uoionpal Aue jey)
ainsus 0} Jabeuew Buisiioyine sy Jo abpajmouy Jolid 8y} INOYIM paonpal 8q AJ[BWIOU 10U [|IM S)WI| PJed JoASMOH ‘|3 O Jiwi| ainjipuadxe

Page 149



V4N 0| -1dep 01 pepinoid 821ApY ON 0} Bunejal suieouo) | ¥3 uondnuon | ¢
Buipuad Aseundiosip

— papuadsng wiep gH

Buiob-up 000°01 Buiob-uo uonebiseaul ON UM payul| SuIeouo) | SO €1/20/9) pneiq | zi
SAISN|OUODUI so9} bunjied

V4N 0 uopeblysany| ON JBAO0 pasiel suIadu0) | ¥3 €L/20/91 pnelq | ||
syib jo

V4N 0 punoj 82UspIAS ON SOA | 1d1908al Jnoge suidaduo) | ¥3 €1/20/91 pnelq | 0l
syib jo

Buiob-up umouun Buiob-uo ON | 1di182aJ 1noge suiaduo) | Y3 €1/,0/91 pne.4 6
suoljoesuel)
pne.l} JO 8dUspIAS [eloueuly pue
OU "S|0J3u0d panoidu $$9004d Juswiinioal

V4N 0 - M3lA3J 1PNy [euJaju] ON BuiAjoaul suIeou0) | 480D €L/S0/91 pnel4 8
sanssl

Bulob-up 0 Buiob-uo SOA swabeuew awi] | SO €1/S0/1L2 sonssl YH /
Jnoineyaq
ajeudoiddeul

V4N 0 POAjOSaI SBNSS| SOA 0} Bunejal suieouo0) | HO €1/50/20 sanss| YH 9

dH

0} passed -aouenrsub e suonebalje uonepiwiul

ViN 0 | Jo Yed se paianod aq o] ON pue BulA|ing | Y3 ELY0/SL Sanssl YH )

VdN 0 POA|OSD SaNSS| ON $aNss| YH SnoUeA | HD €L/€0/80 Sanssl YH 14

Bulob-up umouun Buiob up ON | sedloAul as|e} |enuajod | HD €1/€0/20 pne.q 5
sainpasoud 1094100 SUJa2uU0d

ViN 0 JO pawiiojul JadljO ON Ajnoag uonewloju| | HO €1/20/€0 uonosjold ejedg [4

VdN 0 SJ0USPIAS ON ON SaNSsI YH SNOUEA | Y3 €L/co/6l Sanss| YH l
show uonebo| |y

uonoy 3 awoonQ | Auouy JO s|iejaq joug ydaqg ajeq adA] uoneba|y
a xipuaddy vL0Z Aenigad - €10z Arenigad — Aiapoy Buimolgapsium

Page 150



spuny
Jo asn ajeldoiddeul

Buiob-up umouun Buiob-up ON 0} Bunejal uwivduo) | HO ¥1/10/60 pneld | 42
inoineyaq yeis

V4N 0 BSOU3PIAS OU ON 0} Bunejal uIdoU0Y | Y3 €L/LL/9c Sonssi yH | €¢
Jnoineyaq yeis

Bulob-up 0 Buiob-up SOA 0} Bunejal suiedouo) | Y3 eL/11/02 sonssI yH | 22

Buiob-up 0 HJodal ajesedes o83 saA | uondnuioo jo uonebs|y | SO cL/LL/8L uondnuio) | Lz
juswaJinoo.d

Buiob-up umouyun Buiob-up ON 0} Bunejal suleouo) | Y3 SL/LLIEL N4A/uondnuIo) | 0z
sainpaosoud
Juswainooid

Bulob-up umouun Bulob-up ON 0} Bunejal uidouo) | 489D €1/0L/S2 N4A/uondnuio) | 61
SS920E ejep

Buiob-up 0 Buiob-up SOA 0} uoneal uIsduo) | Y3 €1/01/€0 uonosjoid eleq | 8L
J0}JoBIUOD B 0} uolje|al

Bulob-uo 0 Bulob-uo S9A ul JOI)ju09 [eluadjod | 4SO €1/60/vC uopdnuo) | /|

S|043u09 paroidwi uo
apew suoljepuswwoosl

‘uondnuloo SuJB2U0d

VN 0 4O 30U3PIAS ON S9A pJeme J0eqjuo] | ¥3 €1/20/0¢C uopdnuod | 9|
1seJaul
10 1011JU09 |enualod

V4N 0 punoj 820UspINS ON SOA 0} Bunejals suieouo) | SO €1/80/¥1L uondnuo) | G
Jnoineysq yeis

Buiob-up 0 YH Ag uonebnsaau SOA 0} Bunejal suledouo) | Y3 €1/80/S1 sonssi yH | V1L

puej Jo asn

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 152



Agenda ltem 12

Committee: General Purposes Committee

Date: 12" March 2014
Wards: Cricket Green, Graveney, Merton Park and St Helier

Subject: Review of Polling Places

Lead officer: Caroline Holland, Director of Corporate Services
Lead member: Councillor Mark Allison

Contact officer: Tim Revell, Interim Head of Electoral Services

Recommendations:

A. That the General Purposes Committee considers the options for replacement
polling places in Graveney, Merton Park and St Helier Wards and makes a
recommendation to full Council.

B. That the General Purposes Committee considers the alternative polling place
suggested for Cricket Green Ward and makes a recommendation to full Council.

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. This report deals with the final changes to polling places before the
elections on 22™ May 2014. New polling places are required in Graveney
Ward (polling district GB), Merton Park Ward (polling district RA) and St
Helier Ward (polling district BC) due to the loss of the currently designated
buildings. The Committee is also asked to consider an alternative polling
place for polling district ED in Cricket Green Ward.

2 DETAILS

2.1. Graveney Ward; The current polling place for GB polling district is St
Barnabas Hall, Thirsk Road, Mitcham but this is now unavailable as it is
used every day for a children’s nursery. St Barnabas Church which is
adjacent has adapted the rear of the church for use as a meeting place and
has suggested that this area could be used as a polling place. Following a
site visit the church has been assessed as meeting the requirements for a
polling place. It is adjacent to the church and so is known to electors, has
step free access, sufficient space for two polling stations and some albeit
limited off street car parking. This proposal would involve the minimum of
disruption to electors.

2.2 Merton Park Ward; The polling place which has previously been used for
the two polling stations in polling district RA is a room on the ground floor of
the Nelson Hospital, Kingston Road. The hospital is currently being rebuilt
and the site is inaccessible. The cricket pavilion located at the junction of
Cannon Hill Lane and Aylward Road appears to be the most suitable
alternative. It is near the previous polling place, can be accessed directly
from the road and has all the facilities required of a polling place although
old fashioned in style. It is not used for cricket on a Thursday. It could
accommodate the two polling stations in RA.

Page 153



2.3.

2.4.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

41.

St Helier Ward; The polling place which has previously been used as the
polling station in polling district BC is Farm Road Church, Farm Road,
Morden. This building is likely to be demolished shortly and will not be
available for use on 22" May. This is a residential area with no obvious
buildings that could be used as a polling place. It is therefore proposed
that the polling place for BC should be Abbotsbury Primary School which is
already used for polling district BD. A site visit has taken place which has
confirmed that the school hall could accommodate two polling stations.
The school is 0.2 miles from the church.

Cricket Green Ward; St Peter & St Paul (RC) Primary School, Cricket
Green, Mitcham is the designated polling place for polling district ED. The
Headteacher has suggested that the scout hall at the rear of the school
could be used as an alternative which would enable him to keep the school
open on polling day. Following a site visit the scout hall has been
assessed as meeting the requirements for a polling place. It has recently
been redecorated and new flooring installed. It is adjacent to the school
and so is known to electors. Step free access for electors would be
ensured by providing a ramp leading to the double doors which would
remain open during polling hours. Electors would then turn right into a
short corridor leading to the main hall. This corridor is sufficiently wide to
present no significant difficulty to a wheelchair user entering the building.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

There are no obvious alternative locations within Graveney and St Helier
Wards. For Merton Park Ward the suggestions by the Conservative agent
and Councillor Simpson (see paragraph 4.3 below) have been investigated.
The Co-op has confirmed that it would have no objection to a mobile unit
being stationed in the supermarket car park and a suitable unit could be
hired. However, mobile units generally provide a poor experience for both
electors and staff and are relatively expensive to hire. Usually they are
only used when there is nothing else available and it is not recommended
that this alternative be pursued.

Two other buildings have been visited to assess their suitability; St Mary’s
church hall, St Mary’s Road which is currently used for polling district RB
and the bowls pavilion in John Innes Park. A site visit has taken place
which indicated that the two polling stations in RA could be accommodated
in the church hall. By car the church hall is 0.8 miles from the hospital but
is closer on foot. The bowls pavilion is located in the park some way from
the road so is perhaps not so convenient for electors. It also has all the
facilities required of a polling station but is used every day during May by
the bowls club. This use would not be possible on polling day. However,
this pavilion could only accommodate one polling station so if it were used
it would have to be in conjunction with another building.

In Cricket Green Ward the alternative would be to continue to use the
school.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Ward councillors for these wards and political party agents gave been
consulted on these proposed changes.

Page 154



4.2

4.3.

4.4

4.5.

5.1.

6.1.

Graveney Ward; Councillors Dehaney and Kirby indicated that they had no
objection to the use of St Barnabas church as the polling place for GB
polling district.

Merton Park Ward; Councillor Southgate on behalf of the Merton Park
Independent Residents indicated that his group viewed the cricket pavilion
as a reasonable alternative for RA polling district. The Conservative agent
has suggested that a mobile unit or another public building could be used
in view of the distance between the previous and proposed polling places
and Councillor Simpson suggested that the car park of the Co-op
supermarket in Kingston Road could be used for a mobile unit.

St Helier Ward; Councillor Martin has indicated that she has no objection
to the use of Abbotsbury Primary School as the polling place for polling
district BC.

Cricket Green Ward; Councillor Saunders has indicated that she has no
objection to this proposal. Councillor Munn has expressed some concerns
about the proposal particularly in relation to on street parking restrictions,
parking activity while parents drop off and collect children, the location of
the only entrance to the polling place in Mitcham Park rather than both
there and on Cricket Green, the lack of visibility of the entrance to the scout
hall and disabled access which he considers not as good as that for the
school hall. His detailed comments are attached in the appendix.

TIMETABLE

The council meeting on 2" April 2014 must make a decision on these
proposals so that all polling districts have a designated polling place for the
elections on 22" May and electors notified of their polling place well in
advance of the election. It is planned that the delivery of poll cards will
begin on Thursday 17" April, five weeks before polling day. Any later
decision would cause a delay in sending poll cards to electors whose
polling place had changed because of the deadlines for sending data to the
printers. If an emergency occurred after this date the Returning Officer has
power to designate a polling place.

FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS

Provision for the hire of buildings for use as polling places is included within
the budget for the elections on 22" May. As the Borough council elections
are combined with those for the European Parliament some of the cost will

be recoverable from the Cabinet Office.

LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

The Council has a duty under the Representation of the People Act 1983
(RPA) to divide its area into polling districts for parliamentary and local
government elections, to designate a polling place for each polling district,
and to keep these under review. The Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 specifies that functions in
section 18 of the RPA are not to be the responsibility of an authority’s
executive. This function has not been specifically delegated by the Council.

Page 155



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION
IMPLICATIONS

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 it is the duty of a public authority
in the exercise of its functions to have due regard to the need to:

» Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act;

* Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not;

* Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

Having due regard for advancing equality involves:

* Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their
protected characteristics;

» Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where
these are different from the needs of other people;

» Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or
in other activities where their participation is disproportionally low.

In providing services and access to them the Council is required by law to
make reasonable adjustments in order to avoid discriminating against
disabled persons. When considering what adjustments should be
considered as reasonable the council is required to have regard to the
relevant code of practice. The following are some of the factors to be taken
into account when considering what is reasonable:

* Whether taking any particular steps would be effective in overcoming the
substantial disadvantage that disabled people face in accessing the
services in question;

» The extent to which it is practicable for the service provider to take the

steps;

The financial and other costs of making the adjustment;

The extent of any disruption which taking the steps would cause;

The extent of the service provider’s financial and other resources;

The amount of any resources already spent on making adjustments; and

The availability of financial and other assistance.

The right to free elections forms part of Article 3 of Protocol 1 of the Human
Rights Act 1998. Any resident is entitled to vote, if qualified by age and
nationality, and if not subject to any other legal incapacity.

As indicated above, the principles have been followed of seeking to ensure
that all electors have such reasonable facilities for voting as are practicable
in the circumstances, and seeking to ensure that so far as is reasonable and
practicable every polling place is accessible to electors who are disabled.
There is a commitment to ensure that all polling places are accessible.

Page 156



8.5

10
101

11

12
121

The aim of enhancing community cohesion and engagement would be
expected to be achieved by the principles in 9.1 and 9.2 through promoting
democratic engagement by seeking to make voting in person as easy as
possible for residents of all communities.

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
Integrity plans are maintained for elections. These involve working closely

with Merton Police on operational matters, together with liaising with the

Metropolitan Police Service officer specifically delegated with responsibility

for potential election offences.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

In reviewing polling places, the reasonable facilities for staff at polling
stations during elections have been considered. The physical fabric of
possible polling places has also been considered to reflect the need for
members of the public to visit their polling station.

APPENDICES - THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE
PUBLISHED WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT

. Map of Cricket Green ward & location plan of John Innes cricket
pavilion

. Detailed comments by Councillor Munn on polling district ED
BACKGROUND PAPERS

Reports on current and potential polling places and polling stations made by
Electoral Services staff and by presiding officers and polling station
inspectors at past elections.

Page 157



Cricket pavilion, John Innes recreation ground

Abbotsbury Primary School (BC & BD)

Appendix

oy MORDEN
e ff FARK

Gzt Ciaper g, Ml righils e Dzl Weron 100013238, 2011,
Duzital B13p Dieza i Collle Sarthzio res L2 2010,

St Helier
Ward

Seale *:11,000

Page 158



Cricket Green Ward — Detailed comments from Councillor Munn

Thank you. | visited the Scout Hut at 3.00 pm yesterday (ie 11.2.14). This coincided
with the collection times for children at St Peter & St Paul’s Primary. Vehicular access
to the school is one way via Mitcham Park. At the time of my visit all four parking
spaces were in use; and cars were parked on both sides of the road for a distance of
30/40 yards either side of the School entrance. The entrance to the Scout hut was
blocked by parked vehicles. | am concerned that this parking activity (which occurs
twice a day during term time) will be repeated during the election period.

As discussed, if the Scout Hut were to be used there would need to be a temporary
removal of the parking restrictions near the School and Scout Hut entrances; however,
if the School were to be open during Polling Day there would be unacceptable chaos at
the entrance to the new Polling Station.

The Polling Station in the School has two entry points. One is on Cricket Green, the
other via Mitcham Park. Notices identifying the Polling Station have been placed close
to these entry points in the past and people casting their votes have used both
entrances.

The proposed new Polling Station will have only one entrance; and, whilst pedestrian
access for non-disabled people will be possible, there will be only one drop off point for
people using the vehicles.

The interior of the Scout Hut poses no problem. | have visited and confirm there is
sufficient space to cope with the 1300 or so on the Register; however, the entrance
doors are not designed to permit wheelchair users access. Both doors would have to
be fully open to permit wheelchair access. | know you have said you can arrange a
ramped access (as was provided at the school); however a wheelchair user would not
have direct access to the door way. This is at right angles to the footway entrance. If it
were to be used the Scout Mini bus would have to be parked elsewhere on Polling Day
to allow for access onto a ramp. A wheelchair user would need to leave the footway,
turn right and then swivel 180 degrees to access the ramp. This is probably
manageable; but is not ideal.

Publicity for the Polling Station (if its use is approved) would have to be provided at the
Cricket Green entrance to the School as well as at the Mitcham Park junction with
Cricket Green by the Police Station so that Voters (who are familiar with the Cricket
Green entrance to the School) are re-directed to the Scout Hut.

The Scout Hut location (even though it is near the Mitcham Park school entrance) is
not nearly as visible as the School. There are traffic problems in Mitcham Park near
the School entrance; and disabled access is not as good as at the School Hall Polling
Station, so, on balance | am not happy about changing the venue.

Regards
Councillor lan Munn BSc MRTPI (RTD)

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 160



Agenda Item 13

Committee: General Purposes

Date: 12 March 2014
Wards: All

Subject: Freedom of the Borough — proposed criteria and procedures
Lead officer: Julia Regan, Head of Democracy Services
Lead member: Councillor lan Munn, Chair, Freedom of the Borough Working Group

Contact officer: Julia Regan, Head of Democracy Services,
julia.regan@merton.gov.uk; 020 8545 3864

Recommendation:

That General Purposes Committee report to Council on 2 April 2014,
recommending the adoption of criteria and procedures in relation to nominations for
the award of the freedom of the borough. (the proposed criteria are set out in
paragraphs 2.7 to 2.10 and proposed procedures are set out in paragraphs 2.12 to
2.16 of this report)

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. At its meeting on 20 November 2013, Council resolved that officers be
instructed to report to the General Purposes Committee on future criteria
and procedures for considering nominees for the freedom of the borough
with a view to Council receiving a recommendation from General Purposes
Committee on the adoption of such criteria and procedures.

1.2. A small working group comprising five members of General Purposes
Committee, the Head of Democracy Services, the Leisure and Culture
Development Manager and the Head of Communications was established
for the purpose of developing criteria and reporting back to the Committee..

1.3. This report sets out the criteria and procedures proposed by the working
group.

2 DETAILS
Principles

21. The working group considered the criteria and procedures adopted by other

councils, identified a set of guiding principles for Merton and agreed draft
criteria and procedures to recommend to General Purposes Committee.

2.2. The working group noted that awards prior to 2013 had been to politicians
who had made a substantial contribution to the civic life of the borough.
Members agreed that they wished to develop criteria that would
acknowledge significant contribution made to other aspects of the borough
and those who have brought distinction to the borough.

Page 161



2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

Members wished to be able to acknowledge sustained commitment but
stressed that it would be awarded for exceptional service and not
automatically for long service.

The working group discussed how best to ensure that there is a process in
place that can be activated when there is a nomination, but that wouldn’t
create the expectation that nominees would automatically receive the
freedom of the borough — members stressed that it is important that the
award doesn’t become commonplace.

The working group requested that legal advice be provided to general
Purposes Committee regarding the advisability of including the criteria and
procedures in the Council’s constitution.

Criteria

The working group agreed to recommend the following criteria to general
Purposes Committee:

Freedom of the Borough is a high honour which should only be awarded in
exceptional circumstances where the prospective recipient is an individual or
organisation of distinction and has rendered eminent services to the
borough.

Candidates should have a strong and continuing connection with and
commitment to Merton or have made a major contribution to national life and
in doing so have enhanced the reputation of the borough.

Candidates should have made a substantial contribution to the borough in
any area of activity, which could include:

e artistic and cultural endeavours
e business, economic growth and prosperity
e charitable work
e improvement to the built and natural environment
¢ religious and spiritual life
e sports activities
e civic service
The award may be granted posthumously.

Procedures

The working group agreed to recommend the following procedure to General
Purposes Committee:

Nominations for persons or organisations to be granted Freedom of the
Borough, may be made by any serving Member of the Council to the
Monitoring Officer on the appropriate form. The Member should first raise
the matter for discussion within their political group.

Page 162



2.13.

2.14.

2.15.

2.16.

2.17.

Once a nomination is received, the Monitoring Officer will check that
sufficient information has been provided on the form and will pass it to the
General Purposes Committee for consideration.

The Monitoring Officer will write to all councillors at least once during the
four yearly municipal cycle, preferably at or near the midpoint, to draw their
attention to the opportunity to make nominations

The General Purposes Committee may establish a small working group to
informally assess nominations and the likelihood of meeting the 2/3 criteria.
The working group would report back to the General Purposes Committee in
regard to any nominee who it believed would meet the criteria and achieve
sufficient support at Council.

General Purposes Committee shall report to Council and, should Council
accept the nomination, a Special Meeting of Council would then be called to
pass the resolution as required by Section 248 of the Local Government Act
1972.

A draft nomination form is appended to this report for consideration by the
Committee.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

General Purposes Committee may choose to recommend alternative criteria
and/or procedures to Council..

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED

A request for information on criteria and procedures was placed on the
Association of Democratic Services Officers’ website. Information was
received from three councils and was considered by the working group..

TIMETABLE

A report from General Purposes containing recommendations relating to
criteria and procedures for awarding the Freedom of the borough will be
received at Council’'s meeting on 2 April 2014..

FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS

Any expenditure associated with conferring the Honorary Freedom of the
Borough will be from existing budgets.

LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS
Section 249 (paragraphs 5 and 6) of the Local Government Act 1972 states:

() (5) The Council of a London Borough... may, by resolution passed by not
less than two-thirds of the members voting thereon at a meeting of the
council specially convened for the purpose with notice of the object, admit to
the borough persons of distinction and persons who have, in the opinion of
the council, rendered eminent services to the borough”

(ii) (6) The Council of a London Borough...may spend such reasonable sum
as they think fit for the presenting an address or a casket containing an
address to a person upon whom they have conferred the title of (honorary
alderman) or admitted to be an honorary freeman of the ...borough..

Page 163



7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

8.1.

9.1.
10
10.1.
11

12

The working group requested that legal advice be provided to the Committee
regarding the advisability of including the criteria and procedures in the
Council’s constitution.

Making the criteria and procedures part of the Constitution does mean they
are transparent to the public and easily accessible. If any amendments are
required to the processes then, as part of the constitution, this would require
the amendments to be presented to Standards Committee, General
Purposes Committee and full Council.

If the procedures do not form part of the constitution amendments could be
decided without the need to refer them through Standards Committee, this
committee and Council. Substantive amendments could be delegated to
General Purposes Committee with minor amendments delegated to the
Monitoring Officer. As regards transparency, even if the procedures were
not made part of the Constitution they could be posted on the website.

HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION
IMPLICATIONS

None.

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

None.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
None

APPENDICES - THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE
PUBLISHED WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT

Appendix 1 — draft nomination form

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Note of meeting of the Freedom of the Borough Working Group, 6 February
2014

Page 164



Appendix 1 — draft nomination form

NOMINATION FOR FREEDOM OF THE BOROUGH

1. Name of the person or organisation being nominated for Freedom of the
Borough.

2. Freedom of the Borough is a high honour which should only be awarded in
exceptional circumstances where the prospective recipient is an individual or
organisation of distinction and has rendered eminent services to the borough.

Candidates should have a strong and continuing connection with and
commitment to Merton or have made a major contribution to national life and
in doing so have enhanced the reputation of the borough.

Candidates should have made a substantial contribution to the borough in
any area of activity, which could include:
e artistic and cultural endeavours
e business, economic growth and prosperity
e charitable work
improvement to the built and natural environment
religious and spiritual life
sports activities
civic service

The award may be granted posthumously.

3. The award of the Freedpm of the Borough requires support of 2/3 of Council.
Nominations should therefore first be discussed within your political group
and, where appropriate, with other group leaders. In your opinion, is the
nomination likely to achieve the required 2/3 support at Council?

YES NO

Page 165



4. Please use the box below to outline your nominee’s outstanding
achievements in the Borough or on the international stage which have
brought pride and satisfaction to the Borough. Continue on a separate

sheet if necessary.

5. Nomination submitted by:

Councillor Date

Please return this form to The Monitoring Officer, Merton Civic Centre or by e-
mail to democratic.services@merton.gov.uk

Page 166



Agenda Iltem 14

Work Programme General Purposes Committee
Outline programme — scheduled audit and finance items
MARCH
o External auditor: certification of claims report
« External auditor: fee letters for audit for the Council and Pension Fund
e Internal audit: Progress report
e Internal audit: Plan, strategy and terms of reference
e Internal audit: Whistleblowing policy and annual update
JUNE
 Internal audit: Annual Governance Statement
e Internal audit: Annual Report
« Finance: Draft accounts
SEPTEMBER
e Internal audit: Progress on annual audit plan
« Finance: Final accounts
NOVEMBER
o External auditor: annual audit letter
o External auditor: audit results report
e Internal audit: Annual Governance Statement update on improvement plan
Other standard items
o Polling places
o Constitutional amendments
Specific items

« Constitutional changes - Financial regulations, GP terms of reference, Council
standing orders and Chief Exec’s delegation — JUNE 2014

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 168



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 5 November 2013
	4 External Auditor:  Review of anonymous whistleblowing statement
	5 External Auditor: Certification of claims and returns annual report 2012/13
	6 External Auditor: Merton council audit plan
	7 External auditor: Pension fund audit plan
	8 External auditor: Progress report
	9 Procurement: Report of the Chair of the procurement board
	Appendix

	10 Internal Audit: Plan, strategy and charter 2014/15
	11 Internal Audit: progress and whistleblowing update
	12 Review of Polling Places
	13 Freedom of the Borough - proposed criteria and procedures
	14 Work programme

